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Awards & Recognition
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The Group and its subsidiaries won the following awards in the
Financial Year 2011/2012.
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About HKR International Limited
EREAHEHBREE SRR T

Company History

In 1977, the family of Dr CHA Chi Ming, the late founder and chairman of the
Group, acquired the equity interest of Hong Kong Resort Company Limited (“Hong
Kong Resort”) which is the registered owner and developer of Discovery Bay on
Lantau Island. The shares of Hong Kong Resort and the other Group company
were once listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1987 and

in 1988 and 1989 respectively. During the years 1988 and 1989, the Group
underwent a series of reorganisation and scheme of arrangement and formed
HKR International Limited (Stock Code : 480) in May 1989 as its new listed
holding company carrying on principally real estate development and other related
businesses.

Today, HKR International Limited has diversified interests in real estate
development and investment, property management, luxury hotels and serviced
apartments, property related manufacturing, healthcare services and other
investments in Hong Kong, Mainland China and Asia.
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Our Vision, Mission & Values

B AP A RS~ 58 i A {9

Vision

JE

To be the pioneer of innovative living space

WEATH RIERZER

Mission

fi iy

We strive to create a healthy, stylish and distinctive living experience
through teamwork and passionate pursuit of innovation and excellence
BERMD A RE SMRTR BRAZK

Bl B 4T BRI

Values

TR —
PRI’DE

Pioneer Respect Innovation
Break new grounds _"_ Value the individual and Think outside the box
EBR (3T cherish our environment NN

BAEL
Integrity Devotion Excellence
Uphold high ethical Be committed and Consistency in the pursuit
standards —"_ passionate —‘l_ of our quality standards
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Signature Proj ects

ERFRMENEHIE

Mainland China = B & b

Hong Kong &i&

Japan B

Dazhongli,
Shanghai
FRERHE

Total Planned GFA
REP O EIEmEE

323,000m

Discovery Bay

P VAN =— N N4
|B|J =

Tota\ GFA
EE &

9’74 200m?

Auberge,
Discovery Bay
Hong Kong

BBMREHE

25 884mz

Horizon Place
Akasaka,
Tokyo 3R R

Total Floor Area
A8

7,583m2

Located in the Jingan district, the Dazhongli
project is a world class mixed-use development
comprising two super Grade-A office towers,
three luxury hotels and a prime retail mall. It is
scheduled for completion by phases from 2015
onwards.

BrBMATEEARUAENGSERDE
HMEEEFRPAE =K %EEEJE&—M
=R BYEISENK  TBAHR2015F B0 B BUE
B o

Located on Lantau Island, Discovery Bay is the
Group's flagship residential project comprising
garden houses, low, mid and high rise developments,
a 27-hole golf course, a marina, two residents clubs,
a manmade beach, two international schools, two
shopping malls and a resort hotel.

ME/\?UL?@U.IE’J IR EREENEEETER %
BREEE K - SEYE 27AEREKNS -
ERE MEETEHR AEDE- MRS
R -MEBDESE - KERBSE -

Scheduled for opening in late 2012, Auberge,
Discovery Bay Hong Kong, the deluxe resort
hotel on the waterfront of Yi Pak Bay, comprises
325 full-sea-view rooms & suites and a 16-metre
picture-perfect seaside white chapel ideal for
wedding.

R —HENMNREERLES AN SEREE
STR2012F FEMA¥E - E5A/ERE325M 28
SEEMER: MEHEIKS LEEZENAE
BEREBRE BN BBITIBEENRESGM -

Acquired by the Group in 2010, the 94-unit
Horizon Place Akasaka is located in Akasaka,
Minato-ku of Tokyo. It is well connected with many
of Tokyo's landmarks and boasts a panoramic view
of skyscrapers.

EER2010F BB A ~ H5941# 2 iz A Horizon
Place Akasaka1ﬁﬁ<\\$/?\/%liﬁ’]5'fﬂi BERRZ
BEZHE L HERBABNERKNES

Thailand Z E

The Sukhothai
Residences,
Bangkok 4

81 006m~

The Sukhothai
hotel,
Bangkok 24

Total GFA
AR EE

39,062m:

The Sentosa
Resort & Spa

28 988m2

-

Mainland China EP@IWiHJ

N

Thailand =Bl
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The Sukhothai Residences is located next to The
Sukhothai hotel on South Sathorn Road. Over
70% of the units of this ultra luxury 41-storey
condominium tower have been sold and the
remaining units may be considered for relaunch
soon.

The Sukhothai Residencesfiz # South Sathorn
Road® The SukhothaiBi J555 32 - i EIER41E K
BAREABAFEAEDLE HIBHAT0%ME
- EfBENRERRNERNE I ES-

The Sukhothai is a world-renowned and award-
winning hotel in Central Bangkok, highly regarded
by international travellers for its unparalleled
services and facilities.

IR 2 AT O E The Sukhothaiil it 2 /014 -
B HEFIRG MR EES IR IR

Atop a cliff on Sentosa Island, The Sentosa

Resort & Spa is a stylish and luxury resort in lush
greenery, minutes away from downtown Singapore.
It is highly acclaimed for its award-winning Spa
Botanica.

R ERYDEILEZ EAThe Sentosa Resort &
Spat—RAEMARNREZEREE  RE 5
IR AT AR L AL ESE AR KB L Spa
Botanica B &R & - X EE -

Japan B
A

" Hong Kong &%&
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Highlights of the Year
FEAFHE

2011

|
August /\ H

Hong Kong Resort Company Limited won the “Best

Developer - Urban Design & Master Planning Award”
& “Best Developer - Green Development Award” in the
“CAPITAL The Best Developer Awards 2011” for its
development of Discovery Bay.

BERXERADEHEMRERRER R EAKEHR

J& B K 822011 | EM% BIREZERD - BH R MERR
2 MIZEERD - RERKICER] MBBAE-

October T H

_UV Kap Pin Long San Tsuen
ey R AT

°

(s’

%
Greenpeak Villa 2
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Sai Kung Garden
EEEE
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July £t H

The Group and its Thai partner acquired
a piece of freehold land with a site area
of about 5,200 square metres on Sathorn

Road, Bangkok at a consideration of
about THB1.35 billion (approximately
HK$356 million). The site is planned
to be developed into a high-end

condominium.

EEEERRBHIUNI3SERS (4
3.56f8 % T ) B A — $RAL K £ A Sathorn
Road 7k A JB #E T Hb o ;2 38 T (G Hh 49
5,200 F 77K - stBIBERK A —ERER
BREEAE-

The Group acquired a piece of
government land with a site area of
approximately 18,600 square feet in
Kap Pin Long, Sai Kung, Hong Kong for
luxury residential development.

SEBA-—RURETEHEFEN A
Hh %718,600F 77 R 8 K T £ #f - A LA 3%
RREEE-
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November +—H

The Dazhongli project in Jingan district of

Shanghai reached a new milestone with the

commencement of its foundation works.

EEFRRATERANMETEEAR
B IR IR B ) — (ER R A2

January — H

2012

The Group launched a new corporate
website, at www.hkri.com, with
enriched contents, a revamped
design, and enhanced features.

EEHEL 2O ER (Bt A :
www.hkri.com) * AR 2 F Rt E

B DIpE /N E B2 e

The Sentosa Resort & Spa in
Singapore won the “The Best Hotels
(Resorts) Award” in “The Best of

February —H The Group disposed of Joyce

Building, a wholly-owned industrial

Singapore 2012” organised by

. . building in Wong Chuk Hang,
Singapore Tatler magazine.
Hong Kong.

SELEEE2EHA UNEBRE
MR TEREFH B A D

i 72 %7 hN3¥ B9 The Sentosa Resort
& SpafESingapore TatlerZf & == i
B [ The Best of Singapore 2012
F 15 [ The Best Hotels (Resorts)
Award | BIFREE ©
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

€6 e continued to rebalance our assets

and develop our diversified land bank

during the year to better prepare ourselves

for further growth and development in the

region. FRAM A 4E BE N 4 A R A AL K A - B
A0 5E YN 2 2 A L SR A6 - 2 R T S 5 A [
P — 2 R R B R B e - 99

I would like to present the Annual Report of HKR
International Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”)
for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 (“the
year”).

Solid Financials

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year
was HK$747.2 million and earnings per share were
HK$0.55, compared to a profit of HK$1,647.9 million
and earnings per share of HK$1.22 in 2010/2011.
Turnover for the year was HK$1,664.1 million, down
7.6% from the HK$1,800.7 million recorded in the
previous year. As of 31 March 2012, the net asset value
of the Group stood at HK$14,495.8 million (HK$10.7
per share), up 6.8% from last year's HK$13,571.7
million (HK$10.1 per share).

AARAREBLHEELBEREEER QA
LEWB AR (T8 ])&EZE2012F3H31
BIFBTREE ([FE])MFERS -

g gy

EARFE RNRBIHEE ABERF ART7.472
BB T HIREF0.55% 7T M2010/20114F
ERMAREHER ARG R EA16.479(8

B BRAF122B T A FERMBEE
B A16.6411EE T  REAFM18.007EHE T
TE7.6% > A201263 8310 @ EE
FEA144.958B B T (F%10.7870) « &
EFER35.717EB T (BR10.UE7T) £F
6.8% ©

The Board of Directors declared the payment of an
interim dividend of HK8 cents per share for the year. No
final dividend was proposed. So, the interim dividend

of HK8 cents per share represents the total dividend
payable to shareholders for the year. In the previous
financial year, a total dividend of HK18 cents per share
was paid to shareholders.

Market Overview

In its World Economic Outlook Update (January 2012),
the International Monetary Fund noted that global
recovery was threatened by intensifying strains in the
Euro area and fragilities elsewhere. It expected the Euro
area economy to go into a mild recession in 2012.

We see challenges in all our key markets.

09

EXeaRAFETHRESRSEN B
TEFBRERE At ZTHRES
BREBIIR BARFEREREAE -SE
R E— AR BRFEERKRRIKE 2 2FRE
A8 -

T 55 W Ut

B EEE ARSI E (Mt FREBERESH
TER) (2012F1A%%) FigH  2IRIEEEIE
B B T [ B 7 AN B RN E Ath Hb 8 45 7% s 55
MEE - WIEFTBUTE & EE2012F i&kaA
BFIEIR -

BPERSEEEM SRR S E-
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Chairman’s Statement
FRERE

Hong Kong Monetary Authority’s figures show that
Hong Kong housing prices fell 4.4% in the second half
of 2011, though they were still some 40% higher than
the previous peak in mid-2008. Speculative activities
in property market subsided after the Government’s
tightening measures kicked in, but concerns over the
Euro area debt crisis and a worsened global economy
still clouded the Hong Kong property market in 2012.

In Mainland China, the property market in 2011 fell
generally in response to the Central Government’s
policies in curbing the rapid rise in residential prices.
Home prices in Tier-1 cities went soft, but rose slightly
in Tier-2 cities. However, a cautious sentiment has
prevailed in the market, and home prices are expected
to adjust further in 2012.

Thailand went through coups, political unrest, and

in last year massive flooding. Yet the overall property
market has seen continued demand expansion and
residential property prices, though flattened a bit, have
not dropped. Meanwhile, the hotel industry has yet to
fully recover from the instability in the country.

In Japan, land prices have been falling for two decades
and the property market was hurt further last year by
the March 11 earthquake and tsunami. The Japanese
economy came to a standstill from the recovery and
business confidence deteriorated in the fourth quarter of
2011, though the property rental market has remained
steady.

In Singapore, competition in the hotel industry
intensified following the opening of at least 10 more
hotels in 2011. The increased competition, coupled with
the gloomy economic outlook, has posed challenges to
the local hospitality sector.

BEEeREERNEBET BBEER
2011F THF T 74.4%  B1382008F
RS E H 4940% o B HE UL B4
Mg - BHLE TSR IR G B A FTI
MEELR TR EREEEIRREER
SEBRMEMBE2012F 1 T HEAE
=R -

ERFPEAM - R RBATHE LB I EEE
BEARNBER  2011FHNBREEMED
BEAEE -BEA—GETEE BEZ
BT DR SEMIE R - A BIEBED
AFEFTIG  FAREERR2012FE —#H
B o

FEREETHE BADBREF ORI
K TBERTE - BHETH0HRA
R L EEEBRE LADN - WRRT
B SR - B R TR E
GES TP

AR #HERBE0FFHE K B E
MISHEEF IRE3ILRME MBRE — X
Ble BAKEMNERDBIAMSE &R
EUR201IFENFTE  EHEREM
SANBEMEFTIRTE ©

BEE Z D 10MFT B JE R201 1 Z - ¥
BB EEMEES BBEE i HEE R =R
K SEHBEERETDKE -

Rebalancing Continues

Against a backdrop of global economic uncertainty,
we continued to rebalance our assets and develop our
diversified land bank during the year to better prepare
ourselves for further growth and development in the
region. A number of transactions were concluded,
bolstering our financial position and deepening our
diversification strategy in Asia.

Following the disposal of our 50% interest in Discovery
Park Shopping Centre in Tsuen Wan of Hong Kong in
the previous financial year, in March 2012, we disposed
of Joyce Building, an industrial building in Wong Chuk
Hang, Hong Kong, at a consideration of HK$615 million.

In June 2012, we also disposed of Siri Sathorn, a deluxe
serviced residences in Bangkok, for about THB700
million (approximately HK$177 million).

With a strong financial position, we are on the
constant lookout for good investment and development
opportunities both in Hong Kong and Asia.

In October 2011, we purchased a piece of Government
land with a site area of approximately 18,600 square
feet in Kap Pin Long, Sai Kung, Hong Kong for luxury
residential development.

In July 2011, we also joined hands with our Thai partner
to acquire a piece of freehold land with a site area of
approximately 5,200 square metres on Sathorn Road,
Bangkok. This site, and another 12,600-square-metre
site on Wireless Road that we acquired in 2010, will
both be developed for high-end residential projects.

More recently, in June 2012, we successfully acquired
in an open auction the Land Use Right of a piece of
land in Yao Jia Dang Area in the Jiaxing Economic and
Technology Development Zone of Jiaxing City, Zhejiang,
China. The 41,000-square-metre land will also be used
for residential development.

11
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Chairman’s Statement
FRERE

These disposals and purchases will allow us to focus
our attention and resources in pursuing a strategy of
delivering unique quality projects at a premium price, so
as to create and maximise values for the Group.

Meanwhile, our other key projects were also progressing
well.

By the end of March 2012, construction works of
Amalfi, Phase 14 of Discovery Bay, Hong Kong were
basically completed. Sales launch is planned for the
third quarter of 2012.

Auberge, Discovery Bay Hong Kong, the deluxe resort
hotel on the waterfront of Yi Pak Bay is scheduled for
opening in late 2012 and will be a welcome addition to
Discovery Bay.

In Shanghai, the Dazhongli project in Jingan district
reached a new milestone with the commencement

of foundation works in November 2011. Piling and
basement works were also in good progress. This
flagship commercial project, planned for completion by
phases from 2015 onwards, will be the Group’s major
growth engine in the years to come.

Outlook

With our strong, lifestyle focused brand equity, we are
confident that the soon-to-be-launched Amalfi will
attract keen interests from buyers and investors from
Hong Kong, Mainland China, as well as overseas.
Auberge, Discovery Bay Hong Kong will further
transform Discovery Bay into a truly international
community and an integrated leisure hub that cannot be
found elsewhere in Hong Kong.

Although the growth momentum in Asia may have
slowed down recently, we are cautiously optimistic about
the Asian and Hong Kong economies. In particular,

the solid market fundamentals and our close tie with
the Mainland Chinese economy should place Hong
Kong in a stronger position to cope with the market
uncertainties.

It E MR R BRI AT O EGE
SHER BREEBRE TEBFMNEE
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EREL 6P NEIE &
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We will capitalise on Hong Kong's advantages and
make full use of our unique and combined expertise in
property development, property investment, hospitality
etc to continue exploring new business opportunities
across Asia.

Appreciation

To further strengthen corporate governance, we set up
a Nomination Committee under the Board of Directors
during the year to review structure and composition

of the Board and to make recommendations on any
proposed changes and appointments to the Board.
Meanwhile, Mr Linus Cheung was re-designated as an
Independent Non-executive Director.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all our
Board Directors for their strategic advice and astute
guidance, which have benefited the Group a lot over
the years. | am also thankful to our business partners
for their unfailing support, our shareholders for their
confidence in the Group, and all staff members for their
hard work and dedication.

As always, we will continue to work hands in hands
with all our stakeholders and we will remain prudent
in conducting and developing our business in Hong
Kong and across Asia, with a view to maximising
profit, sustaining growth, and creating values for our
shareholders.

CHA Mou Sing Payson
Chairman
Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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Managing Director’s Operations Review

ESEEKIEE SRR

The global economic landscape is still in disarray. Some
of the major economies around the world like the United
States and United Kingdom are still struggling. Certain
Eurozone nations are expected to head for a recession.
Even Mainland China sees a weaker-than-expected
growth and Japan is yet to recover from the 2011
earthquake and tsunami.

In light of the market uncertainty, the Group intensified
its diversification strategy in Asia, carefully built up its
land bank and continued to rebalance and enhance its
asset portfolio during the Financial Year 2011/2012.

REEBRDATIR - By T ELEEW
XBNEEBRESHR FTETRER
HEEFXATE EETEABNLELER
EFEH 53 M AAB2011FKEME
RWRINAFER:-

ENTIZRIEIW TR - 7:12011/20124F §F
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¢6 Our strong and liquid financial position would

provide us with sufficient resources to continue

to explore and undertake selective and quality

projects in Asia that will contribute to the growth

of the Group. £ MMM B - BN E e - ERMA 2
Sh0 5 A A A N % I R e B R R YRS

BIEH - — S EENEEYE- 99

Our strong and liquid financial position would provide
us with sufficient resources to continue to explore and
undertake selective and quality projects in Asia that
will contribute to the growth of the Group, and take us
through the unstable economic climate to meet the
challenges ahead.

SENMBRE RBESTE ERMA
RAEREBCEDNEBESHRERED
MIEERR E—THBRENEHER
BRI AL AR BT ERIR - P&
RIRBEB, -
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Managing Director’s Operations Review

BRI E D

Hong Kong
B

REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT
DISCOVERY BAY

Real estate development is our core business, and
Discovery Bay, our flagship project in Hong Kong,
remains one of the most prestigious high-end residential
development integrated with resort, dining and leisure
facilities.

Phase 14, Amalfi & Phase 15 Development

Construction works of Amalfi, Phase 14 of Discovery
Bay comprising three mid-rise blocks of luxury units
were basically completed. It will offer about 160 units
of 169,300 square feet GFA, and will be put on the
market for sale in the third quarter of 2012. Boasting
uncompromising design and building quality, Amalfi is
set to become the most modern and stylish residence in
Discovery Bay.
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MEZREEENZOES MBEMEES
WEREEMRENAREREZELNSRE
TERBEAZz— ARKESER BRI
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F+HAERIRE+RAHEEEE
BMREETNEEEER FR] A-ER
EREYEEN HRETRESERTK -
23R ] RHAOIC0EEN - REEMEBELD
169,300F IR« i R2012F E =FHE -
BELUNRTREBEER  [1FR] 2
R A 160 5 B B 8 O B AR JE FIT o

Construction works of Phase 15 of Discovery Bay with
187,700 square feet GFA are progressing well and its
sales launch is planned for 2013.

Auberge, Discovery Bay Hong Kong

Auberge, Discovery Bay Hong Kong (“Auberge,
Discovery Bay”), the brand new deluxe resort hotel on
the waterfront of Yi Pak Bay, will be completed soon and
open for business towards the end of 2012.
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Auberge, Discovery Bay is located midway between

the Hong Kong International Airport and Central

district. It will feature over 300 rooms with full-sea-

view, complemented by first-class meeting and banquet
facilities, a resort-style environment, and the award-
winning Spa Botanica, one of the leading spa brands in
Asia. Spa Botanica will also boast a spectacular sea view
and 10 private spa rooms for the ultimate pampering
experience of customers.

With a 16-metre tall white chapel by the seaside,
Auberge, Discovery Bay will offer the first of its kind,
picture-perfect waterfront setting to couples and
wedding planners.

DB North Plaza & DB Plaza

Adjacent to Auberge, Discovery Bay is DB North Plaza, a
new social hub of about 186,000 square feet GFA within
the community. Most of the completed shops and office
spaces have been leased.

DB Plaza, privileged with D Deck, the largest seafront
alfresco dining hotspot in Hong Kong with 20 thematic
restaurants along the waterfront promenade connecting
Tai Pak Beach, achieved nearly 100% occupancy rate.
DB Plaza continues to generate a stable rental income
for the Group.
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The Bounty

The Bounty, a 42-metre European tall ship replica
which resides in Discovery Bay, continues to be one
of the most distinctive icons of Hong Kong waters. It
attracts event planners, multinational corporations,
local enterprises and individuals for corporate events
and private functions, and offers a unique and exotic
experience.
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Discovery Bay Services

During the year, patronage of bus service in Discovery
Bay rose. The demand for external bus service is
expected to increase while the application for a strictly
controlled taxi service is underway. Meanwhile, the
Group's property management company and the four
premium clubs continue to provide professional and
quality services to the residents of Discovery Bay, their
guests and club members.
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Awards & Accolades

Over the last three decades, Discovery Bay has won many
acclaims and made no exception during the year.

In August 2011, Hong Kong Resort Company Limited,

the Group’s subsidiary and developer of Discovery

Bay, clinched the “Best Developer — Urban Design &
Master Planning Award” and “Best Developer — Green
Development Award” in the “CAPITAL The Best Developer
Awards 2011" for its innovative and comprehensive design
and master planning, as well as the adoption of pioneering
green concept, in the development of Discovery Bay.
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In December 2011, the Group also won the “CAPITAL
Outstanding Green Enterprise Award” in the “CAPITAL
Outstanding Green Excellence Awards 2011” for its
achievements in introducing sustainable designs and
pioneering green elements into its development projects like
Discovery Bay.

The Group has a 50% interest in Discovery Bay.

KAP PIN LONG, SAI KUNG

The Group continues to replenish its land reserves in
Hong Kong, and in October 2011 acquired a piece

of government land in Kap Pin Long of Sai Kung for
development of a high-end residential project. The
project is under active planning and site formation works
will commence in 2013.

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT
FUI' YIU KOK STREET, TSUEN WAN

The Group has maintained a balanced portfolio of
investment properties for stable rental income, and it
is also our strategy to maximise gain through strategic
acquisition and disposal of properties with good
investment potential.
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An industrial building bought by the Group in October
2010 at Fui Yiu Kok Street in Tsuen Wan has been
demolished. It will be rebuilt into a new industrial
building with approximately 93,600 square feet GFA or
180 units and is scheduled for completion in 2014.

15 & 16. CDW Building
IR R A R

OTHER INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group’s other long-term commercial and industrial
investment properties continued to record high
occupancy rates and bring in stable rental income.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s wholly-owned West
Gate Tower in Cheung Sha Wan and CDW Building in
Tsuen Wan achieved occupancy rates of 98% and 92%
respectively.

Meanwhile, the Group disposed of Joyce Building in
Wong Chuk Hang in March 2012, realising an attractive
capital gain.
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Mainland China
AR A At

REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT

DAZHONGLI PROJECT IN JINGAN
DISTRICT, SHANGHAI

The Dazhongli project in the Jingan district of Shanghai
when completed in 2015/2016 will be our showcase
and flagship project in Mainland China. With a planned
GFA of approximately 323,000 square metres, this large
scale mixed-use development, located in the heart of
Shanghai, comprises two super Grade-A office towers,
three luxury hotels and a prime retail mall.

The Dazhongli project enjoys superb accessibility to
the whole country and the world. It is bounded on the
north by Nanjing West Road, on the west by Shimenyi
Road (across the Four Seasons Hotel), on the south by
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Weihai Road, and on the east by Qinghai Road (across
the Shanghai TV Building). The Yan An Expressway
and North-South Expressway are nearby. The Dazhongli
project will be connected seamlessly with the Nanjing
Xi Lu Station of Metro Line 13 and its affiliated
facilities. Metro Lines 2 and 12 will also converge at

an interchange to be built close to the site, which will
link the Dazhongli project to all major transportation
hubs and nodal points in Shanghai, including the two
international airports in Pudong and Honggiao, the high-
speed railway and the freeway network.
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The foundation works commenced in November 2011.
The working permits for piling and basement works of
Phase 1 have also been secured and the piling works
and basement excavation works for the office tower
zone have commenced. Restoration plan of a historical
building which will become the gateway building to the
project had been submitted for approval.

With its unparalleled scale, diversity and class, the
Dazhongli project is expected to become the most
distinctive social and commercial hub in Shanghai
and one of the most iconic landmarks in Mainland
China. Upon completion, the Dazhongli project would
become home to flagship stores of international
brands, acclaimed restaurants, and headquarters of
multinational corporations. We are confident that it
will generate a strong and steady income stream for
the Group and allow us to benefit from the growth of
Shanghai and Mainland economy.

The Dazhongli project is jointly owned and developed
by the Group and Swire Properties Limited on a 50:50
basis.

THE EXCHANGE, TIANJIN

The Exchange, the Group’s 15%-owned investment
property in Tianjin with a total GFA of over 152,000
sguare metres, comprises a retail mall, two office towers
and a hotel. The Exchange continued to generate a
stable rental income during the year, achieving average
occupancy rates of 99%, 98% and 59% respectively for
the retail mall, office towers and the hotel.
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20 & 21. The Exchange
RIEES

REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT

In June 2012, through a subsidiary, the Group acquired
in an open auction the Land Use Right of a piece of
land in Yao Jia Dang Area in the Jiaxing Economic and
Technology Development Zone, Jiaxing City, Zhejiang,
for about RMB185 million (approximately HK$226
million). With a site area of about 41,000 square metres,
the land will provide a maximum construction GFA of
approximately 82,000 square metres, and will be used
for residential property development. Construction
works shall commence within one year from the date of
delivery of the land and be completed within three years
thereafter.
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Asia

M
REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT
THAILAND

Thailand is one of our key markets in Asia. We have
been actively and strategically increasing our land
bank in the country, with a view to developing premium
projects for a discerning and cosmopolitan clientele.

The Sukhothai Residences, Bangkok

As at 31 March 2012, over 70% of the 196 units in The
Sukhothai Residences, the Group’s high-end freehold
residential development in the Bangkok CBD, were sold
at an average price of THB226,600 per square metre
(approximately HK$5,305 per square foot). The first
batch of the units has been delivered to the buyers, and
the remaining units may be considered for sale soon.
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Sathorn Road, Bangkok

In July 2011, the Group, together with its Thai partner,
acquired a piece of freehold land with a site area

of about 5,200 square metres on Sathorn Road at

a consideration of approximately THB1.35 billion
(approximately HK$356 million). It is planned to be
developed into a high-end condominium offering some
250 units. Product design and planning are underway
and pre-sale is planned for 2013.

Wireless Road, Bangkok

The Group plans to develop another site in Bangkok
which is a jointly owned project with a Thai partner, after
the Sathorn Road project is released for pre-sale. The
site, with an area of 12,600 square metres on Wireless
Road, was acquired in September 2010.
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REAL ESTATE INVESTMENT

JAPAN

In March 2011, the Group completed the acquisition of
Chelsea Garden, an en-bloc 17-unit residential building
in Hiroo of Tokyo, through an associated real estate fund
at a consideration of about JPY3 billion (approximately
HK$283 million). During the year, Chelsea Garden,
together with our other three wholly-owned investment
properties in Japan, namely DIA Palace Sapporo
Higashi Actio (a 39-unit residential building in
Sapporo), Horizon Place Akasaka (a 94-unit apartment
building in Akasaka, Tokyo) and Homat Sun (a low-
rise development with 18 units in Roppongi, Tokyo),
achieved satisfactory occupancy rates and provided the
Group with a stable rental income.

Although the property rental market in Japan is yet to
recover from March 2011 earthquake and tsunami, we
are cautiously optimistic about the reconstruction efforts
in Japan and its economy.
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HOSPITALITY

THAILAND

We pride ourselves on the legendary services provided
by our luxury hotels in Asia.

In Bangkok, financial performance of The Sukhothai
hotel improved significantly although the floods in the
fourth quarter of 2011 had an adverse effect on its
business. During the year, The Sukhothai hotel’s gross
operating profit increased to around THB121.8 million
(about HK$30.7 million), up 74% from the previous
year. Its performance is expected to improve as political
situation stablises. In June 2012, the Group disposed
of the Siri Sathorn serviced residences in Bangkok at
a consideration of THB700 million (about HK$177
million).
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The Sukhothai hotel continued to win international
recognition despite the difficult operating environment.
It was ranked the sixth in “The World’s Best Hotels —
Asia’s Best Hotels” and 36th of the 100 hotels in “The
World’s Best Hotels” chosen by the Institutional Investor
US in November 2011. It was also named one of the
“Top 20 Overseas Business Hotels” in the “Readers’
Travel Awards” organised by Conde Nast Traveller UK in
October 2011 and one of the “Top 125 Hotels in Asia”
in the “Readers’ Choice Awards” held by Conde Nast
Traveler US in November 2011.
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SINGAPORE

Tourist arrivals in Singapore have reached a new high
following the opening of two new integrated resorts. The
Sentosa Resort & Spa, the Group’s luxury spa resort
hotel in the country, attained a more than satisfactory
occupancy rate for the year. It was given “The Best of
Singapore 2012 — The Best Hotels (Resorts) Award”

by Singapore Tatler magazine in February 2012 and
“Singapore’s Leading Spa Resort 2011” by World Travel
Awards in October 2011.

HONG KONG

Auberge, Discovery Bay, the new deluxe resort hotel on
the waterfront of Yi Pak Bay, is scheduled for its opening
in late 2012 (See the section of “Discovery Bay” above
for more details).
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Healthcare & Others
BERRENMEM

HEALTHCARE

GenRx Holdings Limited (“GenRx”"), the Group’s wholly-
owned subsidiary providing premium healthcare
services, continued to strengthen and grow its business
during the year. Its comprehensive service network now
comprises cancer centres, dental clinics, diabetic and
cardiovascular centres, an imaging centre and multi-
specialty outpatient centres in Hong Kong, Macau and
Manila. The termination of operation agreement with a
local hospital has adversely affected the performance of
the cancer treatment business. Meanwhile, to refocus its
future development strategy in Mainland China, GenRx
has discontinued its financially non-viable clinics. On
the bright side, the turnover of GenRx in Hong Kong and
Manila has been picking up and with reorganisation and
consolidation of the healthcare businesses, it is projected
that the bottom line of GenRx will be further improved.
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SANITARYWARE

As the production costs of Imperial Bathroom Products
Limited (“Imperial”) in Mainland China, in particular the
costs of labour, energy and transportation, have been
increasing, the contribution was affected to a certain
extent. To further develop Imperial’'s markets in Western
Europe and the US, where the sanitaryware business

is recovering, the Group decided to acquire a piece

of freehold land together with plant and machinery in
Middlewich, Cheshire, UK in November 2011 for the
manufacturing of sanitaryware products in Europe, and
its operation commenced in the first quarter of 2012.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENT

During the year, the Group recorded a net profit

of HK$10.4 million for its investment in securities,
comprising interest and dividend incomes, as well as
gain on disposal of certain listed equity securities.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had 10,265,500
shares in Sino-Ocean Land Holdings Limited which are
classified as available-for-sale financial assets.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Any corporation is only as good as its people. We value
all our staff and have been working hard to attract,
develop and retain talents.

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had a total of 3,267
employees in Hong Kong, Mainland China and overseas.
During the year, the Group continued to build and
enhance its employer brand, with a revamp of the career
webpage on our corporate website to attract prospective
candidates to join the Group. Internally, we organised a
number of events to promote corporate culture such as
a logo design competition to increase staff’s appreciation
of the Group’s Vision, Mission and Values.

Various initiatives have been rolled out to develop

and retain talents. The ongoing talent review and
succession planning process has been expanded to
identify and develop high potential employees at entry
professional level. For senior staff, a pilot run of 360°
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feedback tool has been introduced to enhance their
talent development planning which is supported by
competency-based training workshops.

To further enhance employee relations and
communication, a new electronic communication
platform called “eHR” was launched on the Intranet

to provide staff with easy access to important Human
Resources information. Other communication platforms
such as Senior Staff Workshop were also provided to
encourage dialogue between management and staff.
To help develop a healthy and happy workforce, a
Recreation Committee was established to plan and
organise activities for staff's enjoyment.

34. Revamped career webpage
MHEEREREE

35. anior Staff Workshop
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36. Recreational activity for staff
BT REEE

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group always seeks to enhance its competitiveness
and operational efficiency through advanced information
technology infrastructure and application systems.

During the year, the Group worked on server
consolidation and virtualisation to improve systems
availability, boost resources efficiency and lower
operating costs. New cloud computing solutions to
improve business and IT agility are under review. File
exchange service was introduced to allow employees in
headquarters and overseas to collaborate on the same
project irrespective of office locations. The Content
Management System has also been upgraded to
facilitate revamp of corporate websites.
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Corporate Social Responsibility
PEHEEE

During the year, the Group continued to reach out to the
needy and extend our love and care to the community
through its corporate volunteer team HKR Care & Share.

In April 2011, HKR Care & Share hosted an Easter
party entitled Yummy Easter Carnival for children of
the T.W.G.Hs Residential Child Care Services, whose
families are unable to take care of them due to family
problems or crisis resulting from iliness or death.

In October 2011, HKR Care & Share took a group of
underprivileged children from Caritas Integrated Family
Service Centre - Tung Tau on a Discovery Bay tour
entitled Joyful Autumn @ Discovery Bay, allowing the
children to discover and appreciate the natural beauty
and multicultural lifestyle of Discovery Bay in the great
outdoors.
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In February 2012, HKR Care & Share, joined by teenage
volunteers from the T.W.G.Hs Residential Child Care
Services, threw a lunch party for elderly people who
have shown early symptoms of dementia, treating them
to some good food and great performances.

Besides bringing joy and love to the children and
elderly, these activities also provided our volunteers
with invaluable opportunities to get in touch with the
needy and better understand the society we live in. It is
a heartwarming and engaging experience that will also
enhance staff's team spirit and sense of belonging.

In March 2012, the Group sponsored the Programme
Opening Performance of Bavarian Radio Symphony
Orchestra at the 40th Hong Kong Arts Festival in order
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to bring world-class performance to Hong Kong and to
help raise the public’s interest in arts and culture. We also
sponsored The Bounty cruise as a prize to help raise fund
for the Hong Kong Society for the Protection of Children
and the Hong Kong Cancer Fund during the year.

41 & 43. Joyful Autumn @ Discovery Bay
MBEELmRE
42. Lunch party for elderly

EL-EH-BUF

In recognition of the Group'’s continued contribution

to the community, the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service awarded the Group the “Caring Company” logo
for the seventh consecutive year. The Social Welfare
Department also awarded the Group the “Gold Award for
Volunteer Service” in December 2011.

PROSPECTS

We are well aware of the challenges ahead. But we also
see opportunities. We have implemented strategies to
get ourselves prepared at a time of international financial
instability and in an increasingly interconnected global
market place — both to manage the risks identified and
to pave the way for further growth and development.
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We will continue to intensify our diversification strategy
in Asia and expand our reach to markets that offer
good opportunities and return. We will also continue
to enhance our asset portfolio and focus on quality
projects.

Having pursued a tradition of prudent management

for decades, we will leverage on our very unigue and
combined expertise in property development and
investment, hospitality management and healthcare
services to enable the Group to establish a strong
foothold in new markets, collaborate with new partners,
and capture new development and investment
opportunities across Asia. Our goal is to deliver the
projects, products and services of the highest quality to
the market at premium pricing, and also deliver on our
promise of creating an innovative living space for our
customers.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our Board
Directors for their guidance and leadership over the years;
our business partners for their help and support; and our
staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group.

We shall continue to work relentlessly with all stakeholders

to grow the Group’s business and create values for our
shareholders and the communities we serve.

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
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Chairman
Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson

JP, DSSc (Hons) (Aged 69)

Mr CHA was appointed executive director in 1989, the

deputy chairman in September 2001 and the chairman of

the Company on 15 May 2007. He is the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company which was newly set

up in late March 2012. Since 1995, Mr CHA has been the
managing director of HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd, a subsidiary

of the Company, and is now in charge of its operations and
management. He has also been serving as director of a number
of other subsidiaries of the Company since its inception in 1977
and has over 40 years experience in property development.

Mr CHA is the chairman and non-executive director of the
Company'’s associated corporation, Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive director
of New World Development Company Limited, both of them are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). He is an independent non-executive director of
Fagle Asset Management (CP) Limited, manager of Champion
Real Estate Investment Trust which is listed on the Stock
Exchange, an independent non-executive director of Hong
Kong International Theme Parks Limited, owner and operator
of Hong Kong Disneyland Resort, the executive chairman and
CEO of Mingly Corporation (“Mingly”) and a director of Asia
Television Limited (“ATV"). Mingly is, and ATV was once, under
the control of members of the Cha Family. Mr CHA is also a
committee member of the Eleventh National Committee of

the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of the
People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). He is a brother of Ms
WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor and
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson and an uncle of Mr CHA Yiu Chung
Benjamin who are also directors of the Company. Mr CHA is
also a director of CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited and LBJ Regents
Limited, both are substantial shareholders of the Company
within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO")
and together whose interests in the Company represent the
substantial interests of the Cha Family in the Company.
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Deputy Chairman and Managing
Director

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor

BA, MBA (Aged 62)

Mr CHA was appointed executive director in 1989, the
managing director in September 2001, the deputy chairman on
15 May 2007 and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company since 2 December 2004. He was also appointed
the joint managing director of HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd in
1996. He has been serving as director of a number of other
subsidiaries of the Company with the earliest appointment
back to 1978. Mr CHA is responsible for the overall and day-
to-day management of the Group. Mr CHA has been involved
in textile manufacturing and real estate businesses for over 30
years. He is an independent non-executive director of SOHO
China Limited, an alternate independent non-executive director
of New World Development Company Limited, both companies
are listed on the Stock Exchange, and a director of Mingly
Corporation and United Nigerian Textiles Limited (formerly,
United Nigerian Textiles PLC which was privatised and delisted
from the Nigerian Stock Exchange in October 2011). Mr CHA
is a member of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Committee of Zhejiang Province. He is the father of Mr CHA
Yiu Chung Benjamin, a brother of Ms WONG CHA May Lung
Madeline, Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson and Mr CHA Mou Daid
Johnson who are also directors of the Company.
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Executive Director
Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin

BA, MBA (Aged 38)

Mr CHA was appointed executive director of the Company in
September 2010. He is now head of the Asia Pacific business
unit and director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
He joined the Group in 2002 and has been with the Asia
Pacific business unit, involving in the Company’s investment,
development and asset management of projects in Thailand,
Singapore, Hong Kong, Shanghai and Japan. Mr CHA is also

a non-executive director of Hanison Construction Holdings
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company listed on
the Stock Exchange. He started his career in real estate and
hotel development with the development division of Mandarin
Oriental Hotel group. Mr CHA is a non-official member of the
Harbourfront Commission of the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region (the “HKSAR Government”). He
holds a bachelor degree in international politics and economics
from Middlebury College and a master degree in business
administration from the Stanford Graduate School of Business.
Mr CHA is the son of Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor and a nephew of
Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson, Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson and Ms
WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, all of them are directors of the
Company.

Executive Director
Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham

FCPA (Aged 66)

Mr CHUNG was appointed executive director of the Company
in 1994 and is also director of a number of subsidiaries of

the Company. He has been serving in the Group since 1978
and is the head of finance office responsible for oversight

of the Group’s finance and accounting, tax, insurance and
information technology functions. Mr CHUNG is a certified
public accountant (practising), a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and an associate
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
He has over 35 years experience in financial management and
property development in Hong Kong.

HATEF
PR A

BA, MBA (385%)

B R ER2010F9R EZ I BAR R AT
BEF - PRADAEBBNEREER AN
NEAETHEB AT ZES - % 1R20024 i
AREBEEBREDARERIBIERE - Fm
¥ BB LERBAZHHBREERER
ﬁ?%ﬁ%%ffﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁ °§5‘E$7THHE$“
FOBE AT AT T 2 AR A B R RS A R 1 R
ﬁﬁﬁAﬂZ?F%ﬂﬁi%"ﬁ%ﬂﬁé‘Xi%ﬁ
BEEE v BERIFARERNFEHERBIE
BRZEX -ERENREARIITHRE
B (TEABE]) BEEBEEG I
B K B © 18 9 Bl & Middlebury College
BIRBUA REERE LT B REEL IE
AEEERTHEEEITEU -EXESR
ERKEEZRT WAEBHBLE B
BMEEERTEERZTZER  BEH
BARNRZESR-

WATHE S
SO e 2k

FCPA (665%)

BRANIAFEZTR/RARRIAITE
F NRARBETHBARIZES K
B1978F BN ALK B IRTS - 3 A H 755
mE BEEEASEY B LS B
4%&”?&%51?4&*5?3°f§5‘5$%$ﬂ%m:
B BEEREASEREE  ANER
W BB AT e JrEﬂ? NS RN R
EENBBMERRNEABAGFLER-

Executive Director
Mr TANG Moon Wah

BA (Arch Studies), BArch (Aged 58)

Mr TANG was appointed executive director of the Company in
December 2004 and is also director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company. He has been serving in the Group since

1985 and is the head of China business unit and head of
projects responsible for project management of real estate
development in Hong Kong and the PRC and for oversight of
master planning, conceptual and major designs and technical
advice on acquisitions. Mr TANG has over 30 years extensive
experience in property development. He has been a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects since 1981, Authorised
Person since 1982 and Registered Architect since 1991.

Non-Executive Director
The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI

GBM, CVO, GBS, OBE, JP (Aged 73)

Mr ARCULLI was appointed director in 1989 and has been

an independent non-executive director of the Company since
1993 before he was re-designated as non-executive director

in June 2005. He is the senior partner of King & Wood
Mallesons. Mr ARCULLI retired from the chairmanship of the
board of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (the
“HKECL") on 23 April 2012 but remains as an independent
non-executive director thereof. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Hang Lung Properties Limited and SCMP
Group Limited, and a non-executive director of Power Assets
Holdings Limited, Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited, Sino Hotels
(Holdings) Limited, Sino Land Company Limited and Tsim Sha
Tsui Properties Limited, all of them, together with the HKECL,
are listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr ARCULLI is the convenor
and non-official member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR
Government but he will step down from such offices upon the
restructuring of the Executive Council on 1 July 2012. He is
also a member of the board of directors of The Community
Chest of Hong Kong, a member of the Consultation Panel and a
board member of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority.
He also holds directorships in other public and private
companies in Hong Kong and overseas.

47

AT

B i 42 A

BA (Arch Studies), BArch (58 )

B N2004F 12 AR T RARARAIT
EE NARRRIETHEARIZES-
RE1986F BN AEE R - RAPEH
B RERIER A BEEBRF
BEEMEZRREBR 2R UREEWE
HRAZERE BE FEXRFTARNE
R BMEERNYERRER T EBR30F
2 455k o 15 B 1981 F A A 2 B 75 2 2R
B2eg8 BIORFREKA/BBIEMEE
FIERA] AL R B1991F Bk At s
Bl o

FERITES
HAiEH B

GBM, CVO, GBS, OBE, JP (735%)

EFBEFENIFEEZTARARE
£ R1993F K AR R BB IERNITE
= fEMR2005F6 AT AFERITES -
BREMHEMEBANERERA -BE

BZREN2012F4H23HREBAER S M
BEMARAR ([BRAT))EE—8
BENEEEIMZBIYIERNTES - BN
REEMESRAFKMESHERAR
NRAZBUIRTES WABREES
AR MEBEARAF  EMBEE (%
E)BRAG - EMEXERATRRYD
ﬂﬁ%%*lﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁZ?E%ﬂ”%%’tu

AAHRBR T -BEERHEE AES
BT SR THERITHEHEESE
A R ER2012F7 A1BEHTHE %
BRE-FNAEE A nE2ETTNE
AANEEEEREHNEXNERESRK
B ETHEMEREBRGINRR
FARBIZES-



HKR International Limited Annual Report 2011/2012

EBEEFHBRER AR AR 2011/2012 F3F

48

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EEREEERBABZERE

Non-Executive Director
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson

BA, MBA (Aged 60)

Mr CHA was appointed director in 1989 and re-designated as
non-executive director of the Company in December 2004.

He has been serving as director of a number of subsidiaries of
the Company with the earliest appointment back to 1978. Mr
CHA is also a non-executive director of Hanison Construction
Holdings Limited, an associated corporation of the Company
listed on the Stock Exchange, a director of Mingly Corporation,
an independent non-executive director of Shanghai Commercial
Bank Limited and director/non-executive director of a number
of other public and private companies in Hong Kong and China,
and is active in many non-profit making organisations. He has
over 30 years experience in investment management. Mr CHA
is a brother of Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline, Mr CHA
Mou Sing Payson and Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor and an uncle
of Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin who are also directors of the
Company. He is also a director of LBJ Regents Limited which
is a substantial shareholder of the Company under Part XV of
the SFO and whose interest in the Company forms part of the
interests of Cha Family in the Company.

Non-Executive Director
Mr CHEUNG Tseung Ming

BSc, MBA, MAcc, MICE, MI Struct.E, CPA (Aged 70)

Mr CHEUNG was re-designated as non-executive director of the
Company upon his retirement from the Group with effect from
1 November 2010. Prior to his retirement and re-designation,
Mr CHEUNG was an executive director of the Company since
September 2001 responsible for the management of the
Company'’s hospitality subsidiaries and related investments

in the Asia Pacific region. Mr CHEUNG is a member of the
Institution of Structural Engineers and the Institution of Civil
Engineers in the United Kingdom and a member of the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and CPA
Australia.
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Non-Executive Director
Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline

(Aged 72)

Ms WONG was appointed director in 1989 and re-designated
as non-executive director of the Company in December 2004.
She has been serving as director of a number of subsidiaries
of the Company since its inception in 1977. Ms WONG is a
deputy chairman of Mingly Corporation and also director/non-
executive director of a number of other public and private
companies in Hong Kong and overseas, including Hon Kwok
Land Investment Company, Limited and Chinney Investments,
Limited, both are listed on the Stock Exchange, and United
Nigerian Textiles Limited (formerly United Nigerian Textiles
PLC which was privatised and delisted from the Nigerian Stock
Exchange in October 2011). She is a sister of Mr CHA Mou
Sing Payson, Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor and Mr CHA Mou Daid
Johnson and an aunt of Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin who are
also directors of the Company. Ms WONG is also a director of
CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited and LBJ Regents Limited, both
are substantial shareholders of the Company under Part XV of
the SFO and together whose interests in the Company represent
the substantial interests of Cha Family in the Company.

Independent Non-Executive Director
Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry

GBS, BA, MBA, DBA(Hons), LLD(Hons) (Aged 65)

Dr CHENG was appointed director in 1989 and re-designated
as independent non-executive director of the Company in
1993. He is the chairman and executive director of New World
Development Company Limited, chairman and managing
director of New World China Land Limited, chairman of NWS
Holdings Limited, chairman and non-executive director of

New World Department Store China Limited, chairman and
executive director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited,
chairman of International Entertainment Corporation and non-
executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, all
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of them are listed on the Stock Exchange. Dr CHENG resigned
as the chairman and executive director of Haitong International
Securities Group Limited (formerly known as Taifook Securities
Group Limited) which is listed on the Stock Exchange in
January 2010. He is also director of a number of private
companies in Hong Kong and overseas. He is the chairman

of the advisory council for The Better Hong Kong Foundation
and standing committee member of the Eleventh National
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of the PRC. In 2001, Dr CHENG was awarded the
Gold Bauhinia Star by the HKSAR Government.

Independent Non-Executive Director
Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin

GBS, SBS, OBE, JP, DBA (Hons) (Aged 64)

Dr CHEUNG was appointed independent non-executive director
of the Company in September 2004. He is a fellow member

of both the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England

and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Dr CHEUNG is an independent non-executive
director of Hang Seng Bank Limited and HSBC Holdings plc,
both are listed on the Stock Exchange with HSBC Holdings
PLC also being dual listed on the London Stock Exchange. He
ceased to be an independent non-executive director of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and Sun Hung Kai
Properties Limited, which are listed on the Stock Exchangeg, in
April 2011 and December 2009 respectively. Dr CHEUNG is

a non-official member of the Executive Council of the HKSAR
Government but he will step down from the office upon the
restructuring of the Executive Council on 1 July 2012. He is
also the chairman of the Airport Authority Hong Kong, chairman
of the supervisory committee of Tracker Fund of Hong Kong,
chairman of the council of The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology. Dr CHEUNG was awarded the Gold
Bauhinia Star by HKSAR Government in 2008.
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Independent Non-Executive Director
Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus

BSSc, JP (Aged 64)

Mr CHEUNG was re-designated as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 26 March
2012. Prior to his latest re-designation, Mr CHEUNG was
appointed independent non-executive director in January
2006 and re-designated as a non-executive director of the
Company in December 2008. He was the chief executive

of Hong Kong Telecommunications Limited (later “Cable &
Wireless HKT Limited” (“Cable”)) from 1994 to 2000 and
deputy chairman of PCCW Limited (following a merger with
Cable) from August 2000 to February 2004. Mr CHEUNG is

an independent non-executive director of China Unicom (Hong
Kong) Limited, a company listed on the Stock Exchange, and
was an independent non-executive director of Taikang Life
Insurance Co. Ltd. from 2005 to 2011. He is also the chairman
of the board of directors of HKU School of Professional and
Continuing Education and the chairman of the board of
governors of Centennial College.

Independent Non-Executive Director
Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta

FCIH (Aged 65)

Ms HO was re-designated as an independent non-executive
director of the Company with effect from 10 April 2010. Prior to
her latest re-designation, Ms HO was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in 1994 and re-designated as a non-
executive director on 10 April 2008 upon her retirement of

all executive roles in the Group. She is a fellow member of

the Chartered Institute of Housing, Asian Pacific Branch,

and has over 40 years experience in property development,
investment and management. Ms HO is currently a member of
the executive committee, chairman of remuneration committee
and member of the special committee on elderly housing of the
Hong Kong Housing Society.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EEREEERBABZERE

Independent Non-Executive Director
Dr QIN Xiao

PhD Econ. (Aged 65)

Dr QIN was appointed as independent non-executive director
of the Company in July 2009. He is an independent non-
executive director of China Telecom Corporation Limited, which
is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and dual listed on
the Stock Exchange. Dr QIN was appointed an independent
non-executive director of AIA Group Limited in late September
2010 which securities were listed on the Stock Exchange in
late October 2010. He was also appointed as a non-executive
chairman of Amex Resources Limited on 2 April 2012 which
is listed on Australian Securities Exchange. Dr QIN retired as
the chairman of China Merchants Group in August 2010 and
ceased as the chairman and non-executive director of China
Merchants Bank Company Ltd., which is listed on the Stock
Exchange and dual listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, in
September 2010.

Senior Management
Mr CHAN Chi Ming

BSc (Aged 55)

Mr CHAN joined the Group in 1980. He is the head of Hong
Kong business unit and head of development and marketing
responsible for oversight of the Discovery Bay operations

in transport, club and city management services, property
investment and development, sales, marketing, leasing and
management of real estate in Hong Kong and Pearl River
Delta. Mr CHAN is director of a number of subsidiaries of
the Company and has over 30 years experience in property
development, sales and marketing of real estate.
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The directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of HKR
International Limited (the “Company”) announce the audited
final results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of its principal subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 217 to 229.

Results and Dividend

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2012 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 109.

The Directors declared the payment of an interim dividend
of HK8 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2012
(2011: HK7 cents) to the shareholders whose names appear
on the registers of members of the Company on 2 August
2012 and payable on 8 August 2012. There is no final
dividend proposed by the Directors for the year ended 31
March 2012.

The interim dividend represents the total dividend of HK8
cents per share (2011: HK18 cents) payable by the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Closure of Registers

The main and branch registers of members of the Company
will be closed on 1 and 2 August 2012 and on 29 and 30
August 2012 for the interim dividend and 2012 annual
general meeting (“AGM”) respectively. During the period, no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
interim dividend and attending the 2012 AGM, all transfers of
shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 31
July 2012 and 28 August 2012 respectively.
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Directors’ Report
FERHE

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 113 to 115.

Share Capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements on page 200.

Directors

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were set out on pages 42 and 43.

Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus was re-designated from non-
executive director to independent non-executive director on 26
March 2012.

In accordance with the Company'’s articles of association (the
“Articles”) and the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”), Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson, Mr CHA Mou
Zing Victor, Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson, Dr CHENG Kar Shun
Henry, Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus and Dr QIN Xiao shall
retire by rotation at the 2012 AGM. All the retiring directors,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election. Other
remaining directors will continue in office.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2012 AGM has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).
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The non-executive directors including the five independent
non-executive directors of the Company were not appointed for
a specific term but their respective terms of office are subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGMs of the
Company in accordance with the Articles. The rotation clause
sets up a mechanism to ensure that all Directors shall retire at
least once every three years and be eligible for re-election.

Each of the independent non-executive directors has made
an annual confirmation on independence pursuant to rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
independent non-executive directors meet the independence
guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules and are independent
in accordance therewith.

The Directors’ and senior management’s biographical details
are set out on pages 44 to 52.

Directors’ Emoluments

Particulars of Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements on pages 164 and 165.

Directors’ Interests in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of

the Directors and chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFQ")) as recorded in the register required to be
kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
which was adopted by the Company were as follows:
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(1) The Company

Long positions in shares of HK$0.25 each

(1) AL ]
IR ET1EO.255 T I 17,2 4B

Number of Ordinary Shares

LERYA
Approximate
Percentage
of Issued
Personal Family Corporate Other Share Capital
Name of Director Capacity Interests Interests Interests Interests Total R BTHRA
X gt BAEE RIE# & AL 5 Hitig s Yy ZEAES
CHA Mou Sing Payson Beneficial owner, interests 3,113,113 - 2,624600 633,137,861 638,875,574 4731
EE of a controlled (Note a) (Note b)
corporation and beneficiary of (fiska) (Fi3EDb)
discretionary trusts
ERBAEAN REEEERR
MEEEXTEA
CHA Mou Zing Victor Beneficial owner and 760,253 - - 629,498,383 630,258,636 46.68
B, beneficiary of discretionary (Note ¢) (Note b)
trusts (FisEe) (Fi5Dp)
ERBAARBBEERHEA
CHA Mou Daid Johnson Beneficiary of - - - 628,200,885 628,200,885 46.52
EE discretionary trusts (Note b)
BEEERHEA (Ft3Eb)
CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin Beneficiary of - - - 618,895,387 618,895,387 45.83
s discretionary trusts (Note b)
BEEERHEA (Ft3Eb)
WONG CHA May Lung Founder and/or beneficiary of - - - 627487463 627487463 46.47
Madeline discretionary trusts (Notes d&e)
TEXE MEETACAR/ &ZmA (MtsEdRe)
Ronald Joseph ARCULLI Beneficiary of a trust 241472 - - - 241472 0.02
B BREERA
CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham Beneficial owner 315,084 - - - 315,084 0.02
&0 EREEA
HO Pak Ching Loretta Beneficial owner 85,600 - - - 85,600 0.01
{OKis)=) ERBEAA
TANG Moon Wah Beneficial owner 135,200 - - - 135,200 0.01

0

BEakAA

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

The shares were held by Accomplished Investments
Limited, a corporation 100% owned by Mr CHA Mou Sing
Payson.

The shares belonged to certain but not identical
discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
and LBJ Regents Limited were the corporate trustees,
and the relevant directors were among the members of
the classes of discretionary beneficiaries.

As at 18 April 2012, the number of shares changed to
1,120,253 shares.

577,842,756 shares belonged to certain but not identical
discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
and LBJ Regents Limited were the corporate trustees,
and the director was among the members of the classes
of discretionary beneficiaries.

The director was, under two separate discretionary trusts
of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited and LBJ Regents
Limited were the corporate trustees, the founder and
member of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries
thereof. Such trusts were deemed to be interested in
49,644,707 shares in aggregate.

GER
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BEFemE

(2) Associated Corporation — Hanison

Construction Holdings Limited

Long positions in shares of HK$0.10 each

(2) HH ¥

5

F_l@

m
=7

Z o
5
S

EO.10B TR (7.2 4F B

Number of Ordinary Shares

— S A ot 4

LERYE
Approximate
Percentage
of Issued
Personal Family Corporate Other Share Capital
Name of Director Capacity Interests Interests Interests Interests Total EEBITRA
BB St BAER RIE#E NEER Hipie i By ZBMESL
CHA Mou Sing Payson Beneficial owner, interests of 668,830 - 563,877 107,836,435 109,069,142 22.37
&g a controlled corporation and (Note a) (Note b)
beneficiary of discretionary (MizEa) (WtzEb)
trusts
ERBMAA %T HEERR
BEEAZR
CHA Mou Zing Victor Beneficial owner and beneficiary 163,336 - - 107,150,201 107,313,537 22.01
B of discretionary trusts (Note b)
ERBEBARBBEARREA (BizEb)
CHA Mou Daid Johnson Beneficiary of - - - 107,150,200 107,150,200 21.98
EHE discretionary trusts (Note b)
BEEAREA (BizEb)
CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin Beneficiary of - - - 105,150,973 105,150,973 21.57
R+ discretionary trusts (Note b)
BEEAREA (BizEb)
WONG CHA May Lung Founder and/or beneficiary of - - - 106,996,924 106,996,924 21.95
Madeline discretionary trusts (Notes c&d)
TEXE WEETEZAR/SE@EA (BisEcad)
Ronald Joseph ARCULLI Beneficiary of a trust 51,878 - - - 51,878 0.01
EER EREREA
CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham Beneficial owner 58,018 - - - 58,018 0.01
B0 H EREBA
HO Pak Ching Loretta Beneficial owner 11,690 - - - 11,690 0.002

ftHg

EmfEBA

Notes:

(a)  The shares were held by Accomplished Investments Limited, a
corporation 100% owned by Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson.

(b)  The shares belonged to certain but not identical discretionary
trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited and LBJ Regents
Limited were the corporate trustees and the relevant directors
were among the members of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries.

(c) 105,150,973 shares belonged to certain but not identical
discretionary trusts of which CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
and LBJ Regents Limited were the corporate trustees and the
director was among the members of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries.

(d)  The director was, under another discretionary trust of which
LBJ Regents Limited was the corporate trustee, the founder and
member of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries thereof.
Such trust was deemed to be interested in 1,845,951 shares.

Save as disclosed above and for certain directors holding
non-beneficial interests in the share capital of some of the
subsidiaries of the Company as nominee shareholders, as at
31 March 2012, none of the Directors or chief executive of
the Company or their respective associates had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Interests in Competing

Business

During the year, the interests of the Directors in businesses

which competed or were likely to compete, either directly or

indirectly, with the businesses of the Group as required to be

disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules were set out as follows:

(1

The Honourable Ronald Joseph ARCULLI is an
independent non-executive director of Hang Lung
Properties Limited (“Hang Lung”) and also the non-
executive director of Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited
(“Hutchison”), Sino Hotels (Holdings) Limited (“Sino
Hotels”), Sino Land Company Limited (“Sino Land”) and
Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited (“TST Properties”).
The businesses of Hang Lung, Hutchison, Sino

Hotels, Sino Land and TST Properties involve at least
some of property investment, property development,
property management, treasury investment and hotel
management and ownership. Hang Lung, Hutchison,
Sino Hotels, Sino Land and TST Properties are all listed
on the Stock Exchange.

Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson is the chairman and non-
executive director of Hanison Construction Holdings
Limited (“Hanison”), an associated corporation of the
Company. He is also an independent non-executive
director of New World Development Company Limited
(“New World"), and Eagle Asset Management (CP)
Limited (“Eagle Asset”), manager of Champion Real
Estate Investment Trust (“Champion”) and Hong
Kong International Theme Parks Limited (“Theme
Parks”), owner and operator of Hong Kong Disneyland
Resort. The businesses of Hanison, New World, Eagle
Asset, Champion and Theme Parks involve at least
some of property investment, property development,
property management, treasury investment and hotel
management and ownership. Hanison, New World and
Champion are all listed on the Stock Exchange.

RN R
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(3)

4)

(%)

(6)

Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor is an independent non-
executive director of SOHO China Limited (“SOHQ")
and the alternate to Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson, an
independent non-executive director of New World. The
businesses of SOHO and New World involve at least
some of property investment, property development,
property management and hotel management and
ownership. SOHO and New World are both listed on the
Stock Exchange.

Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson is a non-executive director
of Hanison whose group’s businesses consist of
property investment, property development and property
management. Hanison is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin is a non-executive
director of Hanison whose group’s businesses consist of
property investment, property development and property
management. Hanison is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline is a non-executive
director of Chinney Investments, Limited (“Chinney”)
and Hon Kwok Land Investment Company, Limited
(“Hon Kwok”) whose groups’ businesses consist of
property development, property investment and property
management. Chinney and Hon Kwok are both listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Save for the independent non-executive directors and save as

disclosed above, none of the Directors was interested in any

business apart from the Group'’s businesses which competed

or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the

businesses of the Group during the year.

(3)

4)

(6)
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares or
Debentures

The existing share option scheme of the Company was
approved and adopted by the shareholders of the Company on
8 September 2011 (the “2011 Scheme”). The listing status of
shares to be granted under the 2011 Scheme was granted by
the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange on 9 September
2011. Under the 2011 Scheme, options may be granted, inter
alia, to the Directors. Details of the 2011 Scheme are set out in
the paragraph headed “Share Option Scheme” below and note
32 to the consolidated financial statements on page 200.

Upon the adoption of the 2011 Scheme, the share option
scheme adopted in 2002 (the “2002 Scheme”) was
terminated on 8 September 2011. There was no grant to, and
hence no beneficial exercise by, the Directors of any option
under both the 2002 Scheme and the 2011 Scheme during
the year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

T 5 i B B AR 2R Z RE R

RARIRIT BEARETE ([201146518]])
720119 A8H B AR R A% B #t 4 M IR
e MR AT ETHZ BB R20114F9A9
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Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 March 2012, the following persons (other than a
director or chief executive of the Company) had interests or
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Company’s shares of HK$0.25 each
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Approximate
Percentage of

Number of  Issued Share

Ordinary Capital

Name of Shareholder Capacity Shares {HEBETRA

BRE AR 54 LTEBRHEE ZHBAOET

CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited Corporate trustee 560,153,905 41.48
EBEXFEA (Note a)
(Ffzxa)

LBJ Regents Limited Corporate trustee 106,137,275 7.86
EERFTA (Note b)
(Mf5Eb)

Invesco Hong Kong Limited Investment manager/ 95,032,578 7.04
=IEREEEBRAA advisor of various accounts (Note ¢)
BEKE/ ZREEP 2R (Mi5Ece)

Notes:

(a) 560,153,905 shares were held by CCM Trust (Cayman) Limited
as corporate trustee of certain but not identical discretionary
trusts of which members of the classes of discretionary
beneficiaries comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming's issue.

(b) 106,137,275 shares were held by LBJ Regents Limited as
corporate trustee for certain but not identical discretionary trusts
of which members of the classes of discretionary beneficiaries
comprise the late Dr CHA Chi Ming’s issue.

(c)  The long position interest in 95,032,578 shares were held by
Invesco Hong Kong Limited as investment manager and/or
advisor of various accounts.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, no other
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

(a) 560,153,9050% J& 17 75 EACCM Trust
(Cayman) Limited SUEBZEA 1R ABE
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Share Option Scheme

Particulars of the 2011 Scheme as required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules are set out below:

(1) Summary of the 2011 Scheme

(a) Purpose

The purpose is to provide the participants who have
been granted options under the 2011 Scheme to
subscribe for ordinary shares in the Company with
the opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in
the Company and to encourage the participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole.

(b) Participants

All directors (including any executive and non-
executive directors), full-time employees and
consultants of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or
its associated companies are eligible to participate
in the 2011 Scheme.

(c) Maximum number of shares available for
issue

A maximum number of 135,027,436 shares of
the Company may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted or to be granted under the 2011
Scheme.

Ji Je it 3

RiE EMARRIARES 2011558 25
BESIT

(1) 20114 5 #) Z 1k 22

(a) BHY
B E’J%#E*ﬁﬁ%lli%iﬂﬁé
RTEREAREBEARAA
kZ/A%kT%A$ Té
A HE  UHEI2EEA
$@ﬁ&ﬁk$2%ﬁﬂA'”
NEEARFRHEE G 2 EBE -

(b) 2H%E
FEARR - EMBRARR, 3
HEENRIZAES (BIEFT
mﬁtﬁﬁﬁﬁ§$w£%ﬁ
B MERHFA L0115
2B

(c) Al FEITZHRZRINEH

HITEARZR2011F &R B
TR 2 T A B AR
TERITZARABRNEREZ R
135,027,4368% °

(d) Maximum entitlement of each

participant

The total number of shares of the Company issued
and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to each participant
(including both exercised and unexercised options)
under the 2011 Scheme or any other share option
scheme (if any) adopted by the Company in any
12-month period must not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue unless otherwise approved
by the shareholders of the Company.

Where any grant of options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules), would
result in the shares of the Company issued and

to be issued upon exercise of all options already
granted and to be granted to such person in any
12-month period up to and including the date of
the grant:

(i)  representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue; and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotations sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant in
excess of HK$5.0 million,

such grant of option shall be subject to prior
approval of the shareholders of the Company who
are not connected persons of the Company as
defined in the Listing Rules.
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(e)

Period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option

An option must be exercised within 10 years from
the date on which it is granted or such shorter
period as the Board (or the relevant committee
thereof) may specify at the time of grant.

Minimum period, if any, for which an
option must be held before it can be
exercised

At the time of the grant of an option, the Board (or
the relevant committee thereof) must specify the
minimum period(s), if any, for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised.

Period open for acceptance of an option
and amount payable upon acceptance

The offer of the grant of an option (of which the
date of grant must be a business day of the Stock
Exchange) must be accepted within 14 days from
the date on which the offer letter is delivered to the
participant and a consideration of HK$1.0 must be
paid upon acceptance.

(e)
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(2)

(h) Basis of determining the subscription

price of an option

The subscription price of an option shall be no less
than the higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant;

(i) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days of the Stock Exchange
immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of a share of the Company
on the date of grant.

Remaining life
The 2011 Scheme has a life of 10 years and will
expire on 7 September 2021 unless otherwise

terminated in accordance with the terms of the
2011 Scheme.

Details of options granted and
available for grant

No option was granted under the 2011 Scheme since

its adoption. The total number of shares in the Company
available for grant of options under the 2011 Scheme is
135,027,436 shares which represents 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company at the date of this annual
report (i.e. 20 June 2012).

(2)
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Continuing Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group entered
into the following transactions which constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules:

2010 Construction and Renovation
Services Framework Agreement

The Company and Hanison entered into the Construction and
Renovation Services Framework Agreement dated 20 January
2010 (the “2010 Agreement”) which governs the outline
terms upon which members of the Group and Hanison and its
subsidiaries (the “Hanison Group”) proposed to be engaged in
various construction projects (the “Construction Transactions”)
and various interior and renovation projects (the “Renovation
Transactions”) during the three financial years ending 31
March 2013 with total values to be subject to the following
annual caps.

Annual caps

the total value of the Construction Transactions in terms of
revenue recognition shall not exceed the following:

1 April 2010 — 31 March 2011 HK$600.0 million

1 April 2011 - 31 March 2012

HK$400.0 million

1 April 2012 — 31 March 2013 HK$400.0 million
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the total value of the Renovation Transactions in terms of
revenue recognition shall not exceed the following:

1 April 2010 — 31 March 2011 HK$50.0 million
1 April 2011 — 31 March 2012 HK$50.0 million
1 April 2012 — 31 March 2013 HK$50.0 million

The Directors are of the opinion that the 2010 Agreement
represents business that is in the ordinary and usual course of
the Group and reflect normal commercial terms that are arm'’s
length and are fair and reasonable so far as its shareholders
are concerned and are in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The 2010 Agreement, the terms thereof, the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the annual caps on the total
values of the Construction Transactions and the Renovation
Transactions (as set out above) were approved by an ordinary
resolution passed by the independent shareholders of the
Company at an extraordinary general meeting held on 9 March
2010.

In the event that the total value of the Construction
Transactions or the Renovation Transactions exceeds the
relevant annual cap amount for any year as set out above,
such transactions will be subject to review and re-approval by
independent shareholders of the Company at the next AGM or
at an extraordinary general meeting convened for the purpose.
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In accordance with rule 14A.37 of the Listing Rules, the
Directors have duly approved, and the independent non-
executive directors of the Company have reviewed the

internal auditor’s report and the independent auditor’s letter
pursuant to rule 14A.38 and confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions (the “Continuing Connected
Transactions”) were carried out in accordance with the
following principles:

(a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b) on normal commercial terms or terms no less favourable
than terms available to (or from) independent third
parties; and

(c) in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements
governing the Continuing Connected Transactions on
a fair and reasonable basis and in the interest of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

The Board has engaged the independent auditor of the
Company to report on the Continuing Connected Transactions
for the year ended 31 March 2012 pursuant to rule 14A.38
of the Listing Rules. The independent auditor of the Company
has provided a letter to the Board confirming that:

(a) for the year ended 31 March 2012, the aggregate
amount paid and payable by the Group in respect of the
Construction Transactions in terms of revenue recognition
did not exceed the annual cap of HK$400.0 million as
set out in the previous announcement dated 20 January
2010; and

(b) for the year ended 31 March 2012, the aggregate
amount paid and payable by the Group in respect of the
Renovation Transactions in terms of revenue recognition
did not exceed the annual cap of HK$50.0 million as
set out in the previous announcement dated 20 January
2010.
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Directors’ Interests in Contracts of
Significance

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Continuing Disclosure Requirements
under Rule 13.21 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules

In accordance with the continuing obligation set out in rule
13.21 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the following are

the details of the loan agreement with covenants relating to
specific performance on the controlling shareholders of the
Company as at 31 March 2012 pursuant to rule 13.18 thereof.
There exists no reporting obligation by the Company under
rules 13.17 and 13.19 of the Listing Rules.

The Company is the borrower of a loan agreement entered
into on 18 September 2007 (the “Loan Agreement”) for a
transferable revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$2,500.0 million with final maturity date falling
five years after the date of the Loan Agreement.

The Loan Agreement provides that the existing controlling
shareholder of the Company as defined below as Cha

Family, being a single largest shareholder (direct or

indirect shareholding) in the Company on the date of the

Loan Agreement together with its associate(s) shall be the
Company'’s single largest beneficial shareholder at any time
until the final maturity date and/or so long as the loan remains
outstanding.
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As at the date of the Loan Agreement, CCM Trust (Cayman)
Limited, LBJ Regents Limited and CDW Holdings Limited (all
being substantial shareholders of the Company within the
meaning of the SFO), Mingly Asia Capital Limited (not being

a substantial shareholder within the meaning of the SFO)

and Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson, Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor,

Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson and Ms WONG CHA May Lung
Madeline (all being directors of the Company) together had

an aggregate interest in 686,284,267 shares in the Company,
representing approximately 50.83% of the issued share capital
of the Company and collectively treated as a single controlling
shareholder of the Company under the term “Cha Family”. The
term Cha Family extends to include the interest of Mr CHA Yiu
Chung Benjamin after he became a director of the Company in
September 2010.

As at the date of this report, Cha Family holds an aggregate
interest in 673,149,146 shares representing approximately
49.85% of the issued share capital of the Company and

it remains a single largest beneficial shareholder of the
Company.

Continuing Disclosure Requirements
under Rule 13.22 of Chapter 13 of the
Listing Rules

In accordance with the requirements of rule 13.22 of Chapter
13 of the Listing Rules, the following are the details of financial
assistance and guarantees given for facilities granted to
affiliated companies of the Company as at 31 March 2012
pursuant to rule 13.16 thereof.

(1) Asat 31 March 2012, the Group advanced to Tung
Chung Station Development Company Limited
(“TCSDCL") an aggregate amount of HK$849.4 million.
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(1) H201243A31H  NEEE Tung
Chung Station Development Company
Limited ([TCSDCL J ) $2 fit & $£849.4
BEBTIZBN

TCSDCL is engaged in the development of Tung Chung
Station Package Il Project in Lantau Island, Hong Kong
in which the Group has 31% interest. The last phase of
the development was completed in 2009 and TCSDCL
is currently interested in the 2-story commercial centre
and 480 residential car parking spaces. The advances
were provided by the Group in the form of shareholder’s
loans in proportion to the Group’s shareholding interest
in TCSDCL, for the purpose of funding the working
capital requirements of TCSDCL. The advances are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed term
of repayments.

(2) Asat 31 March 2012, the Group advanced to Dazhongli
Properties Limited and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli
Group”) an aggregate amount of HK$4,820.6 million.

Dazhongli Group is engaged in the development of
certain properties in Jingan District, Shanghai, the PRC
in which the Group has 50% interest. The advances were
provided by the Group to Dazhongli Group in the form of
equity and loans in proportion to its shareholding interest
therein, for the purpose of financing the development
expenditure of Dazhongli Group. The advances are
unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no fixed terms
of repayments.

(3) Asat 31 March 2012, the Group also advanced to
several affiliated companies an aggregate amount of
HK$507.6 million.

As at 31 March 2012, the aggregate amount of advances
provided to and guarantees given for these affiliated
companies by the Group amounted to HK$6,177.6 million and
represented 42.6% of the consolidated net tangible assets of
the Group of HK$14,495.8 million as at 31 March 2012.
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The financial information of these affiliated companies at 31
March 2012 are set out in notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 176 to 183.

Management Contract

No contract for the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's five largest
customers was less than 30% of the total value of the Group’s
turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group'’s five
largest suppliers were less than 30% of the total value of the
Group’s purchases.

None of the Directors, any of their associates, or shareholders
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
interest in the Group’s five largest customers.

Investment Properties and Property,
Plant and Equipment

Details of the changes in the investment properties and
property, plant and equipment of the Group during the year
are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively on pages 168 to 175.

ZERB A TIN2012E3A313 2 BE
HENFELI76EEF183E v B H&
F3r18% 19 °

BHER

REFGRN NARWEREBERREF
FREBBL R XTFEEMNERERITH
BH e

BEE - MBS R AR AR Z
ol E2s

RAEE P AR T REANE R T
mORE - SR E A A R L

FEEEP RO

AEBRARFARZEXBEAERE
E=1@EELR30% °

AEBRAHEEAG A ZREHENAEER
REEEFE L R30% °

BEF REEABBEALHARFRE (B
EEMABEBARRIE BITRAS%A L
%)TEE?&EAZKE BRREPHEREME

o

Bk

BEW R Y ZE - s Kk
i

REBZHREYMEERYE WMEMRER
KEEAZEEFHBORENEISEE
FI7SEZ AT IEHRRMIFEI5 16 -

Properties Held for/under
Development, Sale and Investment
Purposes

Details of changes in properties held for/under development
purposes of the Group during the year are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements on page 191.

A summary of major properties held for/under development,
sale and investment purposes is set out on pages 235 to 240.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to approximately HK$6.0 million (2011:
approximately HK$3.0 million).

Human Resources

As at 31 March 2012, the total number of employees of the
Group in Hong Kong and overseas was 3,267 (2011: 3,268).
The Group has always regarded human resources as one of
the most important assets. It aims to provide a quality working
environment that attracts, retains and develops the right
people and to build a talented workforce with capabilities and
commitment to support our business growth. For key initiatives
during the year, please refer to pages 36 and 37.

Retirement Benefits Schemes

Information on the Group’s retirement benefits schemes is
set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 216 and 217.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
although there is no restriction against such rights under the
laws of the Cayman Islands.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

According to information available to the Company, the
percentage of the Company’s shares which are in the hands
of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total number of
issued shares.

Corporate Governance

The Company’s Corporate Governance Report is set out on
pages 77 to 101.

Five-Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 234.
This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements.

Review of the Annual Report by Audit
Committee

The Group’s annual report for the year ended 31 March 2012
has been reviewed by the audit committee established in
compliance with rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the relevant
provisions of the CG Code.

Independent Auditor

A resolution will be proposed at the 2012 AGM of the
Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, being
eligible and offering themselves for re-appointment, as the
independent auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
RREFS

CHA Mou Zing Victor

Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
Bl L [EFE FAACTE

&Y

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
& 20126 A20H
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Corporate Governance Report

The board of directors (the “Board” or the “Directors”) of the
Company presents its corporate governance report for the year
ended 31 March 2012.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company acknowledges the importance of good corporate
governance practices as a core element towards the success
of its business operation and it has been the Company’s
policy to manage the affairs of the Group in accordance

with appropriate regulatory standards and practices on good
corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied
with the code provisions and the enhanced code provisions
effective from 1 April 2012 and onwards of the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31 March 2012,
except for certain deviations from the code provisions A.4.1
(non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term), E.1.2 (chairman of the board should attend annual
general meeting) and some enhanced code provisions that
have been effected on and after 1 April 2012. Details of the
deviations with the considered reasons relating to the code
provisions A.4.1 and E.1.2 are duly set out below in the table.

Summarised below in the table are the corporate governance
principles and the code provisions containing in the CG Code
with which the Company is obliged to comply, and if not, with
considered reasons given. The Company has not yet complied
with the code provisions with remarks “N/A” under the column
“Compliance” in the below table during the year ended 31
March 2012 as those provisions were not effective until 1 April
2012.

e NE
TEEIRWME

ARAEZE ([EFgIR[EF]R=E
BZE20129F3A31B L FEZ X ERR

%o

e HERTN 5!
ARARERFEEEARALESIE
TEBEBR 2 HOEE - THRRE
EERARAFCEEARRERAEE
2 EHPHARE 2R -

EEERE NRFRREE201243H31H
HFENBETEARARIMERAF
(BT &% LR (T EmRAl)
MieRl14Fr S EERE TR ([EE
JASFAI]) 2 sFRMES R A2012F4 A 18 &
2 1B E BRI EBALSEAMES - ST RIESCE
AdlE (ERTTESREEIEEZAEH) -
FEI2K(EEEXTRBEERRBAFRXR
) RR2012F4A18 & 2 B AR EHD
BAESPAMESBRIN o SRR B AL 1R R
BEI2KENRBFEREAMERCAES
FIRTERA

ARG EETHREEEATAAZ D
EEARRARTAMEX  REAREE  H
FTERZAXRHEBAN TR -FRTERA
(857 — WPl [ NEA Z2FANEX
B2012F4 1B A MARRREZ
201293 A31H L FE A M REFZEST
AL -
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TEERRE
A Directors )
Al The board Exg
Principle EA

The board should assume responsibility for
leadership and control of the ssuer and Is
collectively responsible for promoting its
success by directing and supervising its

EBFRRRFFARERETANEL UEEEREREREEZTAFHLIE
RETARY)
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company

affairs.
Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F AR X &5 ANAZEEERER (BRENRERERER)

All Regular board meetings should be held v/ Regular Board meetings are held on a quarterly basis and ad hoc Board meetings are
at least four times a year involving active held as required. For year ended 31 March 2012, 6 Board meetings were held.
participation, either in person or through THESE BT AR N YNGR ERARRIESEEE -REE012F
other electronic means of communication, 3RBIALEER HERTAREEELH -
of a majority of directors. A regular meeting
does not include obtaining board consent Electronic means of communication is available for all Directors to attend every Board
through circulating written resolutions. meeting.

THEZEAREFEAREINA B PREFERETRASALEREEE SR

EHABAERLRERANES R HE

YERETRAAFEGLE-EZEE Attendance records of the Board meetings held during the year are set out in the

Hezv MeRNERER AR ARG section below headed “Attendances of AGM, Board and Committee Meetings”.

Exef- %?%$§@%Zﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬂ%?i(%%i@~§$&§§§§§2ﬁ%$J
—Fo

A.l.2 All directors are given an opportunity to v/ All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any matter in the agenda
include matters in the agenda for regular before the agenda for each regular Board meeting is issued.
board meetings. REEHESEERZRRLN 2RESHEAALDAEMNEERZTI AR
PRESEARERIBNZEIAES Ao
eEHeRER.

A.l.3 Notice of at least 14 days should be given v/ Dates of regular Board meetings in a particular year usually held in March, June,
of a regular board meeting. For all other September and November are scheduled towards the end of the immediately
board meetings, reasonable notice should preceding year to give all Directors adequate time to plan their schedules to attend the
be given. meetings.

BREZETHeZRELEL 4R BEARCEHESE R —RN3A 68 9ARILAES YERI—FFKE

M ERBREMHAESERE BE ARBRCEE RRESARMERARELFE SR

HEREH-
At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each regular Board meeting.
Reasonable advance notice would be given for other Board meetings.
RERERTCHES S SRV URENEXBE AN ESFEERNE RS
BrEr@t-
According to the Company's articles of association (the “Articles”), a Director may
waive notice of any meeting and any such waiver may be prospective or retrospective.
REANRZRAN ([ERA1]) ESTHEEMEH RS MARETRE
HAEREEL

Al4 Minutes of board meetings and board v/ Minutes of Board meetings, the audit committee meetings and other Board committees

committees meetings should be kept by

a duly appointed secretary of the meeting
and should be open for inspection at any
reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any director.
BEAZENERNEREFESSRE
TZEEEMERLS EREMESHL
AEBM EARAMERERHEEER
MEBHERERH-

meetings are kept by the company secretary. Same practice will be adopted for the
nomination committee which was set up on 26 March 2012.

EZe BENZEQRANESERE Qv eA IR ARNERST - R2012F
3ABERUZREEZEENERAMERAER

Minutes of the remuneration committee meetings are kept by the head of the human
resources department who is the secretary of the committee.

FHZE e e nRmEARZEeNE L ANARTZERE

Copies of all executed minutes and/or written resolutions are distributed to the Directors
as from time to time and are available for inspection by Directors/Board committees’
members as required.
BEEZEZLHR/NEDREZAAETRERTES TAINEGREREE
/222 ZBEKBEH-

Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR BT ANAZEEERER (OREMNREREEER)

A.15 Minutes of board meetings and board v/ Minutes of Board meetings and Board committees meetings record and contain
committees meetings should record in sufficient details of matters considered and decision reached including concerns raised
sufficient detail the matters considered or dissenting views expressed by the Directors.
and decisions reached including concerns EEEREFCR BN SR BRN TR RHTIFTEBEE 2B RATERMR
raised or dissenting views expressed by T AT RESRUNEANREIRENRYEER -
directors.

EZeREBETZEENS SRR EY Draft versions of minutes of Board meetings are sent to the chairman before circulated
e EEREERENRNRTIERAF to other Board members for comments prior to each next Board meeting.
BR RS HhEZ O EEFR TR e R ENRRE AR IREARTIN T —AESCLRANEA TS
REIRENRHER - EFeNEEMH-
Draft minutes of Board committees meetings are sent to all Board committees
members for their comments within a reasonable time after meetings are held.
EZEZEE OB LOER NS RARENGERAN B TEESEEZ
SEgKEEMN-
Final versions and signed minutes of Board/Board committees meetings are sent to all
Directors for record between the interval of two meetings.
B2 /30280 BV SRRREEE SR REINEAE VMR
2ErRESFIH

Al.6 There should be a procedure agreed by the v/ The Board has adopted written terms of reference of the Board and/or Board
board to enable directors, upon reasonable committees for Directors to seek independent professional advice on need basis upon
request, to seek independent professional request, at the Company's expense, to assist them to discharge their duties.
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the ETCORNEZCR /DEZCR SV EAREEE UFESERNEER
issuer's expense. BHBLEEER URNRERTELE EHERABARRIRE-.
ESeRZATRER RESRARE
X AEEEMBEATSRBUEEE
R BRABRBETAZM
The board should resolve to provide
separate independent professional advice
to directors to assist them perform their
duties to the issuer.

EEERIASIAESRUBUIEE
BBt MBETEEETANEE.

Al7 If a substantial shareholder or a director v/ Material transactions with connected persons, in general, would be considered
has a conflict of interest in a matter to be at physical Board meeting whereat the Directors, including INEDs, may consider,
considered by the board which the board if appropriate, granting approval in principle for the proposed transactions and
has determined to be material, the matter authorising the final forms thereof be further reviewed and approved by way of
should be dealt with by a physical board circulation of resolutions to all Directors or by an independent Board committee set up
meeting rather than a written resolution. for that purpose.
EEARRIESEEF R TEZRNE —REAT BRAEATHIZEARFIERNESZGEZZE EF (ARBE)R
HIEREZERREANTIRER A SR LUZRREERATRALMER FER UEKEN2BESUEMAZR
MEEENRTEZeER (MEEDR ZAN FHURIZEVESEZE S —SERRBEBHER S EE KR
#)FRRE Ao
Independent non-executive directors The Articles provide for voting and quorum requirements conforming to this code
(“INEDs") who and whose associates, provision whereby interested Directors are required to abstain from voting and shall not
have no material interest in the transaction be counted in the quorum.
should be present at that board meeting. ERMRFTARAATIBRIZRAREEASSRT Bl BEREZESAR
ERGPAG RABME N9EAERFzE ERERPGNEEAEA
WBVHTES ([BE])EZLEES
BhESEeE-

A.1.8 An issuer should arrange appropriate v/ Directors’ and officers’ liabilities insurance has been arranged by the Company with

insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its directors.
BOAEREES e EYNEETD
fEEENRR T

coverage in respect of legal action against directors of the Group. Annual review on the
coverage will be conducted in accordance with the Directors’ risk exposure arising out
of corporate activities.

ARAIERASEEZ AR EHNZRTIARERAEZRSRABEERE
WEERARAMES AL BESEE NERE ETRBERR -
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TEERRE
A2 Chairman and chief executive officer FERITHAH
Principle EA

There should be a clear division of
responsibilities to ensure a balance of
power and authority, so that power is not
concentrated in any one individual.

BEVEERESD LERENFRESWEE THENEEFRES—A -

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company

Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
FAIREX BF ANAZEEERER (BREMNRERERER)

A2.1 The roles of chairman and chief executive v/ The roles of chairman, deputy chairman and managing director of the Company
should be separate and should not be have been taken up by two different individuals who are brothers. Mr CHA Mou Sing
performed by the same individual. Payson is the chairman and Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor is the deputy chairman and
IRENTRAHNAGEERS L E managing director of the Company. Their respective roles and responsibilities were
A AREEE- set out in writing during the year. The chairman is mainly responsible for setting the

Company's direction in consultation with the Board and for the high-level oversight
The division of responsibilities between of management. While the managing director, with the support of executive directors
chairman and chief executive should be (“EDs"), is responsible for strategic planning of different business functions and day-to-
clearly established and set out in writing. day management and operation of the Group.
FRETHAH EBENS TREER ARAER BlERRESLLE BUAREBRALSZTRAALEE S
FEWAEESIE BEEARRARIZER SRRAERLARFTRAEFLLE MESTENRSE
RBE ERFRANEEH - TRFERENFAZZER HEARMNAMR I
REBEREEERENTE MESALRAENTES (E])NHHTE
BEARETREBBE RRERERBEERNEE

A2.2 The chairman should ensure that all v/ With the assistance of the EDs, the management and the company secretary, the
directors are properly briefed on the issues chairman seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising at
arising at board meetings. Board meetings and receive adequate documents and information about the Group in a
IEERRESSCR LAESHEE timely manner.

AEEAIHEIE - EHE BEERARNENGY T FRBENERZEEFIREZAGUESE
BRRELER TRBERHEREEASENXHRES

A2.3 The chairman should be responsible for v/
ensuring that directors receive, in a timely Starting in May 2012, the management has been sending out a monthly management
manner, adequate information which must update report to all Directors to update them on the business of the Company.
be accurate, clear, complete and reliable. RO12E5 AR EREERNEREZTAEBAEEEMBRE ARERDAER
IREAERRESRBYIGIRANE RS E
il WA BER L AERE M R T A
o

A2.4 The chairman is to provide leadership for v/ The chairman of the Board provides leadership and governance of the Board so as to
the board and ensure that the board works create the conditions for the Board to work effectively and perform its responsibilities.
effectively and performs its responsibilities ESeIREERERESE AESTSREANEENKYE UETERE:
with all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by it in a timely manner. The chairman leads meetings, ensures that all key and appropriate issues are
IRAGEEECRERESSHINE discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

B EBTRERE UREAAEEE IREIREE URRRERAEFERRENERETIH

HEEFEETA R
All Directors are consulted as to whether they wish to include any matter in the agenda.
The chairman of the Board designates the company secretary to draw up the agenda
by taking into account the matters, if any, proposed by the other Directors for inclusion
in the agenda. The chairman of the Board finally reviews and approves the agenda
before the agenda for each Board meeting is issued.
PREFVRANSTAENZERRIAZEN - ESQLIRRRAAINERT
EZeea R REZRRESRENEE (WA)JIAZEAR BRESEEEN
B AFEEEEIRSRENNER T EXTES.

A2.5 The chairman should take primary v/ The chairman of the Board, with the support of the company secretary, takes primary

responsibility for ensuring that good
corporate governance practices and
procedures are established.
TREATZEEML BRAAIGER FH
PEERERRER-

responsibility to establish good corporate governance practices and procedures of the
Company.

BSerRERANENRE TRERUARARFEEEREAREF ZEE-

Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR &F ANAZEEERER (ORENRERERER)
A.2.6 The chairman should encourage directors v Directors are encouraged to express their viewpoints to the Board's affairs and voice
with different views to voice their concerns, their concerns, if any.
allow sufficient time for discussion of issues ESRRBENESENSHRELBERBINER (NF) °
and ensure that board decisions fairly
reflect board consensus. Directors are provided sufficient time for discussion on issues in the meetings and the
IRESEHETRAERANESHRENA chairman directs discussions towards the emergence of a consensus view and then
FEEINEE LTELEERERHE sum up discussions so that all Directors understand what has been agreed.
e ARERESEMREHALREE Re#EL EFEGRMNERARER TRETEIRERLSRELLE F2
ZeMAH- BEZBERARAEMER
A.2.7 The chairman should at least annually hold N/A Directors, including INEDs, are invited to communicate directly with the chairman of
meetings with the non-executive directors TEA the Board whenever required.
(“NEDs") (including INEDs) without the RN EN AR ENERAES eI REHE.
EDs present.
IREZVEFHIHTET ([FHE]) The chairman of the Board acknowledges this new requirement and will arrange
(BEBE)BI-RRBHELENS meeting. The compliance with such new requirement for the year ending 31 March
ER 2013 will be set out in the Corporate Governance Report (“CG Report”) containing in
the 2012/2013 annual report.
EXeIRBRRERMAELNLH S N2013F3A31H LRFEEFZIA
EREE BEIIR20122013FEFRTHEEE RS ([REERRE]) K-
A.2.8 The chairman should ensure that v/ The chairman of the Board is accountable to shareholders and ensures that there is an

appropriate steps are taken to provide
effective communication with shareholders
and that their views are communicated to
the board as a whole.

TR ERRFIEER SR AR ERR
RS D RBERIREE R A EERE
HEZE-

effective communication with the shareholders and their views are communicated to
the Board as a whole.
EZeIRMRREEREREGSAIER FHMNERTEEEEMEES

&= o
=)

A shareholder communication policy was established by the Board in late March
2012 which sets out the Company's policy for maintaining an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and investment community. The policy is subject to regular review by the
Board to ensure its effectiveness.

RERARERRRFEERER T EFER2012438 TAHERFEBEE -
WA EZBUR AT R AT A RRR A A Al o

Shareholders are invited at any time to send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the company secretary whose contact details are as follows:
REATREMREEAAINENEZLREMERER  EHAERNT

By Email By Mail By Telephone/Fax
el £l Bi#/BE
Email: cs@hkri.com The Company Secretary Tel:  (852) 2238 1188

FH : cs@hkri.com
23(F, China Merchants Tower, ~ Z3&: (852) 2238 1188
Shun Tak Centre, EE: (852) 2521 0705
168-200 Connaught Road
Central, Hong Kong
NGIE
AREEEREBER AT
B75 T #i89168-200%
EEPLBERAE23E

The company secretary is responsible for forwarding communications relating to
matters within the Board's direct responsibilities to the Board and communications
relating to ordinary business matters, such as suggestions, inquiries and customer
complaints, to the relevant executive officers of the Company under the direction of the
chairman of the Board.

ARNERELAREE S ERARZENERNSBETESERKESE
TR2ETEEBAREEEENERNS NES SANEPRF FETA
ARAENTHAE

(852)

HKR International Limited Fax:  (852) 2521 0705
(852)
(852)
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company A4 Appointments, re-election and removal R -EEMESR
COd: Provisions CompIEnce (includ‘in/g\ any devEtions and considered reasons) Principle B
RELES g3 ARAZEREARE (QREANRREERER) There should be a formal, considered and NEENZARFEIN BEEZRVAZHE SRELTHHFHEZEFT
A.2.9 The chairman should promote a culture v The chairman of the Board has discharged this responsibility properly. transparent procedure for the appointment B FTEEFLERIGE FREEMES-
of openness and debate by facilitating the ESeTRCEENETERE of new directors and plans in place for
effective contribution of NEDs in particular orderly succession for appointments. All
and ensuring constructive relations directors should be subject fo re-election at
between EDs and NEDs. regular intervals.
FRERBAR BE RO (2
EZ (ERIRENE ) HESSEHAN Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
SE THRAHERENE AR ES Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
,@@mﬁ% AERRIE 2R FHEY e ANAZEEERER (AEEMERREERE)
o A4l NEDs should be appointed for a specific X The Articles have provisions for rotation and re-election of all Directors. As required by
A3 Board composition ERgdA term, subject to re-election. the Articles, at each annual general meeting (“AGM”), one-third of the Directors for
Principle EA FHENZAEARELR WEERE the time being, or if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
The Board should have a balance of EZORREFTAZBMAGELERIHSSE HELHHNE (BEBE)LN HERo nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
skills and experience appropriate for the B EZ IR L BAEH 5 A fE L 1 7 7B - that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
requirements of the issuer’s business and A4.2 All directors appointed to fill a casual v/ years and any Director appointed by the Directors shall hold office only until the next
Should include a balanced composition of vacancy should be subject to election by following general meeting of the Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or
£Ds and NEDs (including INEDs) so that shareholders at the first general meeting until the next following AGM (in the case of an addition to the Board) and be eligible to
independent juagment can be effectively after appointment. Every director, including offer for re-election.
exercised, those appointed for a specific term, should ERAAEE 2 REEAGBERAREREE 2K ﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂ‘liﬁi ' E’\\E%%@
: be subject to retirement by rotation at least FRg ([REFE)) L ERAEREE =S (XBEEZHE WHF = HEXK
» : Corporate Governance Practices of the Company once every three years. AIEEAERPR=D—2 &%) AR EUEE EBRESFHAE= ﬁWﬁUﬁi
Code Provisions Compliance including any devatons and consideed reasors) G BRI TR TR E O E SR ’J\—/A ﬂﬂ%ﬁ%é&zm% FHBEARA PABRRASAL (NEHERS
FAKL B ARDZERERRE (AREARERERER) BEEABMERBRRAS L ETRRE B EETF‘HxiiAﬁm(ZZD§§$6%WIRE) TAEREEESE
A3.1 The INEDs should be identified in all v/ The Board currently comprises fourteen directors, five are EDs and nine are NEDs of BoGRES( g?ﬁ_ﬁ?‘éi&%ﬁﬁ@%%)ﬁé
corporate communications that disclose the whom five and hence, with more than one third of the Board, are INEDs. It constitutes BRRE ELE=F R All NEDs and INEDs of the Company were not appointed with specific term, but are
names of directors. . X a balanced Board with strong independent element. Each Director possesses skills and subject to the aforesaid rotation clause in the Articles.
ERAERESLRNARBAT Bk experience appropriate to the business of the Group and their particulars are duly set AAFREAAE R EEYEETEAAE HABTERANA LT HEREY
HEBEH R out in the heading of “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this HEEo
g;ﬁ%gﬁgmﬁﬁm CAERLHERNLESRE MERERERE (L A43 Serving more than 9 years could be NLA Re-election of each eligible Director is subject to separate resolution to be approved by
BEN=H—HESeNRE) ABE -2 S0 LR EEE B ARSEE YK relevant to the determination of a NED's TEH shareholders in the AGM of the Company.
T REEHEEEARCELE Y BERER 257 BREEHINAERN independence. If an INED serves more EEGRGERNESAEARAREFEUBIAZRY A BRRBA-
[EERSEEEAEERE —BR- than 9 years, his further appointment
should be subject to a separate resolution Directors acknowledge this new requirement effective on 1 April 2012. The compliance
Composition of the Board, by name and category of directors is disclosed in all to be approved by shareholders. The with such new requirement for the year ending 31 March 2013 will be set out in the CG
corporate communications. papers to shareholders accompanying that Report containing in the 2012/2013 annual report.
Exev AR BEEHARERRANE AT ARE- resolution should include the reasons why EERMEEN012F4R1 B £HMFTH T - R2013F3A31 B (EREFE BT ZH
the board believes he is still independent MEMFRE  BEIN20122013FEFRPNEEE AREN -
A list of the composition of the Board, audit committee, remuneration committee and and 5h°“'g be re-elected.
nomination committee has been published on the websites of the Company and the &giaf*ﬂﬁﬁﬁi"ﬁﬂ% i Wé&ﬁgiﬁ
Stock Exchange. BOF | RIAMER— 1I%)f R-EBELE
30 BREAR FHZRERRAZEENAELERTHRARARBR EEBR0T ARDERTEINELAR
B Bk o RVARMBREZRB BHZARR
, — : , , — , , REGREN AT EHEEZE /M
A3.2 An issuer should maintain on its website v/ An updated list of the Company's Directors identifying their role and function and

and on the Stock Exchange’s website an
updated list of its directors identifying their
role and function and whether they are
INEDs.

97 AETEELATE IR A2 AR £ R A7

REUESHNETEXELE WIIAELA
ENBE ULEHERLBE

whether they are INEDs is maintained on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
ARAIGENTHESACNE
) R 32 P 0 A o

NRARDBENESEXEREERENAR

BRZBANLNBBLAL R EREEN
JRE
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EERRE

A5 Nomination committee

REZERE

Code Provisions

FRIEX

A5.1 Issuers should establish a nomination
committee which is chaired by the
chairman of the board or an INED and
comprises a majority of INEDs.
EOANERUREEES RAESEIR
FEEREER KEANBEGRS

Compliance

5
/

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRAZEXERER (BREMRERERER)

A nomination committee was set up in late March 2012 comprising Mr CHA Mou Sing
Payson, the chairman of the Board, who acts as the chairman of the committee and
three INEDs namely, Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin, Ms HO Pak Ching
Loretta and Dr QIN Xiao.

REZEERN12FATAKL KEREEESIRERBEL (KREZE
2IR)R=LBE ARREREL WHARLRFREEL

85

o
A5.2 The nomination committee should be v/ Written terms of reference of the nomination committee have been duly adopted by the
established with specific written terms Company when the committee was set up.
of reference which deal with its authority ARARREEZEERUNEAREEARELE -
and duties. It should perform at least the
prescribed specific duties. The terms of reference of the nomination committee require, inter alias, the nomination
REZESNKUKESE] HARMNHE committee comprises not less than 3 members with a majority of INEDs and the
BHE BRGPAHBRENET -REZE chairman must be either an INED or the chairman of the Board. The principal role
BeRESBOMIANSERE and function of the nomination committee is to consider and recommend to the Board
suitably qualified persons to become members of the Board. The committee is also
responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board on a regular
basis and when required.
REZECRESERE (EHRE) REZSCATIR=ZEFEN A4 X
BOKBUERBERT R AR LRSS ESCIREL -REZEQTERE
RBREAERRNEFSHEABSBERTREESNAL ZEENEEEH
FERTERRIEFTEORE  ABRAK-
A5.3 The nomination committee should make v/ The terms of reference of the nomination committee (including its role and function)
available its terms of reference explaining are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
its role and the authority delegated to it by REZEQHEGE (REERBREE) TRAR A RERAHBEER -
the board by including them on the Stock
Exchange's website and issuer's website.
REZ B QIR R BT AR
FRREARESE REAARKESE
ERTHMES -
A5.4 Issuers should provide the nomination v/ The nomination committee is entitled to seek independent professional advice, at the
committee sufficient resources to perform Company's expenses, if it considers necessary in order to perform its duties.
its duties. Where necessary, the nomination REZBCEREERAVEIRENS HRBEVEX£ER BRMALARE-
committee should seek independent
professional advice, at the issuer's expense,
to perform its responsibilities.
BITARAREZEGRUETRERIUNE
TEBE - RAZEERTBERTES
E EESKBEVEXER BRAETA
Ffto
A5.5 Where the board proposes a resolution N/A Directors acknowledge this new requirement effective on 1 April 2012. The compliance
to elect an individual as an INED at the T with such new requirement for the year ending 31 March 2013 will be set out in the CG

general meeting, it should set out in the
circular to shareholders and/or explanatory
statement accompanying the notice of the
relevant general meeting why they believe
he should be elected and the reasons why
they consider him to be independent.
FEZERNREAE LREAERER
EATRBE BEHERRAGBEFEEMN
BRI A /St B B R JEER G
REZERREEEZAALNERIK
MR RZAATBELATHERRE -

Report containing in the 2012/2013 annual report.
E=WREEN201254A 1B £ AT - R2013F3A31 B IERFF - T
MEMFE  BHFIN20122013FEF RPN LEERREN-

A6 Responsibilities of directors EEER
Principle B4
Every director must always know his BEEFRBABHRIERETAEFNRE URETAGEET S FHEEH
responsibilities as a director of the Issuer RER-
and its conduct, business activities and
development.
Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR B ANAZEEERER (ORENREREEER)
A6.1 Every newly appointed director should v The Board is responsible for the management of the Company, which includes
receive a comprehensive, formal and formulating business strategies, directing and supervising the Company's affairs. EDs
tailored induction on appointment, and are in charge of different businesses and functional divisions in accordance with their
subsequently he should receive any respective areas of expertise.
briefing and professional development EZeRRANAICER BRENELERR EEREBARAZER -HER
necessary to ensure that he has a proper BEENEXEEAETRBMAMNER KRB -
understanding of the issuer’s operations
and business and is fully aware of his Upon appointment, every Director is given comprehensive documentations of the
responsibilities under statute and common business operation of the Group and regulatory and statutory requirements as director
law, the Listing Rules, legal and other together with brief meetings with senior executives and department heads of the Group.
regulatory requirements and the issuer's BRESTNEZANSRREMASEEREEC2EX RMEBESHEZIE
business and governance policies. PIREREE  TEASESRITBAS KRB AEFHESH -
BERZENESIRERZARESS
H FAREREMRORERT Hig Directors are provided with continuous updates on latest changes or material
NEEGHENNABRELELE  UER development in the statutes, the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices relating
ST ARBIEREBRITE RS AR to the duties and responsibilities of directors and are encouraged to participate
R URTE2HERNFEEH R @A in continuous professional development seminars to update their knowledge for
THHA EEREMET R T RET discharging directors’ responsibilities.
ARER REARE TRBE o ESTRRERESHE RBBNER  ETRA CEERERNZIEIRE
AEREGENAN ANEIENERD2AFESXERANE UENKER
TEERAENAZ-
A.6.2 The functions of NEDs should include the v/ The written terms of reference of NEDs have incorporated the functions of NEDs as
prescribed specific duties. prescribed.
FHENBE R OB ANEERE FHE EAREGED BEEAMHNETEREE -
A6.3 Every director should ensure that he can v/ Directors continue to give appropriate time and attention to the affairs of the Company.
give sufficient time and attention to the ESRERAARAEBETEERERET -
issuer's affairs and should not accept the
appointment if he cannot do so.
GREZERRE M LR 00E RIFHIU
REETANER SATEERZE.
A6.4 The board should establish written v/ The Company has adopted the Model Code (including amendments as effected from

guidelines no less exacting than the

Model Code as set out in Appendix 10

to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)

for relevant employees in respect of their
dealings in the issuer's securities.
EZeRNEMERERERTAZS SR
REEMEES #Hol WD EZ T LR
AR SEI0RT B R TR ([1R £ A1)

=0 ez

time to time) as its own code of conduct to regulate securities transactions by Directors.
All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code during the year
from 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012 (both days inclusive). The Model Code has been
extended to and has become equally applicable to dealings in the securities of the
Company by members of senior management and relevant employees who are likely in
possession of unpublished price-sensitive information in relation to the Company.
ARRIBFEMRETA (AETRERZET) ERRABADAEZENESFR S
WA EARRIELABE NG ARAZBESFHERR  KEN2011F4
A1EE201263A31B8 2F (FRMABREERN) —EETEETRAHF 2 HE
£8 REFHEBEREZEAKERNEEERAERETHHB AR RIRER MG
BREFREN EHES -
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EERRE
Code Provisions
SF A&
A.6.5 All directors should participate in

continuous professional development

to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed
and relevant. The issuer should be
responsible for arranging and funding
suitable training, placing an appropriate
emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director.
MEESR2EFEFEER ERIE
MEMBREE NRRELZETAAS
HEARDEMBNER T HESSEL
BRI ABEERHSENEINR
HEBEE NURBTEE LTARES
mAL BEREE-

Directors should provide a record of the
training they received to the issuer.

BERABTARGAEZIEINLE -

Compliance
By
v/

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRZEEXERER (BREMRRREERER)

Directors acknowledge of the new requirement under code provision A.6.5 of the

CG Code regarding continuous professional development. The compliance with such
requirement for the year ending 31 March 2013 will be set out in the CG Report
containing in the 2012/2013 annual report.
ERRBOEENTIRIALSKBARBZIXERMNITRT - N2013F3A31H
IEREEBTHRTE 2T HEIIR20122013FEFRP N EERREN

The Company will make funding arrangement upon Directors’ request for suitable
trainings.

ARAIEHEESZNRRG A BN EIREEAR -

Directors have been informed of the new requirement in providing their training record
to the Company effective on 1 April 2012. Details of how each Director complies with
such requirement for the year ending 31 March 2013 will be set out in the CG Report
containing in the 2012/2013 annual report.
EFEREE201264 18 EBBARAD AR EE L SEOFATE S EFH
@gﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁt%ﬁEE?%ﬁEZ%%-%ﬁﬂ%mu@m&¢§¢ﬁ¢ﬁ¥%
REEN -

A7

Supply of and access to information

87

ARRHRRER

A7.1

Principle

Directors should be provided in a timely
manner with appropriate information in the
form and quality fo enable them to make an
informed decision and perform their duties
and responsibilities.

Code Provisions
SRR

For regular board meetings, and as far as
practicable in all other cases, an agenda
and accompanying board papers should be
sent, in full, to all directors. These should
be sent in a timely manner and at least 3
days before the intended date of a board or
board committee meeting (or other agreed
period).
EzxeTHesNFREREBER TR
PHREER2RES WEDEHEE
TEFEYHETZE8ER A AN3K
Al (kiR EMEEN) KL - EXEH
oA ERENE A THER T IMERR
PA E&HE-

Compliance
&F
v

FA
EZRRIEHEENENEN AVARZERREFXHELEEHEHNEN
FEHRE Wat BT RBERE L

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)
ARAZEXERER (ARENRRREERER)

Board papers are sent to all Directors/Board committee members at least 3 days (or
such other period as agreed) before the relevant meetings.
ESe N EREEENAES =X (REMBTHR) 2 228ES 8%

ERRERR-

A7.2

Management should supply the board and
its committees with adequate information,
in a timely manner, to enable it to make
informed decision.
ERERNEFERAETZE8RMER
ROERER NEESEHEZEEH
BROER TELAE

The board and each director should have
separate and independent access to the
issuer’s senior management to enable him to
make further enquiries for information other
than that was provided where necessary.
EZENBUESREATERETAR
REBABNB LR CARAT EREM
BRENERIIMEE—FER-

The Company continues to supply the Board and the Board committees with adequate
information in a timely manner.

ARAREIRMEEE R ESE R ERRERRNEH

There are formal and informal contacts between the Board and the senior management
from time to time at Board meetings or other events.

EEENEEEEARTRRESZ SRR AN A FEARFEANRR -

A.6.6 Each director should disclose to the v/ Each Director has informed the Company in a timely manner for any change, the
issuer at the time of his appointment, and number and nature of offices held in public companies or organisations and other
in a timely manner for any change, the significant commitments.
number and nature of offices held in public EEZERMENARARARTALMETBRUNEE HEREMEAREZEER
companies or organisations and other FFBAARR e
significant commitments. The identity of the
public companies or organisations and an The Company will disclose the changes, if any, in accordance with regulatory and
indication of the time involved should also statutory requirements.
be disclosed. The board should determine AREABEKBREAIRERATREEZE (BF)
for itself how frequently this disclosure
should be made.
BEESENERZARAETAREE
RARD RISk ABEEEBA NS E RIEE
UREMERFEE R EREMEEE
RERE  WWHINTEREMS RORRA
AlFASN AR RET L EEEERG
P RNEH EXQEETREERS
AEH— KRB
A6.7 INEDs and other NEDs, as equal board v/ NEDs including INEDs have regularly attended and participated in the Board and
members, should give the board and Board committee meetings.
any committees on which they serve the IR ERERENE T BLE RS HEECeREECZ 89S -
benefit of their skills, expertise and varied
backgrounds and qualifications through Attendance records of Board and Board committee meetings during the year and of the
regular attendance and active participation. 2011 AGM are set out in the below section headed “Attendances of AGM, Board and
They should also attend general meetings Committee Meetings”.
and develop a balanced understanding of RER EZERESSLECEENNIRRFE 2 HEREHIIN T [RE
the views of shareholders. 58 EZeRZEQEHIHREE] R
BEREMIFNEERBAMESHER
SwMESeKE EEALEESS
REANHEZEENENEEENE S
WEBL2HEHE AR ZENRR
TRNE R REBIEL TR oML
FREAE HARRRNELAALEN
THe
A.6.8 INEDs and other NEDs should make a v/ NEDs including INEDs, continue to make appropriate suggestions and comments on

positive contribution to the development of
the issuer’s strategy and policies through
independent, constructive and informed
comments.
BERHMFNERERREEY R
FURERENERE BT AGIERE K
TR fEL FHER

the Company's strategy and policies at the Board/Board committee meetings.
FHEREBERENESE /EFRZEC TR HARAIZ KB RECRIREE
ERELER-

A73

All directors are entitled to have access

to board papers and related materials

to enable the board to make informed
decisions on matters placed before it.
Queries raised by directors should receive a
prompt and full response, if possible.
MEESHEREHES S EBE
HABESe R RZES e SHE
HAEERENRTE - HRESRLMMA
B NERTRELARR2EMEE-

Board papers, minutes of meetings and related corporate documentation are made
available for inspection by all Directors.

BEEeXM eRLBREENARXHITHEEESEM-

All Directors are entitled to have access to the senior management who will respond to
queries raised by th@_ Directors promptly.
FEEENIUREREEEAS UEHMRAREEEEHRN-
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EER/ME

B. Remuneration of Directors and Senior Managementand EERFHREEABNFHMEESETIH
Board Evaluation

B.1 The level and make-up of remuneration and disclosure M R ZEAKERARK
Principle EA
The issuer should disclose fts directors’ BIANBRBEAEZNEHEREMEZIEENFR  RR G IEHHEELEH
remuneration policy and other BEF U EARENE REREZZHFENKR
remuneration related matters with formal
and transparent proceaure for setting policy
on EDs’ remuneration and all directors’
remuneration packages.

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
SF AR XX &5 ANAZLEERER (ORENRERRERER)

B.1.1 The remuneration committee should v/ The remuneration committee of the Company was established on 2 December 2004
consult the chairman and/or chief executive and is regulated by the terms of reference approved by the Board from time to time.
about their remuneration proposals for The terms of reference of the remuneration committee were revised during the year to
other EDs and have access to independent make in line with the recent amendments of the CG Code and the related Listing Rules
professional advice if necessary. effective on 1 January 2012 and 1 April 2012. The full text of the revised terms of
HMZE e EMNENTHMEZZN reference of the remuneration committee is available for viewing on the websites of the
TRER/IATHEH RNEEE ER Company and the Stock Exchange.

SRBUZEER- ARAZEMEE SR2004F 122857 WHEE S HERTRELR 2 BES
BFRE -REN FMEENBESHED AR R201261 818 k012F
B.1.2 The remuneration committee’s terms of v 4RIRRENZ CEBRTAREBE LT RAINER  CETNEHHE S RES

reference should include, as a minimum,
the prescribed specific duties.

HMZEg v BESERZ D OEMTH
ZHEBRE-

Bz 2XARAARRERABIERE-

The terms of reference of the remuneration committee require, inter alias, the
remuneration committee comprises not less than 3 members with a majority of INEDs.
On 26 March 2012, Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin ceased to be
member of the remuneration committee and the current members of the remuneration
committee are Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor, Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry, Mr CHEUNG
Wing Lam Linus and Dr QIN Xiao with Dr CHENG takes a lead role as the chairman
thereof.

FMZEBeBESEERT (HPeR) FHEESgBE TP R=4ESEK AP
REBAMENEBBE 2012930260  RERBLTBEREMEEEHKE -
REFHZESNKE AERM LA BREB LT RAREERZERL Hp
SR+ ATMEEETR EEFEAE.

The principal role and function of the remuneration committee is to exercise the powers
of the Board to review and determine the remuneration packages of individual EDs
and senior management, including salaries, bonuses, benefits in kind, share options
and other plans. Such factors as remuneration paid for comparable positions, time
commitment and responsibilities of the EDs and senior management as well as the
Company's remuneration policy will be considered.

FMEEe TERBRBEATRESSE) UBEERRIEARNNERSREE
BABZEMGER e T4 EVHR BERERAMAE -FHEESH
ZEEHERSEEEASUELBBAME T 2HM T 2REREE U
RARRZGMBRER R

B.1.3

B.1.4

Code Provisions
SRR

The remuneration committee should make
available its terms of reference, explaining
its roles and the authority delegated to it
by the board by including them on the
Stock Exchange’s website and the issuer’s
website.

HMWZ 8 SRR R RBETAEE LA
RABESE REAACRESEER
THNES -

The remuneration committee should

be provided with sufficient resources to
perform its duties.
ﬁ%%%@ﬁﬁ%f#%ﬁ}f%ﬁiﬁ%@ﬁﬁ%

e

Issuers should disclose details of any
remuneration payable to members of senior
management by band in their annual
reports.
ETAREEERNRFMERRESR
ERABNMEFE.

Compliance
&F
v/

89

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)
ANAZEEERER (ORENRERERER)

During the year under review, no remuneration committee meeting was held but
there were three rounds electronic communication exchanges among the committee
members to review and approve proposals in respect of (a) internal guideline on ex-
gratia payment for senior executives; (b) 2011/2012 bonus proposal for the Company
including EDs and senior management; and (c) extension of the employment contract
of an ED. The records of the circulated electronic communication of the remuneration
committee during the year are duly set out in the below section headed “Attendances
of AGM, Board and Committee Megtings”.

REBFER FHEZESUWRERAERE BETTZAETRARHRIE
FHBEEBASRAIRE 2 WEES: DBERERSEERAR ZAAR
201120125 E 2 efl i ROER—EHEZEEANHA -RENFHZEEE
FRABH AR TX [RREE S REEQERIHLFE| —R-

Directors’ remuneration (save for directors’ fees which are subject to shareholders’
approval at general meeting) is determined with reference to prevailing market
situation, their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group and the Group’s
remuneration policy. Under the terms of reference of the remuneration committee,

the remuneration committee should make recommendation to the Board on the

policy and it has the delegated responsibilities to determine the specific remuneration
package of the EDs and the senior management. The EDs are entitled to salary and
discretionary bonus which are subject to individual and the Company’s performance
and contribution to retirement scheme under each of their respective employment
contracts as an executive of the Company. The NEDs are entitled to a director’s fee for
their service which was determined by the Board, pursuant to the authority given by the
shareholders at general meeting from time to time, with reference to their duties and
responsibilities in the Company and the prevailing market situation. Currently, a sum of
HK$100,000 per annum being the basic fee for acting as a NED and additional fees of
HK$100,000 per annum will be paid to each member, who is NED, of each of the audit
committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of the Company.
EZ3Me (RESHERRRAG LN N2EMR KERERASREZ
BERBL URASE ZMBRNET BEFHZS e BEGE FHE
RN NESERIES VAREAAETHERRBERAR 255
B8 - RERES BHERRATHABMEZNES S OB MR R EA R
ARAREMERZ MBEARERGEES FRETRR ESNEHESE
REARAIRRTERREAEG LR ZEN  W2ERRARR BB RE LN
REATRAMERE - BIIXNTHERNE 2 EXHMERBEL000008 T MIFHERE
RANAEREEE FMEEERREZECZEZBINGEENS (RBEZE
23t) BE 100,000 T °

In general, the managing director, who is a member of the remuneration committee,

is involved in recommending proposals on the remuneration of other EDs for due
consideration and approval by the remuneration committee. However, he abstains
from voting when his remuneration is considered by the remuneration committee. His
remuneration is recommended by the chairman and reviewed and determined by the
remuneration committee. No Director will participate in the discussion and review of
his own remuneration. The remuneration committee can access to professional advice
if considered necessary. Remuneration details of the Directors and senior management
for the year ended 31 March 2012 are disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 164 and 165.

—RiE EXLEE (RANATMZE SR E ) e HitnE 2 S BRMAE
BoAM RERZEEZRANEH RARKERZ SSELB I MeBaERE
Ba THFMEEeRMRET HEEF 2N RRENRESE 2 EM-
FMEEGANERRERERECREEER -HB2012F3R31BILFEZES
e FERELI4E RE165E 2 fra A BRERMFT12HE -
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EERRE

Accountability and Audit

MEREY

C.1

Financial reporting

M ER

C.l1

Principle

The board should present a balanced,
clear and comprehensible assessment of
the company’s performance, position and
prospects.

Code Provisions
SRl

Management should provide sufficient
explanation and information to the board to
enable it to make an informed assessment
of financial and other information put
before it for approval.
ERERNESSRERDNERLE
K REZ @A R RR G MERN
BREMER  (EHERRNTE -

Compliance
&5
v/

B
EERETE BHREENTELANZE AR

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRZEEXERER (BRENRRREBRER)

Directors are provided with sufficient explanation and Company's business and
financial information to support them in decision making.

EENEREANBENABARAES R BHERABREFEHIRTE

91

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company

C.1.2

Management should provide all members
of the board with monthly updates giving a
balanced and understandable assessment
of the issuer's performance, position and
prospects in sufficient detail to enable

the board as a whole and each director to
discharge their duties under rule 3.08 and
Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules.
ERERGANESENEREENE
R S BRETANRER  BHBRRK
AR ATERSRIEREHE AR
REZRETLMARBEIBRRET=ZE
PR EMBE -

N/A
TR

The first monthly management update report has been sent to all Directors in May
2012.
BNEREGAENRECR012F5A K22 BESE

€13

The directors should acknowledge in

the CG Report their responsibility for
preparing the accounts, and there should
be a statement by the auditors about their
reporting responsibilities in the auditors’
report on the financial statements.
ERRECKELRETARMMBES
BEMERL RADNEEERRBRE
WREMBER R Me R REE LR
BH o

Unless it is inappropriate to assume that
the company will continue in business,

the directors should prepare the accounts
on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary.
RIERIARKEHFELEEBI M
g TR ERRENREEARANE
BERER BREREREURRLR

BER-

Where the directors are aware of material
uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the issuer’s ability to continue as a
going concern, they should be clearly and
prominently disclosed and discussed at
length in the CG Report.
EEEMERENTHRASHAER AT
BREVERTABBLENEN EF
BEEAXEAREEERERE KA
WL E AR R

Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts for financial year
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group and
of the results and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended.
EXRRRSFEANGENREERHEST A THRBAR A RAREEH
MARAREHZZB LEENEERRERE KA -

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2012, the Directors have (a) selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; (b) made judgments and estimations that are prudent and reasonable;
and (c) prepared accounts on the going concern basis. The Directors are not aware of
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company's ability to continue as a going concern as referred to in this code
provision C.1.3. The statement of the Company’s independent auditor about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2012 is contained in the independent auditor's report on
pages 107 and 108.

ERH012F3A3N A ILFRGRUBREE EFQEETSENBHBERLE
HER: OELBERSENHRAGE: RONSESENEERRE 54
FAEXCLIERME  EZ U R RENEATHASHABERTLEREYE
ARANBELERE N - ARANBUREMR AL RBE01243 4318 LFE
GEUBRRZARECEAHNEL7E REIBEMB U ZE MBS -

Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
AR &F ANAZEEERER (ORENRERERER)

C.14 The directors should include in the N/A Separate statement containing a discussion and analysis of the Group’s performance
separate statement containing a discussion TER an explanation of the basis on which the Company generates or preserves value over
and analysis of the group’s performance the longer term and the strategy for delivering the Company’s objectives is set out in
in the annual report, an explanation of the Managing Director's Report of this annual report in order to comply with this code
the basis on which the issuer generates provision C.1.4 effective on 1 April 2012.
or preserves value over the longer term BETR012F4R1 B BERZ ATFAKEXCLINEATE RAFRESLEERE
(the business model) and the strategy for HERIEHAEBXRBNTREAN HARAAREELASAREABEER L BER
delivering the issuer's objectives. ERARNA B SRR
EZEEFRAAN BRI MEERRNE
NAGEA - BARTAHRREEIRE
EENER (EBEX) RERBETAM
AEREL:0) e E

C.1.5 The board should present a balanced, clear v The Board endeavors to present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment of

and understandable assessment in annual
and interim reports, other price-sensitive
announcements and other financial
disclosures required by the Listing Rules. It
should also do so for reports to regulators
and information disclosed under statutory
requirements.
FRESQREFERERTHRE B
fi 5 RREHRER BE RIBE LW
RABTATREN M BERA  H
RRRRELTE B RE HREN T
Foltih HNMEEREEERINRE
ELRBEORERBENERAEL R
of5 U

the Group's position in all corporate communications.

EZ2YIRMAARBRT HAKENRIEL FE BH RSN EROFE -
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TEERRE
.2 Internal controls nEEE
Principle B8

The board should ensure that the issuer
maintains sound and effective internal
controls to safeguard shareholders’
investment and the Issuer’s assets.

Code Provisions Compliance
FAHX B
The directors should at least annually v/
conduct a review of the effectiveness of the
issuers” and its subsidiaries” internal control
systems and report to shareholders that
they have done so in the CG report. The
review should cover all material controls,
including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management
functions.
EZRBEDEFRT —RBITAREH
BRANABEZZGRTAR UER
EERREPRRRERD ETHE W
Ri o BERAEREMEEENEES
A PEVBELR BEEERARES
KRB EEIEE

EZ @g BRETANNAERZRBRREMAFN UREREHRERFT
ABRE

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRARAZERERER (AREMREREREE)

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective system of internal
controls, which includes financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. The Company has an internal audit department which is
responsible for performing independent reviews on the effectiveness of the Group's
system of internal controls and reports audit findings to the audit committee and the
Board regularly.

EFQAFRAREIERCABERZS OFNE CERTEEARERER
g - ARARRANFEZHT ARBURAARENDEERG 2B WE
B AR ASERNERZEERESZCER

During the year, the internal audit department carried out reviews on (a) operation of
Bathroom & Kitchen Supplies Pty. Ltd., (b) upgrading of Fare Collection System, (c)
tendering operation in Discovery Bay Services Management Limited, (d) operation of
outsourced workers' logon to the intranet, (e) operation of The Sentosa Resort & Spa,
(f) security and interface setting of new HR software and control of HR document, (g)
tendering mechanism of continuing connected transactions and (h) other business
units with audit follow-up. With the implementation of follow-up measures after the
reviews, the effectiveness in area with irregularities gradually improves. Findings on the
reviews and the relevant recommendations had been presented to and accepted by
the audit committee in November 2011 and June 2012. The Company has adopted
an internal audit charter in 2008 to formulate the processes and procedures of internal
audit function for strengthening of the control framework.

RER - REEZPIE 5t (a) Bathroom & Kitchen Supplies Pty. Ltd. 8% : (b) Y
EZGNAR: ORZERBERERRRANRZERE: (d) AT AERIntranet
H)IE{E : (e) The Sentosa Resort & Spaki & & ; (f) FTHIA 1 &R E BB MR A
HERXENREERAARE : (QFEMER HRRITHEE : R (h)HfhF 53
HERREETR -FEERIRETORERL TE R 2 EH REERKN -
Al AR REEEZER2011F11 A R2012F6 A MEZE B8 2RI E 3 KA
o RARR200BFERMANBEZBE  AHIFT R ERIN 8 BIE R F RN

EETE

The Board, through the work of the audit committee and the internal audit department,
has conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of the system of internal control
of the Company and its subsidiaries and considers that the Group's internal control
system for the year ended 31 March 2012 was effective and adequate.
EXCRAERE G RNHERIFIN I HAN R REANE R RN e
EZEREETFERY E2eRAAEBHE2012F3A31AILFEZNHE
BERBEARRR

93

The board's annual review should v
in particular, consider the adequacy

of resources, staff qualifications and

experience, training programmes and

budget of the issuer's accounting and

financial reporting function.

EZeRFEIRNE BRAIZEET

ANEE RUBERRE ATANER 8
TARRER UREIFAEX SR
EREBEERDRA-

The Board, through the audit committee, discusses the internal control system with
management to ensure that the management has performed its duty to have an
effective internal control system. This discussion includes the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

EZe R AERE R AERENRNNEEAR UHRREEEERTHRYE
MEABERRFNBRE SO BEARANS T R BERBE A ENER 8
TERNER UREIMERNEIREREERE M-

c3 Audit committee EREEE
Principle B4
The board should establish formal and EZ2ENIEFYBERRADELRAYRITE R EETACHEEH
transparent arrangements to consider BF L IFHRAEBELZH - IRIE LTI U ERZE B e AR B BB
how it will apply financial reporting and #aE-
internal control principles and maintain an
appropriate relationship with the issuer’s
auditors. The audit committee established
under the Listing Rules should have clear
terms of reference.

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F A& XX & ANFZLEERER (BREMERRERAR)

c3.1 Full minutes of audit committee meetings v/ Minutes of the audit committee meetings are kept by the company secretary as
should be kept by a duly appointed secretary of the audit committee.
secretary of the meeting. Draft and final EREEC R LOREREREEENE ZARNERT
versions of minutes of meetings should be
sent to all committee members for their Draft and final versions of minutes of the audit committee meetings are sent to all
comment and records, within a reasonable committee members for their comments and records within a reasonable time.
time after the meeting. ERZBE SR RRAERRRER ARG AERANERT2EZRE
ERREGNTRERLHEMEARE eRERHRFE.

NEHEWERT - BRLENNRRER
ERETERE —RABRRENLGREX
ZEEERRNE TRHEKEREER
BEERELLEZA-

C.3.2 A former partner of the issuer’s existing v/ During the year, the audit committee has been reformed to comprise three members
auditing firm should be prohibited from namely, Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin Tung Marvin, Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus
acting as a member of its audit committee and Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta with Dr CHEUNG as the chairman of the committee.
for a period of 1 year from the date of his RER BRZESEENES BEEZ4KE HRAREREL RAREE
ceasing (whichever is the later): ket HPRELREZECER-

B A B R BT ARE 0% AR MR
FERACUTESR (UBH8EERE) None of the above audit committee members is a former partner of the external auditor.
B —FER MEEERTABKEZES FEERZEEREHFNEREMZAIERRA -
Bk E
(a) to be a partner of the firm; or
(a) MRIEKAZARABANBE: %
(b) to have any financial interest in the
firm.
(b) WABZEZRARABHEHBE-

(G385 The audit committee’s terms of reference v/ The audit committee of the Company was established on 17 July 1998 and is regulated
should include at least the prescribed by the terms of reference approved by the Board from time to time. The terms of
specific duties. reference of the audit committee were revised during the year to make in line with
ERZEEVBRERAZ L BIEHL the recent amendments of the CG Code and the related Listing Rules effective on 1
HEBE- January 2012 and 1 April 2012. The full text of the revised terms of reference of the

audit committee is available for viewing on the websites of the Company and the Stock

C.34 The audit committee should make available v/ Exchange.

its terms of reference, explaining its role
and the authority delegated to it by the
board by including them on the Stock
Exchange's website and the issuer’s
website.

ERZ B QRN A RET AR
FRRARESE REAARRESYE
BRTEAMNEN

ARRABERZEENIRBFTAITAKY  XEF MR I ERZ RESER
RE-NER FZZBENBEHGED ETARARN2012F1A18H201294 71
BEARZEXERTAMERLTRR MBS BETNELZ R ERERE
BXATRAR B R A AR A B o
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Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
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Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
SF AR ¥ ARAZEXERER (BRENRERERER)

G335 Where the board disagrees with the v/ The audit committee has recommended to the Board to re-appoint Deloitte Touche
audit committee’s view on the selection, Tohmatsu as the external auditor subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming
appointment, resignation or dismissal of the AGM. The Board endorsed the audit committee’s recommendation on the re-
external auditors, the issuer should include appointment of the external auditor.
in the CG report a statement from the audit ENZEOREE S EREEY BERA QAT ARDAIMNEREA - &7
committee explaining its recommendation BHEARARRREERRFeHE - ESSEANEREESEENERIR 2
and also the reason(s) why the board has B#e
taken a different view.

NEFETREERZEGHTE %
£ BHESEEIMNERBMEENER
ETARECEERAREPIHEREE
SHAEEZENER UREEFSHIA
EROER-

C.3.6 The audit committee should be provided v/ The audit committee is entitled to seek independent professional advice, at the
with sufficient resources to perform its Company's expenses, if it considers necessary in order to perform its duties.
duties. BRZECARRERARBEIREMBURBUSEEER BERMARAIRE-
?ZéE@%Zéf%,\ﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁLXE%iﬁﬁﬁ
=,

C.3.7 The terms of reference of the audit v/ The principal role and function of the audit committee is to assist the Board in meeting

committee should also require it:

ERZECNBERETARSE:

(a) to review arrangements employees
of the issuer can use, in confidence,
to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters. The
audit committee should ensure that
proper arrangements are in place for
fair and independent investigation
of these matters and for appropriate
follow-up action; and

(@) WABTAREMNATRE:BITA
EE ARG BER  REPEER
Hip AR AN ERTAR
L@ ERZEQRBRREEER
B RETAHESEHELATE
VHAE RIREGEETE R

(b) to act as the key representative body
for overseeing the issuer’s relations
with the external auditor.

() BEBTARINEGEEA 2 HNEE
RE BEER-_EZHEMBE-

its responsibilities for ensuring an effective system of internal controls and compliance,
and in meeting its external financial reporting objectives.

BRERE I ERBRRE AR ESERTAARAR AR EERTEH
BZBE REBHHNGEMBZEN-

During the year, the audit committee held two meetings together with the senior
management and the independent auditor and had considered the independent
auditor's projected audit and non-audit services fees, their independence and the
nature and scope of the audit, reviewed and discussed the continuing connected
transactions and internal controls, the interim and final financial statements together
with the management's findings and responses and the independent auditor's reviews
and reports before submission to the Board for approval. The attendance records of the
audit committee meetings held during the year are set out in the below section headed
“Attendances of AGM, Board and Committee Meetings”.

RERN BERZEELHSEERABRBUGEMBTRMALS IERBUZ
PRz B RFERRG EAER EAhBULRERNEEGE YRRT
ESeER BHRARFEFER S RADER FHR2EMHERET UR
EREERREEMBULEM ERRRE -REAN EREEEER LT
ZHINTXRREE EXERZEQGERLHEX] R

D. Delegation by the Board EEERINER
D.1 Management functions ERIEE
Principle B4
The Issuer should have a formal schedule BN —HIEABEE 8 L ER BB EF S R LA HEEE
of matters specifically reserved to the board TELRE °
and those to the management.
Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F A& ¥ ANAZLEERER (BREMEHRRERER)
D.1.1 When the board delegates aspects of v/ The Board has set out level of authority and express terms of reference of the
its management and administration relevant Board committees and reserves the rights to oversee and decide all other
functions to management, it must, at the non-delegated matters, in particular, major acquisitions or disposals, and connected
same time, give clear directions as to the transactions.
management's powers, in particular, where EECERAHEER SR EN LRI R AREESE TREBENEE AT
management should report back and FEEMAREZ EELERTENBRHERBER S
obtain prior board approval before making
decisions or entering into any commitments The Board also delegates certain management and administration functions to the
on the issuer's behalf. management as it considers appropriate from time to time, with directions as to the
EEECBEEBRIBYEHENED powers of management including circumstances where management shall report to
ERTEERER VERRREEEMNRE and obtain prior approval from the Board.
NG TEMNES BHREERER ESeNTRETEREERRG A ETEERITIES RERE L NRME
MEEEERNRERRETAELER ol AREREANESEERRNGESE SR ECER
RESGI L EMEERERNGES SR
EEHAME The Board may revisit such delegations as from time to time to ensure clear directions
and powers are given and proper reporting procedures are followed.
D.1.2 The issuer should formalize the functions v EReRTRENTEEARE BRG TEMESI REN  TETHEEERRE
reserved to the board and those delegated [
to management and review those
arrangements periodically to ensure that
they remain appropriate to the issuer's
need.
BETARHBLRE FTES OB R
LERTER BB BIRE TR K
EESERANABREBAREFSETA
NEE o
D.1.3 The issuer should disclose the respective v/ During the year, written terms of references of the Board, Board committees and
responsibilities, accountabilities officers have been duly adopted by the Company. Apart from the terms of reference of
and contributions of the board and audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee, the Company
management. will consider to disclose other terms of reference on the Company’s website.
ETAEREESRERES ANE RER ARREERARMNESZS E22 L8 RnEERAS ENMESRE -
B HRANAHETABRRELE REGZEE HHZESRRAZESNBESE ARAKEREAD NS
) SRR EM B EGE -
D.1.4 Directors should clearly understand v/ Once a NED consents to act as Director, a formal appointment letter will be issued to

delegation arrangements in place. Issuers
should have formal letters of appointment
for directors setting out the key terms and
conditions of their appointments.
EXEEERBRATNENERLH &
TABRBERANESZAE THEBZ
ENEZ BT R

the relevant Director setting out the key terms and conditions of the appointment.
EFNERELASE REHESHEERO SR EEERFARGHHERBE

=

Directors clearly understand delegation arrangements through (a) the written terms
of reference of the Board and various executive committees and (b) the clearly
documented role and responsibilities of chairman, deputy chairman and managing
director, EDs and NEDs including INEDs.
EFRAQEFERENTZEENEAREEERDTR BERREZHL
B HERFNE (BREE) NBBNEBE CARXE BHBERENBRNZ
B
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D.2 Board committees EZEETMZEE
Principle BA

Board committees should be formed with
specific written terms of reference which
deal clearly with the committees’ authority
and auties.

Code Provisions

R

D.2.1 Where board committees are established
to deal with matters, the board should give
them sufficiently clear terms of reference
to enable them to perform their functions
properly.

FERVEEGREEH EFXQRME
BMZEeRERDEENBHEE FX
R EE BT o

Compliance
BF
v/

BERETAZ RN U BTEEANNEREHE BEHNERSHENR
BE-

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
(including any deviations and considered reasons)

FRRAZEEXERER (AREMRERERER)

The Board has set up the remuneration committee, audit committee, nomination
committee (newly formed on 26 March 2012) and other executive committees namely,
finance committee, investment/ divestment committee and repurchase/ reissue

of shares committee and all of them have duly adopted respective clear terms of
reference. The Board will from time to time review the terms of reference of such
committees and reform and renovate some of them to align with better corporate
governance standard. The composition of each Board committee will also be reviewed
and updated upon changes of personnel. Each of the Board committees is entitled

to seek independent professional advice, at the Company's expenses, if it considers

97

D.2.2 The terms of reference of board v/ necessary in order to perform its duties. The Board will from time to time on need basis
committees should require them to report pass resolutions to set up special executive committees with clear terms of reference to
back to the board on their decisions or deal with the business of the Company.
recommendations, unless there are legal or ESeCRUTHEE S BREEE REZEE (R2012463A26A %K) kA
regulatory restrictions on their ability to do WRIZEENPIAIBEES RE /HEZEERRMER /BEITZES:
50 (such as restriction on disclosure due to EZESR A EMERRNBREE - E2e TRENREZE e BESR
regulatory requirements). WHEREITEFETHR FrRaEECER AL - SESEBE AN
EFRE TS ZERNBREEERRATZ BRAZEMERIREN S8R ZESERIEARARBIREMBHK
EZEEMESCRBEATIER BUSEER BRBANAAE EXQREFEETKRBRERM LG AR
BREZSZE G EEXEERMFABM BREGEE BINTEES URERDAZEB-

A I E 3R (19140 B B2 48 5 1 PR 5l 4R
B)
D.3 Corporate Governance Functions TEERBE
Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F AR X ¥ ARAZEXERER (BRENRERERER)

D.3.1 The terms of reference of the board (or a v/ The corporate governance functions are assumed by the Board and the specific duties
committee or committees performing this prescribed by this code provision are included in the written terms of reference of the
function) should include at least prescribed Board.
specific duties. CEABBERESEAE RTINS EN ARBREEAERESENEER
Exe (BTUBRENZES) OBE EHER-

GEEZLOETH I EERE
D.3.2 The board should be responsible for v/ The Board, with the support of the company secretary, is performing the corporate

performing the corporate governance duties
set out in the terms of reference in D.3.1
or it may delegate the responsibility to a
committee or committees.
EELEARFETDIIEBEGERHMN
CEERBE MAKEERET—{E%k
SEEEg-

governance duties as set out in this code provision D.3.1 and safe guard the relevant
policies and practices which are being enforced properly.
EZENRANENRE T ERTATARXDIIMHNCXERBE  WRR
ERNERNEREE BT

E. Communication with Shareholders HERKBE
E.l Effective communication BUER

Principle B4

The board should be responsible for EZSEBERARFI AR -

maintaining an on-going dialogue with

Shareholders.

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F A& ¥ ANAZLEERER (BREMEHRRERER)
E.l.1 Issuers should avoid “bundling” resolutions v/ A separate resolution has been and will continue to be proposed on each substantially
unless they are interdependent and linked separate matter at a general meeting.

forming one significant proposal. ARRERBRHENRREREHERBY 2 SEERRERER

BITAER R (MBI RER  RIEFAR

FEZARERERBE aRRTK—

HEREH

E.1.2 The chairmen of the board and board X At the AGM of the Company held on 8 September 2011, Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson,
committees shall attend the AGM to be who is the chairman of the Board and Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry, who is the
available to answer questions thereat. chairman of remuneration committee and once was the chairman of audit committee,

The chairman of the independent board were unable to attend. However, Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor, the deputy chairman and

committee (if any) should also be available managing director of the Company, took the chair of that meeting and one member

to answer questions at any general meeting of the audit committee and one member of the remuneration committee were present

to approve a connected transaction or any thereat to be available to answer any question.

other transaction that requires independent AR EEE I EER B A ERA R AT NEE S RENBERZECIRERY

shareholders’ approval. BEERELEARBR011FIAH BT REFE A M ARAIESEEE

EZQTRERESCETNZECERE FREZLEESRRFEEIZRREG IR MERZEERFHEZEEY

HERRFEUNERRE S FEEREM- BE—EMEHERRES AR EEMRM-

EZEETNBUZEE (MRNERE

TEEEMBAENTRZHRRAE LE There is no transaction during the financial year ended 31 March 2012 requiring

BB ABER SR ENEMELEY independent shareholders' approval.

RRBENZ S R2012F3 A3 R LB EE  HEANR SR EBLRRIE

Management should ensure the external The external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, attended the AGM of the Company

auditor attend the AGM to answer held on 8 September 2011 to answer questions about the conduct of the audit, the

questions. preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor's

EEERBRINEZSM L ERRFS U independence.

EESGE INERZHREY « HER A MITELRARRN201159A8R BT RRF &
NEEEBRES T RHREAREREAND SRR A REEEE LI
1R

E.1.3 The issuer should arrange for the notice to v The Company's notice for the 2011 AGM convened on 8 September 2011 was sent out
shareholders to be sent for AGM at least 20 to the shareholders on 18 July 2011, more than 20 clear business days in advance.
clear business days before the meeting and There was no other general meeting held in the year under review.

to be sent at least 10 clear business days ARAR2011FIABA B 2201 IR EF S BEEN2011F7A18R « MeR 217

for all other general meetings. AMSR0EEXBAZERFE -ROBEER TEERTEMREAS

RRREEM S BOARRHEAGE

RED R0EEEBRBRRE XA

EAEEY EN-ATEREY PN

BONESRIOEEEAERXRA -

E.1.4 The board should establish a shareholders’ v/ In March 2012, the Board has adopted a shareholders” communication policy. The

communication policy and review it on a
regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
ERQENERRBAIK U E Bigs
IARERR EL R AL o

policy is subject to review on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness.
2012637 EE LB FMRREBEUR  ZIR I§E BIELRE  ABREBR
ffo
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TEERRE
E.2 Voting by poll MBEEFX KR
Principle EA
The isster should ensure that shareholders AR EIERRIREATL R E D TR A FHES

are familiar with the detailed procedures for

conducting a poll.
Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
SF AR XX a5 ANFZLEERER (ORENRERRERER)

E.2.1 The chairman of a meeting should v/ Procedures for conducting a poll were properly explained to all shareholders at the
ensure that an explanation is provided of AGM held on 8 September 2011.
the detailed procedures for conducting M201IF9ABRBRITHRRF S LENMBRR B EMBEETRERANER
a poll and answer any questions from
shareholders on voting by poll.

AEERERRESE FRRRBRNR
SHRETRANFART  WEERR
BRALRZER A RANEMRR

7 Company Secretary ARBE
Principle EA
The company secretary is to support the ROWEEHSREZEHURREFCH B ZHEAR TR UREEEEFSK
board by ensuring good information flow EREF HRBEBESBEER SUiTBARNEECEHE REEAER
within the board and that board policy VEHEFHABEIRERZER
and procedures are followed and is
responsible for advising the board through
the chairman and/or the chief executive
on governance matters and should also
facilitate induction and professional
development of directors.

Corporate Governance Practices of the Company
Code Provisions Compliance (including any deviations and considered reasons)
F AR By ANRZEEERER (BRENRERERER)

Fl1.1 The company secretary should be an v/ The company secretary is Ms MAK Sau Ching, who is an employee of the Company

employee of the issuer and have day-to- and has day to day knowledge of the Company. She is well aware of the requirement
day knowledge of issuer’s affairs. Where an under rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and has been complying and will continue to
issuer engages an external service provider comply with such requirement for the year ending 31 March 2013 and report regularly.
as its company secretary, it should disclose RANERAAREEEFELT BHAARMBESHAMRE  IER LT
the identity of a person with sufficient A3 20T WE BT RFN2013F3A AL REEHBETEBHOR
seniority at the issuer whom the external T REBER-
provider can contact.
RRMERREITANES HETAR
BEEHE MRS BT AEMERBH
BEEARAWE EREEAD—HAH
FZINERBRERENRSBAATHF
fho

F.1.2 The board should approve the selection, v/ The selection, appointment or dismissal of the company secretary are approved by the
appointment or dismissal of the company Board.
secrefary. RRANENER ZERBEHHESSHE-

REMENRE ZEIREREHES
Rk

F1.3 The company secretary should report to the v/ The company secretary reports to the chairman on Board/Board committee matters
board chairman and/or the chief executive. and to the deputy chairman and managing director on administrative matters of the
ARMERRNESEERER/RITHES Company.

[ o ARNERFREREHESS EFCZ R FHRNEIEARESALE
EREAARAAETHEE -
F.1.4 All directors should have access to the v/ Directors have direct access to the advice and services of the company secretary for

advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board procedures,
and all applicable law, rules and
regulations, are followed.
EESEARBARNENERMZR
R RS ARRESSREF RAEER
EE RAIRAGIIEGET

on-going discharge of their duties and responsibilities.

EEARBRTABERREE OUARBRRANE UNGEERRRE

Attendances of AGM, Board and
Committee Meetings

Directors’ attendances in the AGM held on 8 September 2011
and the meetings of the Board, audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee held during the year

99

BOAE S AR B A6
e i

REBEFEA  2011F9A8H BT 2 IRE
FELEES ERLRE® FHEES
LREREEESHR ESTHFERHINM

under review are set out below: ™
Remuneration AGM
Committee (held on
Audit Meeting/ Nomination 8 September
Committee Circulated Committee 2011)
Board Meeting  Communications Meeting ¢ 201149A8H
Name of Director Meeting ENEEE HMEEE BRZEET 872
ET4B ExgeH &% g% /EHEA L-E M BEEE
The Honourable Ronald Joseph EEEEE! 4/6 212 - - v/
ARCULLI'!
Mr CHA Mou Sing Payson® BB Ee 6/6 - - N/AiE A X
Mr CHA Mou Zing Victor # BRSS! 6/6 - 3/3~ - v
Mr CHA Mou Daid Johnson EMEEE 6/6 - - - X
Mr CHA Yiu Chung Benjamin ERPEE 6/6 - - - v/
Dr CHENG Kar Shun Henry #! BRaEE L 1/6 12 3/3~ - X
Dr The Honourable CHEUNG Kin RERE L2 6/6 212 3/3~ N/AT 38 X
Tung Marvin *@?2
Mr CHEUNG Tseung Ming REHLE 4/6 - - - X
Mr CHEUNG Wing Lam Linus ** SRR I A 5/6 12 3/3~ X
Mr CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham BOHELE 6/6 - - - v/
Ms HO Pak Ching Loretta *@ gzt 6/6 - - N/AT 3 v/
Dr QIN Xiao #@! REF 0! 4/6 172 3/3~ N/AT i X
Mr TANG Moon Wah HmErs 6/6 - - - v/
Ms WONG CHA May Lung Madeline ~F#&axfEx+ 416 - - - X
* members of audit committee * EZEZEENE
# members of remuneration committee # FTMEEENE
@ members of nomination committee e REZEENE
. nomination committee was newly set up on 26 March 2012 and * REZESMN2012F3A268 Ak - &
no meeting was held during the year ended 31 March 2012 E2012F3A31 AL FERI B RITEZ
1 ceased as a member of audit committee on 26 March 2012 1 R2012F3 A26 B N HIEAEZEZE K E
2 ceased as a member of remuneration committee on 26 March 2 201263 A26 BT BIEAHIMEZEEEX E
2012

~ comprising 3 rounds of circulated communications and no

meeting was held

BRZREHERNRBETER
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Auditor’s Remuneration

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is the independent auditor of the
Company. The remuneration for audit services provided by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu to the Group for the year under
review was estimated at HK$7.9 million (2011 (actual):
HK$7.6 million). In addition to the audit fee, the Company had
appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for the interim results
review and the other non-audit services particularly for tax
compliance which amounted to approximately HK$2.9 million
(2011 (actual): HK$3.5 million) for the year under review.

Shareholders’ Rights

Pursuant to article 72 of the Articles, apart from being
convened by the Directors, extraordinary general meetings
shall also be convened on the written requisition of any two
shareholders of the Company representing not less than 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company at the time of
requisition. Shareholders wishing to do so must serve a duly
executed written requisition to the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at 23/F, China Merchants Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong
Kong (the “Principal Place of Business”) specifying the objects
of the meeting. If the Directors do not within 21 days from

the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene
the meeting, those shareholders themselves may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible,

as that in which meetings may be convened by the Directors,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by those shareholders
as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to
them by the Company.

A% S T <

EHeUEM A SFTAITTARRRZ B
ZER -REBFEREHBERTS
ETRDITIRME T ASE 2 BRI 2 S
S AR79AEEBT (20114F (BF) : 768
BAET) BREZBRIN KRRIREIESF
€ LA%2 9B BETT (20114 (BER) 135
BEBL)ZEAEY e @M AT
M EEEM R HMIEEZRE L8
ISR

i S HE A

RIBARREZIZMANE72(F  BRRKFHIA
EHRIUAXREEARIN TRAHREM R
ARBRRF D BEITRATDRE% KR
ZEMBRMAR  ZMBRRANED
EREDABEMFERE -FEERERAEH
BRI ARG ZBR ALEEENER
EREFABHSHNEEENEXERART]
BRI RLEEME MU REBTHESD
168-2005% E 18 DA R AE231 ([
REEME|) MAREFRENBRE
[ 2R X E BB E 21 R A ERETE M
BRAE AZMEELERERNME
AETARBRE (AR EERESA
FE R G RAR) - AR R AMEZ
ERRBEMI BN —EEER-

In addition, any shareholder acting on his own or together with
other persons whose shareholding interests in the Company

in aggregate represent not less than 5% of the issued share
capital of the Company (other than the person to be proposed)
may nominate a person to stand for election as a director at
general meeting in accordance with article 120 of the Articles.
Any shareholder wishing to do so must serve (i) a written
notice of intention to propose such person for election as a
director; (ii) a notice executed by that person of his willingness
to be elected; and (iii) the information of that person as
required to be disclosed under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules to the Principal Place of Business between the period
commencing from the date after the dispatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election and end on
(and exclude) the date that is 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting. The Company shall issue an announcement
and/or a supplementary circular, if applicable, to inform

the shareholders the biographical details of the candidate
proposed if a valid notice to propose a person to stand for
election as a director is received.

Investor Relations

A printed copy of the memorandum and articles of association
of the Company has been published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year ended 31 March 2012.
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BE REAQAERAANEI201E - E[
PRERANAE A BB BB E A A L HE R
ARB D EITRANDRE%E (KHERS
ZALERIN) - HERE R ALTRBERK
G LEERES - HAFEFLIER 2R
ARARBRRASBREREDZAEESH
BESRTHHA7R (TEREGHER) L
RETNRAXHEARRRZBBEETREE M
HoOMEREZALTBEEEEZEAE
FEABANE: (MHZALTRERTREEE
ZBAE  RGiDRE E R A1513.51(2)
FREATHEZABIALZEFR K
WREEMRRELBRRER —BALTEE
E=Z7AMEBANE KRR HEIER
SHAFBE ER - AMERREES
BAZEEFIT

B& # B R

AR P ER AL & ERAD R ER| A
B TUER A A 2 7] B B 32 P ) A s

R2012F3A31HIEFE  ARFIMNEFEEX
B8 BIEE -
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Financial Highlights

B 15 15 &

2012 2011
For the year ended 31 March B E3A31BLEE HK$'M HK$'M
Results EF BEET B&BTT
Turnover - 1,664.1 1,800.7
Profit attributable to owners of ZAY/NSIE? Y DN w
the Company 747.2 1,647.9
Dividends paid 2R S 148.5 256.5
Earnings per share (HK cent) BRRAZF CBW) 55 122
At 31 March ®m3A31H HK$'M HK$'M
Financial Position MR BEET BEET
Total assets BEME 23,180.5 21,3339
Total liabilities BEARE 7,364.1 6,457.1
Equity attributable to owners RARHA ANEGER
of the Company 14,495.8 13,571.7
Net asset value per share (HK$) EREEFE(ET) 10.7 10.1

Net Asset Value Per Share (HK$)

HRE EFE (BT)

12

10

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

Shareholders’ Funds

As at 31 March 2012, the shareholders’ funds of the Group
increased by HK$924.1 million to HK$14,495.8 million (2011:
HK$13,571.7 million). The increase was mainly due to an
upward fair value revaluation of investment properties, disposal
of certain investment properties and profit contribution from
operating units. The overall gross profit margin for the Group
was 28.2% (2011: 28.5%).

Major Cash Flows to/from Investing
Activities

During the financial year, the Group continued to capitalise one
of its major development projects located in Jingan, Shanghai,

the PRC, in which the Group holds 50% equity interest, for
HK$345.0 million.

The Group invested HK$177.0 million in a property
development project in Thailand, in which the Group has a
49% interest. In Hong Kong, the Group acquired a piece of
land in Sai Kung at a total consideration of HK$55.0 million.
In the United Kingdom, the Group acquired a piece of land
together with manufacturing plant and machinery at HK$67.0
million.

In addition, project companies under the Tung Chung project,
in which the Group has 31% interest, repaid HK$39.7 million
shareholders’ loan to the Group during the year.

Major Cash Flows from Operating
Activities

During the year, receipt of deposits in connection with the
sales of residential units located in The Sukhothai Residences
in Bangkok, Thailand contributed approximately HK$15.0
million cash to the Group.

103

Financial Review
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Financial Review
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During the year, a piece of land in the PRC and an investment
property in Hong Kong was sold. The respective sales brought
HK$93.1 million and HK$615.0 million cash to the Group.

The Group also disposed of certain residential investment
properties located in Hong Kong and Shanghai, the PRC that
contributed a total of HK$37.6 million cash to the Group.

All the investment properties of the Group generated
approximately HK$214.0 million operating cash during the
year.

Financial Liquidity

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had total cash and securities
investment of HK$2,927.7 million (2011: HK$2,590.4 million)
whilst total bank borrowings and other loans were HK$4,412.8
million (2011: HK$3,523.1 million). The major changes

in bank borrowings and other loans were reflected in the
capitalisation of certain development projects and acquisitions
located in the PRC, Hong Kong, Thailand and the United
Kingdom.

Gearing

The Group’s gearing ratio maintained at a low level of 12.3%
(2011: 8.4%) as calculated by the Group’s consolidated net
borrowings to the shareholders’ funds as at 31 March 2012.

Banking Facilities

As at 31 March 2012, the Group had adequate internal cash
and banking facilities, both secured and unsecured, to finance
its development projects and operations. As at 31 March
2012, the unutilised credit facilities stood at approximately
HK$2,207.5 million (2011: HK$3,420.3 million).
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BERATZEERS-

& &

R201263A31H  AEBERFERE KE
FIRE4E5E2 927 7AE B T (20114 -
209048 BT MRITEEREMER
HBEAA4128BHE BT (20114 :3523.18
BEL) RITEEREMER T EEH)
ERFER -8 REREBEZAETEER
b2 BRERBE RKBEEFR KB -

EARA LR

REBZEXBELREFNI23%
(20114 : 8.4% ) ZAKIKF - bbb Ty iR AR
E£ER2012F3A318 2 XA EE SRR
IBRRESETE -

BiTfE&

201293 A31H - AEBAHE S KGIK
HEEER 2 RITEERS  TAERNS
BRIFEREEMTES - 7N2012F3H31
H ABAZEEREA22075888 T
(20114 :3,4203E&EHBT) °

The maturity profile of bank borrowings and other loans were
84.0% (2011: 43.2%) falling within one year, 4.9% (2011:
47.7%) falling between one to two years, and 11.1% (2011:
9.1%) falling between two and five years as at 31 March 2012.

Treasury Policy

The Group has centralised treasury functions and adopted

a conservative approach for its treasury management. With
majority of assets and liabilities denominated in HK dollars
and US dollars, the Group has limited exposure to foreign
currencies. To manage foreign currency exposure in certain
investments overseas, the Group has maintained naturally
hedged positions and made currency swap arrangements as
appropriate. The Group’s banking facilities are principally on
floating rate basis and interest rate swaps will be employed
to manage interest rate risk for its short to medium term
borrowings when appropriate and necessary.

It is the policy of the Group to restrict the use of financial
derivatives for speculative purpose.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2012, certain subsidiaries of the Group had
pledged property, plant and equipment with a carrying value of
HK$3.7 million (2011: HK$9.2 million) and bank deposits of
HK$3.1 million (2011: HK$2.9 million) respectively to secure
banking facilities granted to that certain subsidiaries.

In addition, a fixed and floating charge was created over the
assets and undertaking of one of the Group'’s subsidiaries (total
asset value as at 31 March 2012 was HK$72.9 million (2011:
HK$82.3 million)) to secure banking facility granted to that
particular subsidiary.
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Certain subsidiaries of the Group had subordinated the inter-
company debts due from two subsidiaries in the total amount
of HK$666.8 million as at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$506.7

million) to secure banking facilities granted to that particular

two subsidiaries.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group’s contingent liabilities relating to a corporate
guarantee given, to the extent of the Group’s proportionate
share, in respect of a banking facility granted to an investee
company, increased by HK$6.1 million to HK$166.5 million as
at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$160.4 million).

Saved as the aforesaid disclosure, the Group did not have
other contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2012.

M2012%3A31H - A&EBEETHWB AR
MR M BRI R 2 A EIBERE H£666.8
BEEIT (20114 :506.78 &% L) E1R
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TTE166.5B8E T (2011F : 160.4B 85
TT) °

B XTI EEE SN M201243A31H - K
SEYEEMKAREE-

107

Independent Auditor’s Report

Deloitte.
=&

TO THE MEMBERS OF HKR INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
FEREXBREERRAA

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HKR
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages

109 to 233, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2012, and the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B Z BN RS

Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,

the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31
March 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
EE e FEMRS GRHERIT
Certified Public Accountants
HEEFE

Hong Kong, 20 June 2012
&5 20126 A20H
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Consolidated Income Statement

I\\/ \

& W

For the year ended 31 March 2012 E!Z:;ZOIZES}EJ 31HIFE

2012 2011
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
{hg=d BEETT BEBTT
Turnover &R 5 1,664.1 1,800.7
Cost of sales $H & B AR (1,195.0) (1,287.7)
Gross profit E A 469.1 513.0
Other income H A A 6 120.9 94.1
Administrative expenses THAX (440.0) (431.8)
Other gains and losses Hoftn Yres K BT 7 41.2 94.3
Change in fair value of BEYMELNTEE
investment properties
Realised gains on disposals HERZBEER M 11, 15 252.8 640.2
Unrealised gains RER 2 W 11, 15 375.4 750.8
Finance costs BBER 8 (63.2) (42.2)
Share of results of associates 2N (i R/ T 18 90.8 150.1
Share of results of jointly controlled 2315 F£ B2 4| E g2 2 45
entities 19 69.9 79.3
Profit before taxation B A5 BT 5 A 9 916.9 1,847.8
Taxation BiIE 10 (61.2) (63.9)
Profit for the year NF 855.7 1,783.9
Attributable to: T fEAG -
Owners of the Company ZIN/NIEZF =N 11 747.2 1,647.9
Non-controlling interests JEVE IR = 108.5 136.0
855.7 1,783.9
Earnings per share SR &H 14
— Basic (HK cent) —E AR GB) 55 122
— Diluted (HK cent) — 58 OB1) N/A FEHR 122
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 #ZE201243A31H L5 E

BEREBBREBEARAR 2011/2012 FIR

111

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR e MR

At 31 March 2012 201243 H31H

2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'M HK$’M NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
BE#ET BEATT B 5 BEET BEATT
Profit for the year $¢f§5ﬁ?§ﬂ 855.7 1,7839 Non-current assets gEyﬁQiéé
- N = _ Investment properties "EMHE 15 6,135.2 6,133.1
Other comprehensive income (expense): H b2 mE Uz (F) ¢ Property, plant and equipment e T 16 2,642.3 2 460.1
Exchange differences arising from BMERINEBEEZ Prepaid lease payments AR ER K 17 29.7 35.8
translation of foreign operations PE . Z R 40.5 228.3 Interests in associates ﬁﬁ?;zﬁ 18 535.7 5141
. Interests in jointly controlled |EEE 2
X VAN
Share of exchange reserve of associates kB & A 7] 2 FE X (F # 1.4 0.8 entitios i 19 6,845.9 6,011.2
Share of exchange reserve of e KR H Amount due from an associate JE W B 8 N B RIR 18, 25 122.5 104.2
jointly controlled entities bE 5 215.6 207.2 Held-to-maturity investments FEIHEE 20 83.9 84.2
able-for. ; i L A
Available-for-sale financial assets. AT E S RAE Available-for-sale financial assets A & & @& E 20 53.1 60.6
_ , Other assets H&E 21 125.6 129.4
Fair value changes during the year FARFEEZH (7.3) (19.1) Deferred tax assets EERBEE 27 5.5 73
Reclassified to profit or loss HEREFHERER
P J = 16,579.4 15,540.3
upon disposal - (9.2)
= p2
Deferred tax arising from NEEEELE Current as§ets ”'bijjfg
. - Inventories rE 22 145.8 160.7
fair value changes ERET IR (0.2) (0.4) Properties held for sale FIELEME 717.8 175
., i fE U E 5 BR TR 2 2.1 110.
Other comprehensive income £ A 5 T U 2 Trade recelvables FE% 25 QE;A 3 8 0.8
L Deposits, prepayments e TENHRIE
for the year (net of tax) (MBRFIER) 250.0 407.6 and other financial assets MEMSREE 25 186.9 180.4
Properties held for/under BEHEZBE/
i i =3 Pasci| N
Total comprehensive income for the year — ZN4FJE & m Uizt 42 58 1,105.7 2,191.5 A S Rty o4 2.546.0 27274
Amounts due from associates JrE U Bt 2 1 B 5K I8 18, 25 59.0 91.1
Amounts due from jointly JiE Ut ££ /] 42 %UE‘%ET‘T\
Total comprehensive income attributable to: '~ 71| fE 1k 2 T U4 25 48 58 controlled entities 25 58.0 36.3
Owners of the Company AATIEB A 996.6 2,043.9 Taxation recoverable AR B F K 14.8 23.8
o o Held-to-maturity investments BREIHRE 20 158.8 62.6
Non-controlling interests f 109.1 147.6 N
el R R Financial assets at fair value BRAFEFFABRZ
1,105.7 21915 through profit or loss TREE 20 - 0.2
Pledged bank deposits EHFRITER 25 3.1 2.9
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 25, 35 2,628.8 2,379.9
6,601.1 5,793.6
Current liabilities mBEE
Trade payables, provision and ERTE SR B
accrued charges NIEETE R 26 777.4 919.8
Deposits received and other Bl e REM
financial liabilities TREE 30 609.2 621.2
Amount due to an associate fﬁﬂﬁ% EWNCIE/ S 30 23.0 55
Taxation payable FEFH IR 54.6 58.6
Bank and other loans due within ~ —F AR HA 2 BT &
one year HER 28 3,704.9 1,521.1
Other liabilities due within one year —FREIHI Z E4th & (& 29 14.9 6.3
5,184.0 3,132.5
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
A AROR R

At 31 March 2012 7201243 H31H

2012 2011
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
B 7 BHEBT BEBTT
Net current assets mBEEFEE 1,417.1 2,661.1
Total assets less current liabilities ##&ER GBI E & 17,996.5 18,201.4
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Bank and other loans due —FREBZRITR
after one year HiE 28 707.9 2,002.0
Other liabilities due after one year —$1§ Bz HibBaE 29 1,315.7 1,177.9
Deferred tax liabilities ELFIEAE 27 156.5 144.7
2,180.1 3,324.6
15,816.4 14,876.8
Capital and reserves BARN G
Share capital ik 31 337.5 337.5
Reserves EE 14,158.3 13,234.2
Equity attributable to owners of KABIES AE(ERER
the Company 14,495.8 13,571.7
Non-controlling interests eI IR fE 2 1,320.6 1,305.1
15,816.4 14,876.8

The consolidated financial statements on pages 109 to 233
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 20 June 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

CHA Mou Zing Victor
Deputy Chairman & Managing Director
B FEFE FAATE
B

F1098 £ FE233HFTHGE P IEHRED

REZSN201256 A20F ## MR E T

WM TIEEARER

CHUNG Sam Tin Abraham
Executive Director
HITEE
i H
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

I\\/ \

Z N /|\I:Il|\

T—H— N7

FE) R R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZE201243A31H ILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

EYAGE TPN A
Investment
property Asset  Investment Capital Non-
Share Accumulated revaluation General Share revaluation revaluation Distributable  Exchange redemption controlling
capital profits reserve reserve  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total interests Total
RENE HEER RAEHE THIR ERWE 374
BA  RHER EfiRG LEHF RHER i B B ELRE i @it | 4 @3t
HK$'M HKSM HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HKSM
BEAT BEBT BERT BEST ABEET BEET BEAN BEAT BEER BEEAT BEST AERT BEER
(notea) ~ (note b) (note c) (note d)
(Wia)  (Miib) (GEW) (Hizd)
At 1 April 2010 201054418 3375 72215 1,404.8 783 15379 1321 584 4507 560.0 31 11,7843 11575 129418
Profit for the year REFHEH - 16479 - - - - - - - - 16479 1360 17839
Exchange differences arising from HEEMEREL 2
tranglation of foreign operations ~ E X E% - - - - - - - - 216.7 - 216.7 116 283
Share of exchange reserve of MEBEDRZERRE
associates - - - - - - - - 08 - 08 - 08
Share of exchange reserve of AMEAREHERL
jointly controlled entities (note &) T 5 48 (B ke ) - - - - - - - - 2072 - 207.2 - 2072
Fair value changes on available- A HE S RAEZ
for-sale financial assets ATEED - - - - - - (190) - = - (190) = (19.0)
Reclassified to profit or loss upon ~~ tH & AT it S A B
disposal of available-for-sale ENAEZERR
financial assets - - - - = = 92 = = = 9.2) = 92
Deferred tax arising from fair value A {1 £ BAENT(E
changes on avalable-for-sale BEmMEL 2 ETHE
financial assets - - - = = = 04) = = = (04) = (04)
Total comprehensive income FEERENE (FX) 8%
(expense) for the year - 1,647.9 - - - = (28.7) - 4247 - 20439 1476 21915
Transfer to investment property ~ FRARERAFEFRE
revaluation reserve relating to BRERANEEBEE
unrealised net fair value gain (F#E11())
during the year (Note 11(i)) - (8104) 8104 - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer from investment property  FAEERATEFEEER
revaluation reserve relating to BRAMESRERE
net fair value loss realised (PFEL())
during the year (Note 11(ii)) - (126.5) 1265 - - - - - - - - - -
Dividends paid BikRS = (256.5) = = = = = = = = (256.5) = (256.5)
Transfer upon disposal of HEMBA AR B
a subsidiary - 658.3 - (783) = (129.3) = (450.7) = = = = =
At 31 March 2011 #201163A31A 3375 83343 23417 - 1,537.9 28 2.7 - 984.7 31 135717 13051 148768
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BAEREDRE
For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A318 ItEfE

Notes:

Attributable to the owners of the Company
FATRENER
Investment (a)
property Asset  Investment Capital Non-
Share  Accumulated  revaluation Share  revaluation  revaluation  Exchange  redemption controlling
capital profits reserve - premium reserve reserve reserve reserve Total interests Total
hEnE EEER  KEEH EXER FER
Bx  REH EfEE  RHEE L BE  EnkE L @it (354 @3t
HKS'M HKS$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS$'M HKS'™
BEfn HEET EEEn  AE#T  AERR  BEEn  ERER  BE%n  AEAT BEER REER
(note a) (note d)
(M) (H&d)
At 1 April 2011 201154817 3315 83343 2,3417 1,537.9 28 29.7 984.7 31 135717 13051 14,8768
Profit for the year TEERF - 747.2 - - - - - - 747.2 108.5 855.7
Exchange differences arising from BERNEREL B EE (b)
translation of foreign operations - - - - - - 39.9 - 39.9 0.6 405
Share of exchange reserve of assocates D EBE AT ERER - - - - - - 14 - 14 - 14
Share of exchange reserve of HMEEREHNER 2B ERE
jointly controlled enties (note €) (Hite) - - - - - - 2156 - 2156 - 2156
Fair value changes on avallable- e RER A TEEY
for-sale financial assets - - - - - (73 o - (73) - (73
Deferred tax arising from fairvalue L ELBAEATES
changes on available-for-sale FEEZERLHE
financial assets - - - - - (0.2) - - (0.2) - (0.2)
Total comprehensive income TEE2ENE (R 488
(expense) for the year - 741.2 - - - (7.5) 256.9 - 996.6 109.1 1,105.7 (c)
Transfer o investment property FARERATEFHEERE
revaluation reserve relating to eyl TAAGRI))
unrealised net fair value gain
during the year (Note 11(i) - (438.4) 4384 - - - - - - - -
Transfer from investment property FREERATEFUEERR
revaluation reserve relating to net eVl GRI())
fair value gain realised during
the year (Note 11(i) - 1763 (176.3) - - - - - - - -
Acquisiion of aditional interest BENBLRER (d)
in a subsidiary - 76.0 - - - - - - 76.0 (93.6) (17.6)
Dividends paid 2ERE - (148.5) - - - - - - (148.5) - (148.5)
At 31 March 2012 R2012%3A31A 3315 8,746.9 2,603.8 1,537.9 28 222 1,241.6 31 144958 13206 158164
(e)

B3

Investment property revaluation reserve represents the Group’s (a)
accumulated post-tax unrealised net fair value gain on the

investment properties of the subsidiaries, jointly controlled

entities and associates recognised in profit or loss, and then

transferred from accumulated profits to investment property

revaluation reserve. Upon the relevant investment property

being disposed of and the fair value gain becoming realised, the
relevant net fair value gain will be transferred to accumulated

profits.

General reserve mainly represents reserve created by way of (b)
capital reduction in a scheme of arrangement of the Group

under its former listed vehicle namely HKR Properties Limited

pursuant to a special resolution passed at the Extraordinary

General Meeting (the “Scheme of Arrangement”) in 1988. The

general reserve was transferred to accumulated profits upon

disposal of DP Properties Limited during the year ended 31

March 2011.

Distributable reserve was arisen from the cancellation of the (c)
share capital and the share premium account of HKR Properties

Limited in the financial year of 1989/1990 under the Scheme

of Arrangement. The distributable reserve was transferred to
accumulated profits upon disposal of DP Properties Limited

during the year ended 31 March 2011.

Capital redemption reserve is the amount equivalent to the (d)
nominal value of the shares cancelled upon repurchase of the
Company’s shares which was transferred from accumulated

profits. The reserve may be applied by the Company in paying

up its unissued shares to be allotted to members of the

Company as fully paid bonus shares in accordance with the

articles of association of the Company and the Companies Law

of the Cayman Islands.

Share of exchange reserve of jointly controlled entities during (e)
the year included an amount of HK$53.1 million (2011:

HK$49.9 million) arising from translation of interests in jointly

controlled entities and an amount of HK$162.5 million (2011:
HK$157.3 million) exchange gain arising from loans that form

part of net investment in foreign operations.

BEEXBREEARAQAF 2011/2012 F#H
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ERALEBEMARAT 20112012 F§

2012 2011
NOTE HK$'M HK$'M
B 5E BEBT BEATT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BEEB
Profit before taxation BR 754 AT & A 916.9 1,847.8
Adjusting items, net I E FEE (a) (682.3) (1,541.8)
Operating cash flows before Rt AEEESEFA 2
movements in working capital KERSME 234.6 306.0
Decrease (increase) in inventories &84 (1€ 40) 5.4 (17.0)
Decrease in properties held for sale = {EH & ¥ 55 4 - 13.1
Decrease (increase) in trade FEWE 5 R R
receivables (3 ) 24.8 (16.3)
(Increase) decrease in deposits, e A FRIEREA
prepayments and other TREE (Bm)md
financial assets (23.7) 117.4
Increase in properties held for/ BIEHEZBE
under development for sale R R W) 338 0 (476.9) (931.2)
Decrease in amounts due from JIE LS B 8 &) SR IEDR A
associates - 9.5
Increase in amounts due from JE Yk (R 2 | B B8 5K I8
jointly controlled entities 0 (21.7) (18.1)
Decrease in mortgage instalment  FEUIZIE 2 B FUR
receivables 2.5 9.2
Decrease in trade payables, ERE SRR BER
provision and accrued charges FEST & AR A (141.9) (29.2)
(Decrease) increase in Bliize REHM
deposits received and other e@asE Cld) g
financial liabilities (12.0) 48.0
Increase (decrease) in amount JE T B 5 2 &) SR IE 3 N
due to an associate C: % 17.5 (4.5)
Decrease in derivative financial PTEESBMTARD
instruments - (1.4)
Cash used in operations EEMARE (391.4) (514.5)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREBNEH (26.6) (36.3)
Overseas tax paid 28 INEIR (17.3) (35.2)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING & ZE XS AREFH
ACTIVITIES (435.3) (586.0)

117
2012 2011
NOTE HK$'M HK$'M
B 5T BESBT BEBTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Proceeds from disposal of HEREMEL
investment properties FT {3 3% 18 649.3 101.0
Redemption of held-to-maturity EOFEIEHEE
investments 408.2 170.8
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE  FE M
plant and equipment ®E 2 P58 77.4 13.6
Interest received 2 FE 47.5 26.1
Repayment of loans by associates & A TEEER 38.4 70.9
Capital redemption (contribution) BEEER (HE)F
to an associate i Al/N 36.0 (72.7)
Proceeds from disposal of HE—HRBARZ
a subsidiary Fr{85k38 15 10.5 1,372.3
Dividends received from SRl N ] #S)
an associate 10.0 9.0
Proceeds from disposal of financial &% A FET ABZRZ
assets at fair value through profit % Bl & 2 BT 15 508
or loss 5.3 128.4
Decrease in other assets H A& E R L 1.4 0.1
Redemption of available-for-sale BOAftHEemEE
financial assets - 9.2
Option fee refunded EROREES - 0.1
(Increase) decrease in pledged EEMIRITFR (3L 00)
bank deposits N (0.2) 56.4
Capital contribution to a jointly HEFHEREG E R
controlled entity (6.3) (6.3)
Additions of investment properties R ERE Y (21.5) (1,026.4)
Additions of property, NEWE WBER&E
plant and equipment (342.6) (124.6)
Additions of held-to-maturity NEFEINEREE
investments (506.1) (126.9)
Loans to jointly controlled entites B 7k F L [E4% # & 48 (542.9) (799.9)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ¥ EXBFHAREFE
ACTIVITIES (135.6) (198.9)
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BEREBBREBRARAR 2011/2012 F;

2012 2011
NOTE HK$'M HK$'M
B 5E BEBT BEATT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BhE X
New bank borrowings raised HIEIRITEE 2,118.0 3,189.6
Advance from non-controlling IR B AR IR
shareholders 125.7 284.8
Club debentures issued FREMES 2.7 4.5
Repayment of obligations EERMEHERE
under finance leases (0.3) (1.5)
Redemption of convertible bonds &[] A] #2 % & 55 - (834.3)
Acquisition of additional interest ~ 1ZE& I B A BlAES
in a subsidiary (17.6) -
Interest paid =R (48.2) (25.5)
Dividends paid BT S (148.5) (256.5)
Repayment of bank and EERITREMER
other loans (1,210.1) (1,406.8)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM MEXEBRBRETHE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 821.7 954.3
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReERBHEEEEEBZ
CASH EQUIVALENTS 1 nEE 250.8 169.4
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS &#zZzH&E R
AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR He%EER 2,379.9 2,055.4
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EZF#Ehz &
RATE CHANGES (1.9) 155.1
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS &£ XzZH&EXK
AT END OF THE YEAR H&EEEERB 35 2,628.8 2,379.9
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2012 2011
NOTES HK$'M HK$'M
B 5 BEAET BEBTT
Note: Bt 5T
(a) Analysis of adjusting items, net (a) MABEBZFEZIN
Depreciation of property, M BB M
plant and equipment RBZITE 9 153.8 152.8
Interest expense FEFZ 8 52.6 29.3
Impairment loss recognised BRI EE R 7 20.2 10.0
Net allowance for doubtful debts REEEFE 7 3.7 4.0
Release of prepaid lease FEAEENRESD
payments 9 1.0 1.2
Reversal of provision for loans O REFARESER
to an investee ERBE 7 - (85.3)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FNBARZ
& 5 - (634.1)
Net gains from financial SRMEE AT
assets/liabilities 7 (5.1) (7.8)
Interest income R E WA 6 (47.5) (26.1)
Share of results of jointly D 2 FHE
controlled entities S (69.9) (79.3)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, LEME WE K
plant and equipment HEz (W) BB 7 (72.1) 0.5
Share of results of associates HIhEE R RIFEE (90.8) (150.1)
Realised gain on disposal of HEREMFEZ
investment properties B2 W 15 (252.8) (6.1)
Unrealised gain in fair value of wEMEZ ANTEZ
investment properties REIR W a 11 (375.4) (750.8)
(682.3) (1,541.8)
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AR e B SRR M Rt

For the year ended 31 March 2012 #HZ=201243A31HIEFE

1. General

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in
the Corporate Information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the development,
management and provision of essential and recreational
services for residential housing and leisure projects in
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island, other property development,
property investment, hotel operation, manufacturing, securities
investments and provision of healthcare services.

The Group’s associates and jointly controlled entities are
principally engaged in property development, property
investment and construction.
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2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”s),
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”s),
amendments and interpretations (“INT”s) (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “new and revised HKFRSs”) issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA™).

Amendments to HKFRSs  Improvements to HKFRSs issued

in 2010
HKAS 24 (as revised Related party disclosures
in 2009)
Amendments to Prepayments of a minimum
HK(IFRIC*) — INT 14 funding requirement

HK(IFRIC) — INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities

with equity instruments

* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee

The application of these new and revised HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material effect on the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and/or
disclosures set out in the consolidated financial statements.

BEEZLBBREEER AR 2011/2012 F#H
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Up to the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new and
revised HKFRSs, which are not yet mandatorily effective for the
current accounting period. The Group has not early adopted
any of these standards, with the exception of the amendments
to HKAS 12 titled “Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets”. The amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2012, but as permitted by the
amendments, the Group had adopted the amendments for
the annual period beginning 1 April 2010. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the other new and
revised HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results
and financial position of the Group.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
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The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statement from
the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of

disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to
non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary

is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance (effective from 1 April 2010
onwards).

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date

when control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying amount

of any non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at

the date when control is lost (including any components

of other comprehensive income attributable to them),

and (iii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognised in
profit or loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the
subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and
the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified

to profit or loss or transferred directly to accumulated profits
as specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.
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The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s

net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use

and fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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Joint ventures

Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of
a separate entity in which venturers have joint control over
the economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entity
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost

and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the jointly
controlled entities. When the Group’s share of losses of a jointly
controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly
controlled entity (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
jointly controlled entity), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of that jointly
controlled entity.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly controlled entity.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs to
sell) with its carrying amount, any impairment loss recognised
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled

entity, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the jointly controlled entity are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the jointly controlled entity that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amount receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of
business is recognised when the respective properties have
been completed and transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the properties.

When a development property is sold in advance of
completion, profit is only recognised when the respective
properties have been completed and the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the properties have been transferred
to the buyer. Deposits and instalments received from
purchasers prior to this stage are included in current liabilities.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and title has passed.

Service income is recognised as services are rendered.

Hotel operation income is recognised upon the provision of
services and the utilisation of the hotel facilities by guests.

Dividend income from investments excluding financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") is recognised
when the Group’s right to receive payments has been
established.
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Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it

is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of interest can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset excluding financial assets at
FVTPL is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
(classified as finance leases) and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes other than construction in progress are stated in

the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment other than properties under
construction less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised

in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease. However, when
there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained
by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the
shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future
owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation

of prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost,
less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any. If the recoverable amount
of an asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.
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Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined as if no impairment loss had been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for the period
in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn

from use and no future economic benefits are expected

from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.
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Inventories

Properties held for/under development for
sale

Properties held for/under development for sale are classified
under current assets and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs relating to the development of the
properties include land cost, construction cost, borrowing costs
and other direct development expenditure. The properties

are transferred to properties held for sale upon completion of
construction.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are completed properties and are
classified under current assets. They are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value.

Others

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average method.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price for
inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated income statement because it excludes items

of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rate that has been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.
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Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used

in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in

a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in

a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interest in jointly controlled entities, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with
such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model in accordance with HKAS
40 “Investment property”, such properties are presumed to

be recovered through sale. Such a presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model of the Group whose business objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied
in the investment property over time, rather than through

sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities

and deferred tax assets for such investment properties are
measured using the tax rate applicable for recovery through
use.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.
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The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the profit
or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight line
basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets,
in which case they are capitalised in accordance with the
Group’s policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting policy
below).

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight line basis over the lease term. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are
recognised as a reduction of rental expense over the lease
term on a straight line basis.
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Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight line basis,
except for those that are classified and accounted for as
investment properties under the fair value model. When the
lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land
and building elements, the entire lease is generally classified
as a finance lease and accounted for as property, plant and
equipment.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated

at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item
that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign
operation, in which case, such exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising
on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in
other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange
differences are also recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of

the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange reserve.
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On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of

a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are reattributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all other
partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates or jointly
controlled entities that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share of
the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit
or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable

to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of

the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and

of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
(including all fees or points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income from debt instruments and interest expense
are recognised on an effective interest basis, other than those
financial assets classified as at FVTPL, of which interest
income is included in net gains or losses.
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Financial assets

The Group'’s financial assets are classified into one of the four
categories, including financial assets at FVTPL, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at FVTPL comprise financial assets held for
trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

o it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets

with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in

an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, other assets, other
financial assets, pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, amounts due from associates and amount due from a
jointly controlled entity) are carried at amortised cost using

the effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturities that the Group’s management has the positive
intention and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to initial
recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured

at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL,
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in investment revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, at which time,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).
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Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired where there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and other financial assets, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed

for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the
Group's past experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the
average credit period, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

BEEZLBREEER AR 2011/2012 F#H
141

TREERE

TREE (RAVEMAREZEREE
BRI RIMEMR G KT HE D HIRE
PR-WEEBREBREASREE (AT
AEBR R ERVRERLEE 2 —TAK
ZHREMAMZENTE MEREENES
T OARAE -

AR EREREMS  ZAREZA
FEAEIRMTHREERERAE KK
BRBEZEBRER-

AABEEMERMEENS MEZEEE
ELIEADEE

o BITAAXRSZBHLREAMBE
B

o EXN WAREFITEEEMNENAZ:
"

o EBARAIGERENETHMEEM-

RETHRNEREE (WREKEZRERK
Hth&MEE) M= T TEBIFEREZ
BES —HaHARE - BRUSRFAS LR
B2 RBEREEAEEBEUKRCE
MenNBBBFEEERZERMAE £
Tt AR BRSO R KON B IR & BB



HKR International Limited Annual Report 2011/2012

142

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MRS IR R M
For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by

the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables and other financial assets,
where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of

an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of

the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
trade receivables and other financial assets are considered
uncollectible, they are written off against the allowance
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in
the period in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment losses were recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in investment
revaluation reserve.
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Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a

group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities other than derivatives (including bank
loans, trade payables, deposits received, other financial
liabilities and other liabilities) are subsequently measured at
amortised costs, using the effective interest method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument. Derivatives embedded in non-
derivative host contracts are not separated from the relevant
host contracts when the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivatives are closely related to those of
the host contracts. On initial recognition, the fair value of the
liability component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between the gross proceeds of the issue of the convertible
bonds and the fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the embedded call option for the holder to
convert the bonds into equity, is included in convertible bonds
equity reserve.
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In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in convertible bonds
equity reserve until the embedded option is exercised, in
which case the balance stated in convertible bonds equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium. Where the option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance stated

in convertible bonds equity reserve will be transferred to the
accumulated profits. No gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
bonds are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly

to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible bonds using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date

a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective
as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the
recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge
relationship.
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Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the

contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable

that the Group will be required to settle that obligation,

and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).
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Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes/
state-managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an expense

when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.

4. Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

Management had made the following estimations that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements and a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at 31 March 2012 at their

fair value of HK$6,135.2 million (2011: HK$6,133.1 million)
(Note 15). The fair value was based on valuation of these
properties conducted by independent firms of professional
valuers using property valuation techniques which involve
certain assumptions of market conditions. Favourable or
unfavourable changes to these assumptions would result in
changes in the fair value of the Group’s investment properties
and corresponding adjustments to the amount of gain or loss
reported in the consolidated income statement.
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A jointly controlled entity obtained the land title certificates of
two pieces of land out of three. The management considers
there is no material legal impediment for the jointly controlled
entity to obtain the land title certificate of the remaining one.
The valuation of the three pieces of land which are classified
as investment properties under construction held by the jointly
controlled entity was conducted by independent firms of
professional valuers which was derived by making reference
to recent comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant property market (on the assumption that all the land
title certificates have been obtained at the valuation date), and
has also taken into account the construction costs already
incurred as well as the estimated costs to be incurred to
complete the projects including future land costs for obtaining
land title certificate, which are deducted in order to arrive

at the value of the partially completed project. The valuation
involves certain assumptions and estimation of future cost to
be incurred. The changes of these assumptions and estimation
would result in changes in the fair value of the investment
properties under construction held by the jointly controlled
entity. As at 31 March 2012, the fair value of the investment
properties under construction held by the jointly controlled
entity amounted to HK$12,267.5 million (2011: HK$11,166.6
million) (Note 19) and the Group’s share of the value of

the investment properties under construction amounted to
HK$6,133.8 million (2011: HK$5,583.3 million).

Properties held for/under development
for sale

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s
properties held for/under development for sale amounting to
HK$2,546.0 million (2011: HK$2,727.4 million) (Note 24) with
reference to current market environment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
of the assets may exceed its net realisable value. Appropriate
write-down for estimated irrecoverable amounts is recognised
in profit and loss when the net realisable value is below

cost. The estimates of net realisable value are based on the
evidence available at the time the estimates are made of the
amount the properties held for/under development for sale that
are expected to realise. Actual realised amount may differ from
estimates, resulting in a decrease in the net realisable value

of these properties held for/under development for sale and
additional write-down may be required.
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Project investment undertaken by a
jointly controlled entity

The Group has a 50% equity interest in a jointly controlled
entity, Dazhongli Properties Limited (“Dazhongli”), which is
engaged in the development of certain properties in Shanghai,
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). In considering the
recoverability of the Group’s loans to Dazhongli amounted to
HK$4,762.6 million (2011: HK$4,388.4 million) (Note 19), the
management takes into consideration the recoverable amount
of the underlying assets of Dazhongli which is determined

by reference to the costs to be incurred to complete the
development of the properties and the future rental income

to be generated therefrom. In this regard, the management
considered that no impairment is necessary in respect of the
loans to Dazhongli.

Impairment of amount due from an
associate

Included in the consolidated statement of financial position
at 31 March 2012 is an amount of HK$850.0 million (2011:
HK$878.9 million) due from an associate, Tung Chung
Station Development Company Limited (“TCSDCL”"), which

is engaged principally in property development activities (see
Note 18). In determining whether an allowance for the amount
due from the associate is required, the management takes
into consideration the recoverable amount of the underlying
assets regarding the amount due from the associate and the
likelihood of collection. Specific allowance is only made for
the amount that is unlikely to be collected from the associate.
The management is satisfied that no further impairment is
considered necessary in respect of the amount due from the
associate.
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Deferred taxation

As at 31 March 2012, no deferred tax asset was recognised

in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position

in relation to the estimated unused tax losses of HK$678.1
million (2011: HK$574.5 million) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams. The Group has recognised a deferred tax
assets of HK$29.1 million (2011: HK$59.8 million) (Note 27)
in relation to unused tax losses in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future taxable profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future.

In cases where the actual future taxable profits generated
differs significantly from the expected, a material recognition
or reversal may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated income statement for the period in which such
recognition takes place.

5. Turnover and Segment
Information

The Group is currently organised into seven operating
divisions: property development, property investment, services
provided (clubs operation, provision of professional property
management and transportation services to the residents

of Discovery Bay), hotel operation, healthcare (provision of
medical and dental care services, comprising cancer centres,
dental clinics, diabetic and cardiovascular centres, imaging
centre and multi-specialty outpatient centres), manufacturing
(manufacturing and sales of bathroom products) and securities
investment. Each of the operating divisions represents an
operating and reportable segment.
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The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results INTARBEERAZRD BT AFE
by operating and reportable segments for the year: AEBZWARESE:
Property Property Services Hotel Securities
development  investment provided operation  Healthcare Manufacturing  investment Total
NEBRRE  MERE RGRE  BEEE BERE BE BERE @it
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
ABAT HE#rT HEBET  HEET  HEART  EEAT  HeARn HEERn
For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H 1L £ &
TURNOVER LES
Segment revenue - sales PHERA-EEBR
to external customers derived UNGIESpIS (S
by the Group and associates HEH 1,253.9 352.5 428.6 368.7 3289 232.7 5.3 2,970.6
Excluding turnover of associates  HBBENA %R (1,253.3) (37.8) - - - - - (L,291))
Excluding sale proceeds of RRETRENMEL
certain investment properties HEMEIE (F1)
(note 1) - (10.1) - - - - - (10.1)
Excluding sale proceeds of HREFREL
securities investment HERGIE - - - - - - (5.3) (5.3)
Consolidated turnover, as reported A EERE 2 F 0.6 304.6 428.6 368.7 3289 232.7 - 1,664.1
RESULTS ES |
Segment results —total realised results 2 HEE-AEE -
of the Group, assocates and BEARREAREHES
jointly controlled entities (note 2) LEERFELET (HF2) 24.9 445.1 61.8 8.9 (55.5) 6.3 10.4 501.9
Excluding realised results of RREAREIEHEAFR
associates and jointly controlled ERAHER EERER
entities not shared by the Group (30.6) (8.4) - - - - - (39.0)
Results attributable to the Group ~~ AEEE(E 24 (5.7) 436.7 61.8 8.9 (55.5) 6.3 10.4 462.9
Unallocated corporate expenses RARAAER (82.4)
Finance costs and corporate level ~ BIEBBRAREEZ
exchange difference ERER (27.9)
Net unrealised gains on fair value R EMEATFELE 2
change of investment properties RERMEFE (H3)
(note 3) 3744
Net unrealised gains on fairvalue ~ AEBEELREHEER
change of investment properties BENANREDZEER
attributable to the Group's interests A TEZE 2 K& BMNE
in a jointly controlled entity and FE NRELEHE
associates, net of deferred tax 128.7
Profit for the year KERREF 855.7
Non-controlling shareholders’ FERRRAEAFE R
share of profit for the year (108.5)
Profit for the year attributable to AR EHEE ABEAFE R
the owners of the Company 747.2
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Property Property Services Hotel Securities
development  investment provided operation  Healthcare  Manufacturing ~ investment Total
NERXE  WERE  RERE  BEEE  BERE 2E FHRE st
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
ABAT ABBE®T AEAT  AEAT  BEAT  BEAT  BEAT BB
For the year ended 31 March 2011~ EZ201143 318 1L 5
TURNOVER ]
Segment revenue - sales ABBA-REER
to external customers derived BEARHINIER L
by the Group and associates HE® 810.2 4655 3975 344.1 409.4 2071 92 2663.0
Excluding tumover of associates ~ RRBAN A EEE (752.9) (85.5) - - - - - (838.4)
Excluding sale proceeds of RRETRENMEL
certain investment properties HEMENE (ML)
(note 1) = (14.7) - = - - - (14.7)
Excluding sale proceeds of BREFREL
securities investment HEMGIE - - - - - - 92 9.2
Consolidated tumover, as reported A S %% ME2 R 573 365.3 3975 344.1 4094 227.1 = 1,800.7
RESULTS £5
Segment results - total realised results 2 2 £& - R E 8«
of the Group, associates and BANAREREHEE L
jointly controlled entities (note 4) BERZELE (M) 1163 9235 491 155 428 (159) 149 1,0606
Excluding realised results of ?ﬁﬁ?#z‘r‘%@n HBERR R
associates and jointly controlled HRZHER ERRER
entities not shared by the Group (66.4) 142 - - - - = (52.2)
Results attributable to the Group AEERGEE 499 937.7 491 155 (42.8) (159) 149 1,008.4
Unallocated corporate expenses RARATER (99.7)
Finance costs and corporate level ~ BB BB RAFEALZ
exchange difference EHER (32.1)
Net unrealised gains on fair value ~ REMEATEEH 2
change of investment properties R a5 (HizEs)
(note 5) 750.5
Net unrealised gains on fairvalue ~ AEEEEEXRRHEER
change of investment properties ~ BE QAR ENEER 2
attributable to the Group’s interests  AFEEEH 7 KEF
in a jointly controlled entity and R MRETHE
associates, net of deferred tax 156.8
Profit for the year RERET] 17839
Non-controlling shareholders’ FERBREA EAEE R
share of profit for the year (136.0)
Profit for the year attributable to AR I#A ABEAEERT
the owners of the Company 16479
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Notes:

(5)

For property investment segment, revenue included rental
income generated from investment properties and the sale
proceeds arising from disposal of particular investment property
in Shanghai, the PRC. Such disposal proceeds were excluded
from consolidated turnover for reporting purpose.

The segment results of the Group represent the total realised
results of the Group, associates and jointly controlled entities,
excluding the unrealised gains on fair value change of
investment properties net of deferred tax arising from change in
fair value. The segment results of property investment business
for the year ended 31 March 2012 included realised gains on
fair value change of investment properties of HK$252.8 million,
deferred tax credit on disposal of investment properties of
HK$2.9 million, and recognition of current tax upon disposal of
investment properties of HK$2.4 million.

The net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment
properties for the year ended 31 March 2012 of HK$374.4
million represented the unrealised gain on fair value change of
investment properties of HK$375.4 million net of the deferred
tax arising from change in fair value of HK$1.0 million.

The segment results of the Group represent the total realised
results of the Group, associates and jointly controlled entities,
excluding the unrealised gains on fair value change of
investment properties net of deferred tax arising from change in
fair value. The segment results of property investment business
for the year ended 31 March 2011 included realised gains on
fair value change of investment properties of HK$640.2 million,
deferred tax credit on disposal of investment properties of
HK$5.1 million, and recognition of current tax upon disposal of
investment properties of HK$4.3 million.

The net unrealised gains on fair value change of investment
properties for the year ended 31 March 2011 of HK$750.5
million represented the unrealised gain on fair value change of
investment properties of HK$750.8 million net of the deferred
tax arising from change in fair value of HK$0.3 million.

(%)

REREDHME  MABERKERE
MEZESRARHERTE EBFER
BMEZHEMSHA - REREW &
SHEMBFRANGA EXRRMR -

REBZHHEEEAER BERAFR
HEEHIEREEREELE T8
BEYMENTFEEE 2 ARBE R N
KREAFESEMEECEERIE -HE
20123 A3IAILEE - MEREXEB 2
DEBHEERIFRENERATEEGH 2B
U252 8F BT  HEIREMERIE
RZEERIE20E BB T L EIREY
FEERAEAKIBE2AEE B T

BZE2012F3A31H IEFE  REWER
FEZFH 2 RABRNEFEI7LIIBEE
THEREMERTEES 2 RER W

I754ABEEETT HKEXFEZSME
EZBEERIELOREE T -

REBZHHEEEAER BEARR
HEZEHIEREERELEBT  T0E
&%‘#@% N THEEB) 2 R F IR W E - W
AV EREMEEZEERIEB -BE
2011¢3H315¢¢F'%¥&>§¥%2
DBHEEBRFEREMELTELH 2EH
B E640.28 BB  HEIREMERIEK
RZEEBIBESIBEATREEREY
¥EmRABRELIIESE T

B ZE201163A3IB IEFE  REVWER
FEEE 2 RBEWRIFHE750.58 88
THEREMERNTEES 2 RER W
7508 & BT B EAFEZ SN E
HZBEFIFOIFEE T -

All of the segment revenue reported above is from external
customers.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating
and reportable segments is disclosed as they are not reviewed
by the chief operating decision maker nor otherwise regularly
provided to the chief operating decision maker for review.

Other segment information

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Property Property Services
development investment provided
NERR  MERE  RERE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEERL BEER BRER

BEREPBBREBERARAR 2011/2012 F3;
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A E2HZ A DI EEREINEEE
Eo

REEYN EREREERATZHmD EHE D
ZEERBBEZAN AREEI ML E
HEBLERRERTIXERRBTER
BERREERET -

oAt 43 ER ERH

#H Z201253A31HLLEE
Hotel Securities  Unallocated
operation  Healthcare Manufacturing ~ investment amounts Total
BEXH  BERRE g BHHE  AOKER @t

HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BE#T  EE#T  ERER  BEERT  ABER BEER

Amounts included in the measure of 3 EAFERFAELLE:
segment profit or loss:

Revenue from inter-segment sales * A Bz EEK - (3.4) (6.0)
Depreciation ik 10.8 76 458
Impairment losses on property, plant 913 * B kR 2

and equipment recognised BRRREEE - - -
Allowance for doubiful debts RERE - - 0.1
Net gains from financial SHAE/BETRE

assets/liabilities - - -
(Gain) loss on disposal of HENE BERREL

property, plant and equipment (st B R - (0.6) 0.1
Realised gains on disposals of HERENEZBERME

investment properties - (252.8) -
Interest income FERA (1.4) (18.2) -
Interest expenses ELF 0.1 130 -
Income tax expenses FERRY 146 26 6.1
Share of resuls of associates AMEBEAREE (29.2) (10.2) -
Share of results of PEEREHEREE

jointly controlled entities 0.3 10.1 -
Write down of inventories FERE - - -

- - - - - 94)
54.1 215 113 - 2.7 153.8
- 8.7 - - - 8.7

- 32 04 - - 37

- - - 51) - (5.1)
0.2 11 (72.9) - - (72.1)
- - - - - (252.8)
23) 01) - 05) (25.0) @15
- - 13 - 488 63.2
6.6 16 6.7 - 30 61.2
- - - - (51.4) (90.8)

. _ - - 79.7) (69.9)

- 2.3 9.2 - - 115
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

For the year ended 31 March 2011 HZE2011F3A31HIEFE
Property Property Services Hotel Securites Unallocated
development investment provided operation Healthcare ~ Manufacturing investment amounts Total
NELR NERE AR BEETS BERE g FFRE  ADEEE 3t
HKSM HKSM HKSM HKS'M HKSM HKSM HKS'M HKSM HKSM
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT
Amounts included in the measure of  sFEABERFRELLE:
segment profit or loss:
Revenue from inter-segment sales *  2-2f 2 & Wi+ - @31) (62 - - - - - (83)
Depreciation ik 218 105 305 50.6 2317 121 - 36 1528
Impairment losses on property, plant  #1%* BE R R &2
and equipment recognised BREIREES - - - - 100 - - = 100
(Reversal of allowance) allowance  (BEER) REAE
for doubtful debts (0.6) - (L1) - 50 07 - - 40
Reversal of provision for loansto ~ BREFBEREHZER CEE
an investee - (85.3) - - = = - - (85.3)
Net gains from financial SREE/BEFIG
assetsfliabiliies - - - - - - (78) = (7.8)
Loss (gain) on disposal of HENE BERREZ
property, plant and equipment BB (&) - 08 01 (04) - - - - 05
Realised gains on disposals of HERENEBER MG
investment properties - (640.2) - - - - - - (640.2)
Interest income FERA (10 (14.4) - (06) 0.2) = (0.2) 97) (26.1)
Interest expenses fleEx - 28 - 01 01 08 = 384 422
Income tax expenses (credit) FRHRx (E5) 84 522 80 (68) 28 - - 0.7) 639
Share of results of associates HEBERAZE (799) 23 - - - - - (725) (150.1)
Share of results of PEEREHEEEE
jointly controlled entities - 50 - - - - - (84.3) (79.3)

Inter-segment sales are entered into in accordance with the

relevant agreements, if any, governing those transactions, in

which the pricing was determined with reference to prevailing

market price or actual cost incurred, as appropriate.

Turnover from major products and services

The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover from major

products and services:

© OHMZHENRERERERS2EH

et (08 ) ETT RHERITISRAITH
BHREREEKRA (RFERBRAME)
BE-

TEEMERG CERE
T BAREEEER BB ELEHH -

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BHEBTT BEAT

Sales of properties HE Y% - 57.3
Sales of goods HEBm 232.7 227.1
Rental income e BA 315.0 371.1
Hotel revenue B JE WA 344.2 324.4
Provision of healthcare services RHBERRERE 328.9 409.4
Other services rendered IR H Ath R 443.3 4114

1,664.1 1,800.7

Geographical information

For each of the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011, the
Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong, the PRC, South
East Asia and Japan, Australia and the United Kingdom.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on

the location of properties and goods delivered or services
rendered, and location of properties in the case of rental
income, and information about its non-current assets by
geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

155

Hh [ & R

HZE2012F R2011F3A31F LR EE -
NEBZLBEBKUABTE PR Figs
N B 8 K S o

KEBFRANDBES (A% TAES
IR IRIE ¥ FrAE AR B S AT
= R AR 2 Ikt R AR
BRAEMENEES 2 ERBEE Y HE
wmF

il

Revenue from

external customers

Non-current assets

RENMIE P 2B & FRBEE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HEAT BEAT HEAT BEAT
Hong Kong B 899.3 1,076.9 7,017.3 6,807.6
PRC a2 41.4 34.9 6,530.6 5,871.8
South East Asia and Japan RBEe kAR 531.4 486.2 2,567.4 2471.1
Australia BN 160.8 173.3 3.7 3.6
United Kingdom B 31.2 294 69.8 0.2
1,664.1 1,800.7 16,188.8 15,154.3

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments and deferred
tax assets.

Information about major customers

The revenue from individual customer contributed less than
10% of the total turnover of the Group for both years.

fist: FRBDEETERERTIANMEERR

HEHEEE P ZER

RERFEEE R EEAEF 2 KHET
B R 2 10% -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

6. Other Income 6. Hwd A 8. Finance Costs 8. WM& #EH
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT BEET BEBT
Other income includes the following: Ha A BIE T &IE Interest on T FIEZH B
Bank and other loans wholly repayable HARNRAFNBHEEZ
Bank and other interest income HRIT R H A A B U A 47.5 26.1 within five years SRITRE M B 52.5 25 4
Other income H At A 73.4 68.0 Other borrowings wholly repayable HARNRAFNBHEEZ
120.9 94.1 within five years Hibtg & 12.9 49
Convertible bonds — liability component ~ AJ# M {ESH—BR AFRNR
wholly repayable within five years HERZBESD - 38
7. Other Gains and Losses 7. H st &g H c5.4 a1
Other (losses) gains include the following: Hi (BB KREBRETIEE: Less: Amounts included in the cost B ETARIEREZBE
of properties held for/under BER TERYERAN
2012 2011 development for sale/construction -
HK$'M HK$'M ; (12.8) (4.8)
BEET BEBT N Progress : '
(o 7 S /7 ., 52.6 29.3
Net foreign exchange (loss) gain HNEEDE W5 (B518) = (12.1) 11.2 .
Bank loans arrangement fees RITERZHER 10.6 12.9
Reversal of provision for loans BEMABREHRER &
to an investee (Note 21) & (MFEE21) - 85.3 63.2 422
Gain on disposal of property, HEME  BEREE WS
plant and equipment 72.1 —
Impairment loss recognised BRI EEE
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16)  #12% « /= K& & (MI5E16) (8.7) (10.0)
Inventories FE (11.5) -
Trade receivables FEWE 5 R (3.7) -
(23.9) (10.0)
Net gains from financial assets/liabilities & @EE BE 2 FWRE
Net realised gains on financial assets BAFEGFAERZ
at FVTPL TRIEEDZE 2% S 5.1 -
Net realised gains on available-for-sale AHHEESREECD#R 2
financial assets U - 9.2
5.1 9.2
Net losses on derivative financial PTESMT A FER
instruments - (1.4)
5.1 7.8

41.2 94.3
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BEREPBBREBERARAR 2011/2012 F3;

9. Profit Before Taxation 9. BB HT A
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Profit before taxation has been arrived BB AR A 2B (FEA)
at after charging (crediting): T3&IA :
Auditor’s remuneration % ELET BN 7.9 7.6
Cost of inventories and developed FERBEERYEKAR
properties recognised as an expense wRAEERH 106.1 153.0
Operating lease rentals in respect of THREFILEHERS
land and buildings 55.1 46.5
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXRA(BEESEHE)
remuneration) 527.6 509.2
Release of prepaid lease payments ENHEENRE R 1.0 1.2
Depreciation e
Owned assets BEEEE 152.0 152.4
Assets under finance leases BMEHETZEE 1.8 0.4
153.8 152.8
Net rental income under KEHET 2 e WA FRE
operating leases on
Investment properties wEME (310.6) (367.6)
Other properties H b (4.4) (3.5)
Less: Outgoings B 35.0 22.9
(280.0) (348.2)

159
10. Taxation 10. Bl
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEERT BEET
The taxation charge comprises: MBS HERE !
Hong Kong Profits Tax calculated at 16.5% 74 [ {51 & 2R B 0 Fli% & R
on the estimated assessable 16.5%5TE 2 BB NS
profit for the year 26.3 35.9
Overseas tax calculated at rates prevailing 2B el AERER 2 H =X
in respective jurisdictions (note a) FE 2 EINETE (Fista) 22.6 35.4
48.9 71.3
Deferred taxation for current year (note b) A& EIRLEFTIE (Hiztb) 12.3 (7.4)
61.2 63.9
Notes: Bt 5E
(@)  The overseas tax charge for the year comprises: (@) AEEZBINGEZHBE:
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Land Appreciation Tax and Enterprise HEMRFRZIREMEE
Income Tax arising from disposal of A7 IR ER R
investment properties in the PRC Frisi (THEREMEZ
(“PRC Tax on disposal of investment FEFIE])
properties”) 2.4 4.3
Other overseas tax H b8 o518 20.2 31.1
22.6 354
Net accumulated taxation charge (credit) ZANEZREHE SR EYE MG
to profit or loss arising from disposal of (5t A) B3 2 B FiE F 58
investment properties during the year R
is as follows:
PRC Tax on disposal of investment HEREMFE R RATHIE
properties 2.4 4.3
Less: Deferred tax recognised in prior B BEFERR CELERIE
years (Note 11) (FHFEELL) (2.9) (5.1)
(0.5) (0.8)
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

(b)  An analysis of deferred taxation for current year is as follows:

(b) REFBELEHRBZ DM

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT
Deferred tax charge arising during the ~ ANFEEREVME A FE
year in respect of unrealised gain BEEERERRZ
on fair value change of investment TEIEFIE
properties 1.0 0.3
Deferred tax credit on disposal of HEREMFERERZ
investment properties EIERIE (2.9) (5.1)
Others HAh 14.2 (2.6)
12.3 (7.4)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated EE MEFE T35 /B 2 B 1 51 FE 2R 55 5% )
assessable profit for both years. B E16.5%5T & ©

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT BIERECEMRSTEAREZTHERG &
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax BIFT B A AR ZMEFE 2 HEB25% o
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates NEMBEEREES ZHRIBIZ AR 5 X
prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions. &7 RITHRAE o

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before taxation per the consolidated income statement as

BEREPBBREBERARAR 2011/2012 F3;

161

AREFHIAX H EERS W aER AR S
M2 EERAAT -

follows:
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEST BEBTT
Profit before taxation B 5% Al g A 916.9 1,847.8
Less: Share of results of associates B DI E QRIS (90.8) (150.1)
Share of results of jointly controlled DRI B S
entities (69.9) (79.3)
Profit before taxation attributable to the Apa REWB R REG
Company and its subsidiaries BR 5% AT A 756.2 1,618.4
Tax charge at the domestic income tax B FTE I A X 16.5%
rate of 16.5% AEHIES W 124.8 267.0
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERMA Z RG22
purpose (117.5) (246.9)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A HRAST BT E
for tax purpose 31.5 28.2
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RERHBEEBEBE HEZE 30.5 12.4
Utilisation of tax losses previously not FRBTRERBIAESE
recognised (13.3) (3.1)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries R E b 5lSEAHE R 28~
operating in other jurisdictions MBARBETR & (0.7) 0.7
Tax effect of deductible temporary RERAUMBE R ERE 2
differences not recognised W2 1.6 2.8
Effect of Land Appreciation Tax in the PRC 1 B0 + b 38 (EFi 2 57 28 0.9 2.0
Others B 3.4 0.8
Taxation attributable to the Company and "2 7] &2 E i B A 714 A
its subsidiaries for the year FE(G IR 61.2 63.9
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11. Profit for the Year Attributable to

Owners of the Company

11. A /) B N AL A4 5

iz A

BEREPBBREBERARAR 2011/2012 F3;

163
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEETT BEET
(i) Reversal of provision for loans to an (i) [ [AiERE%E H R
investee (Note 21) B B (iE21) - 85.3
(iv) Other profits (iv)  H A& 55.5 111.2
Subtotal NEE 923.5 1,521.4
Less: Accumulated (gains) losses on BB EEDEACHER
change in fair value of disposed EMELANTFEEHR
investment properties recognised s (UzR) B518 - Bk
in prior years, net of ERERBI TR (K15E)
deferred tax (note) (176.3) 126.5
Profit for the year attributable to the ViN/NCTEZ PN
owners of the Company RE[Em F 747.2 1,647.9
Note: Accumulated gains on change in i BAEFEEERZLERE
fair value of disposed investment YEANTLEZERFME
properties recognised in (MI3E15)
prior years (Note 15) 179.2 39.0
Deferred tax relating to fair value BATFEEERACHERE
change of disposed investment MEAFEEERB 2
properties recognised in prior years EEREIE (MIFE10)
(Note 10) (2.9) (5.1)
Accumulated losses on change BAFECERZOERE
in fair value of disposed investment VIR B AR AFEE
properties holding subsidiary FB) RiTEE
recognised in prior years - (160.4)
176.3 (126.5)

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Profit for the year attributable to the RAa|ER AEL
owners of the Company comprises: REEHENBHE:
() Net unrealised gains on changein () FRREWELFE
fair value of investment BB RER
properties during the year Wy %5 FRE
— The Group —AREE 375.4 750.8
Less: Deferred tax B IRERE IR (1.0 (0.3)
Attributable to FEIE IR B
non-controlling interests (64.7) (96.9)
309.7 653.6
— Jointly controlled entity, net of — HEEG T
deferred tax (Note 19(a)(ii)) HBREERIR
(Bt &E19)()) 77.3 84.3
— Associates, net of deferred tax = VNEIE
HBRIEE R IE 51.4 72.5
438.4 810.4
(i) Accumulated net realised gainson (i) FRAHEREWEZ
disposal of investment properties BB 2R NEFE
during the year
Gain on disposal of an investment HE—FREYEE
properties holding subsidiary B NG € - 634.1
Realised gain on disposal of other HEEMEENE L
investment properties B2 I 252.8 6.1
Realised gain on disposal of HEREYH 2 EEBRI
investment properties (Note 15) = (FI5EL5) 252.8 640.2
Accumulated gains (losses) BAEFERRIHERE
on change in fair value of MENTFEEE R
disposed investment properties = (BE)  RET
recognised in prior years, net of I (MsE)
deferred tax (note) 176.3 (126.5)
Taxation credit for the year KEERIBE R 0.5 0.8

429.6 514.5




HKR International Limited Annual Report 2011/2012

BEREPBBREBERARAR 2011/2012 F3;

164

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MRS IR R M

For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

12. Directors’ Remuneration and
Five Highest Paid Employees’
Remuneration

(i) Details of directors’ remuneration
are as follows:

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the fourteen
(2011: fourteen) directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2012

Cha Cha  ChaYiu Chung Tang Ronald

12. FHFN A % h 4 B 5 R
B Z M4

(1)

Cha  Cheung

HHMEFEEWT

Bt E14% (20114 : 14%2)E

ERAZB2IT
B Z201243A31HLEE
Wong Cha Cheng  Cheung  Cheung Ho Pak

Mou Sing ~ Mou Zing Chung  SamTin Moon Joseph ~ Mou Daid Tseung  MayLung ~ KarShun  KinTung ~ Wing Lam Ching Qin
Payson Victor ~ Benjamin ~ Abraham Wah Arculli -~ Johnson Ming ~ Madeline Henry Marvin Linus Loretta Xiao Total
BhE  ERA TEY B0 ®EE O EEE SRE  REW ITER BR4 REE RAKR WEA E] L E]
HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HK$'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M HKS'M
BEET FRET FEBT FRET FEET FRAR FEBT FRER FEET FEAR FEET FEAR GEER FEER EEER
Fees e - 03 - - - 02 01 0.1 01 03 03 03 01 03 21
Other emoluments Ethde
Salaries and offer benefits  Fr& REMER 46 57 21 20 33 - - - - - 183
Performance related EnE ()
incentive payment (note) 04 38 10 05 12 - - - - - 6.9
Retirement benefits chemes & KR 3t8
contribution {3 - 03 0.1 01 0.2 - - - - - 0.7
Total emoluments Heus 5.0 101 38 26 47 02 01 01 01 03 03 03 01 03 2.0
For the year ended 31 March 2011 B E2011F3A31H EFE
Cha Cha  ChaYu Chung Tang Ronald Cha  Cheung  WongCha Cheng  Cheung  Cheung  HoPak
MouSing  Mou Zing Chung  SamTin Moon Joseph  Mou Daid Tseung  Maylung  KarShun  KinTung  Wing Lam Ching Qin
Payson Victor ~ Benjamin® ~ Abraham Wah Arculli~ Johnson Ming ~ Madeline Henry Marvin Linus Loretta Xiao Totel
thg AR fRh BUE BEE ER THE RE® IERE  WFH  RER  RKR fRA &5 it
HKSM HKS M HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BERT AEET RERT AERT RERT AEMT RERT AEWT BERT AEWT BERT AEMR BERT  AEMR BEER
Fees i3 = 03 = = = 02 01 01 01 03 03 03 01 03 21
Other emoluments Ethie
Salares and other benefits  HERABER 44 47 10 19 32 - 21 - - - 173
Performance related (M)
incentive payment (note) 54 61 12 06 15 = 66 - - - 24
Retirement benefits chemes & K& ztE
contribution i = 02 01 01 02 = 01 = = = = - 07
Total emoluments WesE 98 113 23 26 49 02 01 89 01 03 03 03 01 03 415
Note: The performance related incentive payment is MieE: BREBDNSEFAREE 2 LE

determined with reference to the operating results and
comparable market statistics of the Group, and individual
performance of the directors during the year.

* The amount represents the remuneration since the date
of appointment as director.

B UhEmSEEESEL
REEE -

ZEREHERIRESTZAREY
e
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During both years, no emoluments were paid by the RRFEAN NEBITERES S ME
Group to the directors as an inducement to join. No BREEEENMAREE 22 -
directors waived any emoluments during both years. FAN MEESHETAME -
Employees’ remuneration (i1) 1@ B M 4
For the year ended 31 March 2012, the five highest HZE201263A31B ILFE  REES
paid individuals of the Group included four (2011: four) BT AL B4 (20114 :
executive directors, whose emoluments are disclosed AR5 BATES BEZMER EX
above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2011: W 1% (20115 : 1K) EEZ
one) employee are as follows: [ I N
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Salaries and other benefits Fre M HEMAE R 2.8 4.0
Performance related incentive A (k)
payment (note) 1.0 -
Retirement benefits schemes R RAR FFT B4R
contribution 0.1 0.1
3.9 4.1
Note: The performance related incentive payment is MeE: BRI EFALAEB 2L

determined with reference to the operating results and
comparable market statistics of the Group, and individual
performance of the employees during the year.

¥4E  TheRmis s MESES
REETE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

13. Dividends 13. I B
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Final dividend paid #HE2011F3AH31H 1
for the financial year ended B HFE 2 IR R
31 March 2011 of HK11 cents — &1L (2011
(2011: for the financial year ended &F: HE201063A31H 1E
31 March 2010 of HK12 cents) per share BFBUF € —127840) 148.5 162.0
No interim dividend declared, REFEBRTETIRER
before the end of the vear, 20123318 It BFE
for the financial year ended ZHHRE (2011F : HZE
31 March 2012 (2011: 20113 A31H L BEFE
for the financial year ended ZFPEHRE—FR7EMW)
31 March 2011 interim dividend
of HK7 cents per share) - 94.5
148.5 256.5
Interim dividend declared, REH#EBRREIREZE2012F
after the end of the vyear, 3A318 EHRFE 2+ H
for the financial year ended B B —FRR8E L (20114 -
31 March 2012 of HK8 cents )
(2011: nil) per share 108.0 -
No final dividend B E£2012F3H31H 1k
for the financial year ended B BUF 8 0 AR 35 R R
31 March 2012 (2011: f% B (20114 : i =20114F
for the financial year ended 3A31H - BRFEE
31 March 2011 of HK11 cents —JFR11B)
per share) - 148.5

14. Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

BEEXBREEARAQAF 2011/2012 F#H
167

14. &5 &

ARBHEBANREERELRREERN TS
RIE NIRRT S

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Earnings EH
Earnings for the purpose of calculating ~ T EEFREREF] 2 BT
basic earnings per share (profit for (ARAREA ANELAEE
the year attributable to owners of the i A1)
Company) 747.2 1,647.9
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: 2 &7 #5857 £ ~ L@k
Interest on convertible bonds AR ES 2 F B N/A & H 3.8
Earnings for the purpose of calculating st E&REER T 2 BT
diluted earnings per share N/A FEHA 1,651.7
2012 2011
Number of shares Hi?ﬁl
Number of ordinary shares in issue during stE&GREKRER 2 RNEE
the year for the purpose of calculating E?‘ﬁ MR E

the basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
relating to convertible bonds

Number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of calculating diluted earnings per share

1,350,274,367 1,350,274,367

A ES AR EEE

BERE LB N/A & A 7,563,245
u+ iﬂﬂ%ﬁ SEAER 2
f& &8 N/A T#EH 1,357,837,612

BN EE2012F3 A31 R |EF E I (A

No diluted earnings per share has been presented for the
year ended 31 March 2012 because there were no potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

HEECEE N 2 A SUb W #2555k

mERN-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MRS IR R M
For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

15. Investment Properties 15. # &Y % The Group disposed of certain investment properties during FR-AEBHERTREYE LEFS
the year and the details of the disposals are as follows: (N
2012 2oL 2012 2011
HK$'M ST HK$'M HK$'M
aliiall BT EEET  AEBT
FAIR VALUE /ATTHE Sales proceeds received 2 U 85 & TS 3B 649.3 101.0
At beginning of the year FA) 6,133.1 52986 Original cost of acquisitions Wi 2 IR AR E (217.3) (55.9)
Currency realignment SRRE 1.7 red Accumulated gains on change in fair value {81 FE DR 2 A FE
Additions AE 21.5 1,026.4 recognised in prior years (Note 11) gE) Rt (MIEELL) (179.2) (39.0)
Change in fair value recognised in RiBmER AT EES
profit or loss Realised gain on disposal recognised F A H & R iR
— Realised gain on disposals —HERZ2ER K= 252.8 6.1 during the year B 25 e 252.8 6.1
_ Unrealised gains SR IR U 3% 375.4 750.8 Realised gain on disposal of investment F@HEKH B AR HE
Disposals g (649.3) (101.0) properties through disposal of ‘"EWMFE 2 B BB WG
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidiary & — A M B A R B £ 84 a subsidiary (see note below) (R FXHiE) - 634.1
(see note below) (R TXMEE) - (926.9) Total realised gains on disposal of HEREMFE 2D ERKE
At end of the year &% 6,135.2 6,133.1 investment properties (Note 11) #eEE (MaELL) 252.8 640.2
Investment properties of the Group held at the end of the RBERR AEERB 2 REYERU
reporting period are situated on land as follows: RZ BT -
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Freehold outside Hong Kong ML BB AN B 2 5K A SEHE 900.2 917.7
Long leases outside Hong Kong URBEBIME 2 REAELD 118.9 123.0
Long leases in Hong Kong URBEBZEKHHED 419.4 761.6
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong R EE 2 EEL 4,696.7 4,330.8

6,135.2 6,133.1
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

Note:

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 10 December 2010, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with a third party to dispose of its entire interest in a
wholly owned subsidiary, DP Properties Limited (formerly known as
HKR Properties Limited). DP Properties Limited owns 50% interest
in the Discovery Park Shopping Centre, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong (the
“Property”) and owns 50% of each of two associates, Discovery
Park Commercial Services Limited (“DPCSL”) and Discovery Park
Financial Services Limited (“DPFSL”). DPCSL and DPFSL provide
estate management and leasing services in respect of the Property
and second mortgage loans to purchasers of residential units in the
residential tower blocks located above the Property, respectively.
The Group’s interest in the Property was accounted for as a jointly
controlled asset of the Group. The transaction was completed on 22
March 2011.

The consideration and net assets at the date of disposal were as

Fi i :
1 O 24

M20106F12 R 108 - AEEEE=FET—
NEEHZ HEEE2EHE 2WEAFDP
Properties Limited (AT E B EZE (W) BR
NE]) 2 EPIEHE - DP Properties Limited# B &
BEEMEIRENES ([ZWE])50%.2 #
mAREMEEE AR (MR EEREER
AR] ([DPCSL J) Rt &= 3k BA 75 AR 15 B PR A &)
([DPFSL ) ) %&50% 2 # % - DPCSLX DPFSL%
RSt EEZYERMENEEEREERE R
FEBLZEN EECZEEAEEEEM 2
BEEREE_RBER AEB 22WERE
mEFTAREBERZEHEE - ZR HR2011
3 H22H 7EhK

HEEAZREREEFENT:

follows:
HK$'M
BEBT
Consideration received and receivable: B U K RAE
Cash received BEUYIE & 1,400.4
Deferred cash consideration RERSKE 10.5
Total consideration received and receivable B U K e (B 4R RE 1,410.9

171
22.3.2011
HK$'M
BEBIT

Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed of: HEEEREBBZOWWT :

Investment properties A 926.5

Interests in associates [/ = 1.5

Property, plant and equipment VI R KRR 2.6

Amounts due from associates JRE Wi Bt 25 1 B R IE 6.7

Bank balances and cash RITHEBRERS 28.1

Deposits received and other payables B WiR & I H A FE < 5B (121.3)

Taxation payable FES IR (6.9)

Deferred tax liabilities R IE B (& (60.4)
Net assets disposed of LER2EEFE 776.8
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—FRRBARZ W :

Consideration received and receivable B R EWARE 1,410.9

Net assets disposed of HERZEEFE (776.8)
Gain on disposal recognised as realised gain of ?ﬁﬁ¢%¥ N EES) 2

change in fair value of investment properties ~ 2& AR U a7 o R R SR R e 634.1
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEREEZHESRAFRE:

Cash consideration received BEWReNRE 1,400.4

Less: Bank balances and cash disposed of W HERZRITERKEAS (28.1)

1,372.3

The deferred consideration was settled in cash by the purchaser in
May 2011.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the principal
asset of DP Properties Limited is the investment properties and thus
the disposal was accounted for in the consolidated income statement
as disposal of investment properties.

BEIERBER2011F5ARET UBRESEE -

AN A& E 7 ADP Properties Limitedz = Z&
EDREME A HE T RGA WERETA
RIREMEZLE-
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The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31
March 2012 and 2011 have been derived by the following
independent firms of qualified professional valuers with
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of
transaction prices for similar properties and by reference to net

NEBP2012F K2011F3A31H 2 K&
MEANFEDRATEEEBE R R
HEAEEE 2 BUMEGELER B
VABRBEGEMTETHETE %
MEDF A=A REE EA
MSREERIRE  2EHUMEKR
BrmEEBRR2EFHS KA RBER]

rental income allowing for reversionary income potential using RO g 2 TEETC
the applicable market yields for the respective locations and
types of properties as the discount rates.
Location of BEWME
Name of valuer investment properties & {8 B & 78 FEEZE
DTZ Debenham Tie Hong Kong and the PRC HERTHER AR BAELA
Leung Limited
DTZ Debenham Tie Japan HERTHER AR =N
Leung Limited (note) (KF5E)
N&A Appraisal Company Thailand N&A Appraisal Company 2= &
Limited Limited
Note: DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited has engaged its member Bict: BERTERAREREFRNBARZK

firm in Japan, DTZ Debenham Tie Leung KK, to carry out the
valuation of the Group’s properties in Japan.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

BR
8 /A A]DTZ Debenham Tie Leung KK+
REERBARZYEETEE

AEEMBKEHE THRIEMMBE S HE
BEARFHERSZZMEERDRA R FER
Nt E U DBERARINMEREYE -

BEREPBBREBERARAR 2011/2012 F3;
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16. Property, Plant and Equipment 16. P2 ~ & 5 B % i
Furniture, Plant, Ferries,
Leasehold ~ Commercial fixtures ~ machinery launches  Construction
Hotel Freehold landand  and leisure Leasehold and and and motor in
properties land buildings facilities improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles progress Total
XA AELH :1:)3 i B iR a8
EEWE  REiH REF  RERK  WERE  RERRE BRERRE RERRE  fEIE &t
HKSM HKS M HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM HKSM
BE®T EBEMT EBEMT BEMT  BEBT  BEBT  BEBT  BEBT  BEET  BEER
(note b)
(GiED)
CosT RE
At 1 April 2010 H201084A18 1,2896 2138 5933 6134 2151 2%.9 2817 4789 4936 45113
Currency realignment EBRE 1236 176 76 - 23 85 83 16 17 1712
Additions RE 3b4 - 2.7 - 319 174 1.1 161 200 1246
Disposals/write-off HE/HE (145) (34) = = 81) (134) = (38) (28) (46.0)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 15) HE-FHBAF (K1) - - - - 91) (14) - - - (105)
Transfer g 127 - (43) - - - - - (84) -
At 31 March 2011 R2011%3831R8 14468 2630 599.3 6134 232.1 3080 211 49238 504.1 47506
Currency realignment EHAE (106) (42) 88 = 06 15 170 01 (03) 129
Additions WE 188 308 18 - 23 214 36.7 119 195.1 3448
Disposalsiwrite-off HE /M (6.6) (06) (26.5) = (39) (137) (76.5) (46) 0.2 (1646)
Transfer 2 56 - - - - - - - (56) -
At 31 March 2012 R#2012%3A31R 1,454.0 289.0 5834 6134 219.1 3232 2683 500.2 693.1 49437
DEPRECIATION AND IMPAIRMENT ~ #ERHE
At 1 April 2010 H2010E4A18 5338 - 2518 3204 1530 1995 2558 3862 - 21005
Currency realignment EHRE 484 - 52 - 15 6.1 48 10 - 67.0
Provided for the year REERE 449 - 150 142 233 314 59 181 - 1528
Eliminated on disposals/write-off HE /R HH (143) - - - (52) 88) - (36) - (319)
Eliminated on disposal of a subsidlary ~ HE—EHBA aE
(Note 15) (H3E15) = = = = (6.6) (13) = = - (79)
Impairment loss recognised (notea) B EERRERE (Fiza) - - - - - 100 - - = 100
At 31 March 2011 R011F3R31R 6128 - 2120 3346 166.0 2369 266.5 4017 - 22905
Currency realignment L (73) - 52 - 04 08 85 01 - 77
Provided for the year TEERE 488 - 139 142 25 300 66 178 - 1538
Eliminated on disposals/ write-off HE /ML (64) - (265) - (341) (114) (765) (44) - (1593)
Impairment loss recognised (note )~ EEERBERE (fia) - - - - 29 58 - = = 87
At 31 March 2012 *2012%3A31R 647.9 - 264.6 3488 157.7 262.1 205.1 4152 - 23014
CARRYING VALUES REfE
At 31 March 2012 #2012%3A31R 806.1 289.0 3188 264.6 614 61.1 63.2 85.0 693.1 2,642.3
At 31 March 2011 R011%E3R31R 834.0 2630 3213 2188 66.1 71 246 911 504.1 2,460.1
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Notes:

(@)  During the year ended 31 March 2012, certain leasehold
improvements and furniture, fixtures and equipment were fully
impaired due to the closure of certain medical clinic centres. An
impairment loss of HK$8.7 million was recognised in profit or
loss.

Certain of its furniture, fixtures and equipment were impaired
at 31 March 2011 as a result of operating losses of an
operation under the healthcare segment in the PRC and an
impairment loss of HK$10.0 million was recognised based on
the recoverable amount of the furniture, fixtures and equipment
accordingly. The recoverable amount of the furniture, fixtures
and equipment for the healthcare operation was estimated
based on a value-in-use calculation and the calculation

was based on the budgeted cash flows approved by the
management covering a five-year period at a discount rate of
7%.

(b)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s plant, machinery and
equipment included an amount of HK$1.1 million (2011:
HK$0.5 million) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

ltems of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight line
basis, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Freehold land No depreciation

Hotel properties 30 — 86 years
Leasehold land and buildings, commercial

and leisure facilities 10 — 40 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 -5 years
Plant, machinery and equipment 5 - 15 years
Ferries, launches and motor vehicles 5 — 20 years

As at 31 March 2012, included in construction in progress

was interest capitalised of HK$14.9 million (2011: HK$13.8
million) not yet transferred to the appropriate categories of

property, plant and equipment.

GEE

UES

B E2012F3A31H IEFE - AN E T8
B2 LR e THEMERER
Bl EKBERRBE ZBRE - RERE
B7/EEBLCNBERR -

HREERREDFPHEEEZLEE

8 BB THM KB RRER2011 F3
ASIEHBERE -REZZEEM RER
R PR & R 2 R ER B &10.0
BEATL ZEFBREREEHBZERM K
ERRB AR SR IRERBEEET
mE  ZARAREEBHERERF
HZ R RMIBRI R AR KT %t & o

ANEBBE  HEREBEZREERER
BREREHEREEEZSHELIAS
FIT (201145F - 0.5 EBATT) °

BEREEEREE (ER2TRERIN R

BAVEBA T AT AT AF M E

KA SERET M WETE
NiPER/ES 30E86%F
HE L REF

S SE 9 105404
HEWMEEE 54
BRI HERBE 3E54
5 - Es I R 5E15%
B M R RE 5ZE204F

MR2012F3 A31H st AEEZ LR 2 B R
{LFBE149EE ST (20114 : 13.8HE S
T0) MAEBEYE HBEARENEEE

Blo
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The carrying value of properties shown above comprises: FamEZEREEERRE:
Leasehold land
Hotel properties Freehold land and buildings
BEME KAEHE LT HELHRET
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
HEET BEATL HEETR BEATL HEET BEATL
Freehold outside Hong Kong RIRAE B AT 2
KAERE 186.0 209.4 289.0 263.0 - -
Long leases outside Hong Kong IR EBUIMEE 2
REEL 620.1 624.6 - - - -
Medium-term leases outside RIRBEBAIMEE 2
Hong Kong RETR Y - = - = 32.8 32.5
Long leases in Hong Kong RIRNES 2 RN - - - - 103.9 1059
Medium-term leases in Hong Kong AR &E S 2 AT 4) - - - = 170.7 175.0
Short leases in Hong Kong IRNES 2z BEEN - - - = 114 139
806.1 834.0 289.0 263.0 318.8 3273
17. Prepaid Lease Payments 17. AL E K
The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise: AEBZENHENRERE:
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEAET BEBT
Leasehold land in Hong Kong URBEABZHEHELH
Short leases EHEIAE A 1.5 1.9
Leasehold land outside Hong Kong URBBLAINMEE 2 HE T
Long leases REIAEA 17.7 18.0
Medium-term leases FRHAE 49 10.5 15.9
29.7 35.8

Leasehold interest in land is released over the terms of the
leases on a straight line basis.

Rz HE#ESIREMAEREEL -
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18. Interests in Associates/Amounts

18. e A Fl 2 B AT WL

Due from Associates (/NG |

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BHEET AEAT

Cost of investment in associates AR N RIS E Z B AR
Listed in Hong Kong REB L™ 160.2 160.2
Unlisted JELET 36.7 72.7

Share of post-acquisition profits, DR R T -

net of dividends received kR B U % B 336.2 280.0
Share of reserves DL G 2.6 1.2
535.7 514.1

Amounts due from associates (Note 25) & U B < A &) 28 (Ff5525) 860.0 898.9
Share of post-acquisition losses of SMEBRYREEERELZ
an associate covered by binding — A B & R R EE (M)
obligation (note) (678.5) (703.6)
181.5 195.3
Fair value of a listed investment, —BFTMREZATE &AT
based on quoted market price B 215.0 260.4

Note: The Group is obliged to make good the net deficit of Tung
Chung Station Development Company Limited (“TCSDCL”") in
proportion to its interest in TCSDCL. At the end of the reporting
period, the Group’s obligation in this connection amounted to
HK$678.5 million (2011: HK$703.6 million) and accordingly,
the same amount has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position and presented as a deduction
from the Group’s advances to TCSDCL.

fi i

7K £ B 78 5 ¥£ Tung Chung Station
Development Company Limited
(ITCSDCL]) 2 F k18 - te Bl & 7‘%\
TCSDCLZ #E & » X ¥ & HASK - $
%E@Zfﬁﬁmm5§%mx<mu
F:703.6ABET) ZELHEERN
Fa MBI RERL AREELE T
TCSDCLZ B R 85 °

At the end of the reporting period, the market value of the
listed shares of an associate was lower than its corresponding
carrying value in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements. The management considered that such market
value did not reflect the fair value of the listed associate to the
Group, but instead the Group’s share of its net asset value
represented a fairer reflection of the recoverable amount. For
the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount

of the listed associate has been determined based on a

value in use calculation. In determining the value in use of
the investment, the Group estimated its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated from the investment in the associate, comprising the
dividends to be received from the investment and cash flows
from the proceeds on the ultimate disposal of the investment.
The management of the Company considered there is no
impairment of interest in the listed associate.

Details of the principal associates of the Group as at 31 March
2012 are set out in Note 41.

EHAEEREEAERAF 2011/2012 F3§
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REERR —EBE QR 2 EHRD
MEEREERAREZGEMBRERNZ
HEREE ERERA MSEERE
Rtz EMEE ARRAEE 2 AFE
MASRE D (hBEFEE A TR
Al EI SR8 - sERE RIS - 2 LT
REZ AW E S REIREAEBETE S EE
Eo-RETKREZERAEER  A&BEMHF
HAoERBE AR IRERHELE 2 F
FIAREREMCBE BEHREREKEER
TUWEZ IR E &Fﬂﬁﬁﬁ,éflg@z%
HIEZBEER - ARAEBRERBNZL
M E QA Z Imm@

ARNEEN201243 318 & X B A N7
2 BE N 4L -
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

BERASEBZERR 2 HBEENGEHT

19. Interests in Jointly Controlled
Entities

The interests in jointly controlled entities include the
Group’s 50% equity interest in Dazhongli Properties Limited
(“Dazhongli”). An analysis is as follows:

179

19. 36 [l 2 il B 48 2 B 4%

AEBERARES BB 2B e mN AT
BEWMERAERAR ([KFPE]) 250%MHE
HEoMfranh:

associates is set out below: N
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Investment properties wEYE 1,075.1 958.5
Properties held for/under development — F{EHE 2% E EREAYE
for sale 793.8 7755
Sale proceeds held by stakeholders REAFTFFIEEMEHRIE 137.2 199.3
Bank balances and cash RITHEB RIS 311.9 388.8
Other assets Hi&EE 894.8 591.1
Total assets BEBE 3,212.8 2913.2
Other payables to shareholders H fib B~ AR R 3K IE (3.5) (2.8)
Loans from shareholders AR R E X (2,763.0) (2,890.0)
Other liabilities HEmBAE (1,433.7) (1,030.1)
Total liabilities BEARE (4,200.2) (3,922.9)
Net liabilities BEFHE (987.4) (1,009.7)
Group's share of net assets of associates ANEE D (hE & A A& EFE 547.7 525.8
Group's share of net liabilities of associates NS o (B2 A &) & (& /558 (681.2) (706.0)
(133.5) (180.2)
Unrealised profits REIR m (9.3) (9.3)
(142.8) (189.5)
Turnover B 1,291.1 753.1
Profit for the year NF [k 221.0 253.5
Group’s share of results of REEH(hEE QA
associates for the year KEFEFEE
(net of unrealised profit of HK$0.3 million (1B 7k % 38 % 0.3
(2011: HK$0.9 million)) BB (20114 :
09B&#ETT) ) 90.8 150.1

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEETT BEETT
Interests in: M5 #E
Dazhongli (note a) A E (fiFa) 6,336.1 5,676.5
Other jointly controlled entities (note b)  HE A FEFRIEHIE 8 (M 7Eb) 509.8 334.7
6,845.9 6,011.2
Notes: B 5E
(@) Dazhongli (a) AHE

Dazhongli and its subsidiaries (“Dazhongli Group”) are
engaged in the development of investment properties and hotel
properties in the Jingan District of Shanghai in the PRC.

RPBEREMBAR (TRPELE )R
FRRMNTEEEFLRZBREMER
B

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BESBT BEBIT

Cost of unlisted shares FE LR D 2 A AR 0.1 0.1
Share of reserves (note i) DL (R 690.3 4745
Share of post-acquisition profits (note i) 15 U B&E 12 5 A (B =Eii ) 883.1 813.5
1,573.5 1,288.1

Loans to Dazhongli BERTFRAE 4,762.6 4,388.4
6,336.1 5,676.5

Further advances of HK$374.2 million (2011: HK$471.5
million) were made during the year by the Group to Dazhongli to
finance its share of development expenditure.

FRAREE AT B —FEK374.2
BE&ET (201154715888 T) ' F
REDEZBRAXZES-
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The loans to Dazhongli are unsecured, non-interest bearing

and have no fixed terms of repayments. The Group has no

intention to exercise its right to demand repayment of these

loans within the next twelve months from the end of the

reporting period. The directors believe the settlement of these
loans is not likely to occur in the foreseeable future as they are,
in substance, a part of the Group’s net investment in Dazhongli

Group as the proceeds of the loans have been substantially
used by the Dazhongli to inject as registered capital into its
PRC subsidiaries. Accordingly, the amount is classified as
non-current asset and included in the Group’s interests in

jointly controlled entities for the purpose of presentation in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The summarised financial information in respect of Dazhongli

Group as at 31 March 2012 is set out below:

ERTAPENEER LEREETEE
HH - AR EEEN IS MARRF ARKI2
EAARITEERN EREEET2ER
HRAR B BERAFZHREAES
BB AREREMES EEHEZF
EFR TN RARREEE  #HZER
ERAEERATERE 2 HOREF
BeE - BRAFKARIRIFERDEEL
AAAREERARZHIER 2 UE
REZEMBRRNKRED

K BEMMN2012463A31 8 2 IS AR
mELWT
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For the year ended
31 March

B EZ3A31HILEE
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEST BEBT

Change in fair value of investment CEREBEEMENTEE

properties under construction 206.2 224.9
Other operating income less expenses  E b &8 W A I X H (15.4) (10.1)
Deferred taxation EIET IR (51.6) (56.2)
Net profit after taxation for the year NE R BT m A 139.2 158.6
Group’s share of result for the year AEBOEARFEFEE 69.6 79.3

Notes:

B :

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEET BHEBTT
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Investment properties under EEREYE
construction 12,267.5 11,166.6
Hotel properties under construction and ~ #£ 228 J&E ¥ % N =& 5
equipment 564.2 538.1
Other non-current assets HEMIEREBEE 125.1 142.8
12,956.8 11,847.5
Current assets MENEE
Bank balances and cash IRITEBRERS 704.4 394.5
Other current assets HEfn®&EE 152.1 77.7
856.5 472.2
Current liabilities mEaE
Loans from shareholders &R E K (9,525.2) (8,776.8)
Other current liabilities HtrehaE (467.9) (369.3)
(9,993.1) (9,146.1)
Net current liabilities mEAEFRE (9,136.6) (8,673.9)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERREBEE 3,820.2 3,173.6
Non-current liability EmBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIE B (& (673.2) (597.4)
Net assets EEFE 3,147.0 2,576.2
Group’s share of net assets REBDHEEFE 1,573.5 1,288.1

(@)

(ii)

The share of reserves of Dazhongli represented an
exchange gain on translations of interest in Dazhongli
and exchange gains arising from translation of the

loans advanced by the Group to Dazhongli which are
denominated in US dollars and HK dollars, that form part
of net investment in foreign operations during the year.

The share of post-acquisition profits of Dazhongli in the
current year mainly arose from the Group’s share of fair
value gain on investment properties under construction of
Dazhongli.

The investment properties under construction was
measured at 31 March 2012 at fair value of HK$12,267.5
million (equivalent to RMB9,944.4 million) (2011:
HK$11,166.6 million (equivalent to RMB9,405.0 million))
which was based on the valuation conducted by DTZ
Debenham Tie Leung Limited, who have appropriate
qualification and recent experiences in the valuation of
similar properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
was arrived at by reference to comparable sales evidence
as available in the relevant market and have taken into
account the expected construction costs and the cost
that will be expected to complete the development. The
increase in the valuation for the year ended 31 March
2012 of investment properties under construction as
stated above was partly offset by the increase in the total
estimated construction costs that gave rise to a fair value
gain of HK$206.2 million (2011: HK$224.9 million).

The attributable taxation charge in respect of the gain

DIERFEZ FEREFARATR
B RSETRE BN KSR
SEBNTRPERABEREINES
MAREFEIER (ARTRE
TLHME) 5 5 B2 BE 5 e o

FRHEARDE 2 RBERF =
BRRAREDEAD 22 ERE
AT ER

REBER2ITERAGETZG
B EEREYER201243 A
31B 2 AFEA12,267 58 EH
TL(HHER9,MM44EBARE)
(20114 :11,166.6E@ &8 (HE
R9,4056.08BARKE) ) c ZARIE
b E B  FEMEEESE
BB EERRAERH - HETD
2Z RS Z Al LLEHEE fIFE
BX + 3 2 B FE B R SR K AN % TE ER
FTERZERIER ZKA - 3 %2012
FIABLIAILFE ERIBEME
fEE_E AT A3 IE - 200 B
STEEEEAK ANABEE EA MR - e
EA A FERZEA20628 BT
(20114F : 224 9E & TT) ° 5%l
w2 EERIES H RSL6EEETT
(20114 : 56.2B @A) « kR
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was HK$51.6 million (2011: HK$56.2 million). Thus RIER 2 A EFNEA154.6E 8 Note: The loans to other jointly controlled entities are MoeE: BT H AL RIE G F 8 T &R
the net fair value gain after tax amounted to HK$154.6 BT (20114 : 168.7E&EBIT) o AN unsecured, denominated in Thai baht and have no fixed - LAZRERSIME R I B EE R
million (2011: HK$168.7 million) of which the Group’s SRS HERAFERKEZE 250% B terms of repayment. At 31 March 2012, the loans bear HA - A20124E3 A31H - EXIRE
50% share of gain was HK$77.3 million (2011: HK$84.3 7738 8B (20114 :843E B8 fixed interest from 3% to 4% (2011: 3%) per annum. The TEFRRIEE4E (20114 : 3 )
million). The investment properties of the jointly controlled TC) o A G E RS 2R E YA LA Group has no intention to exercise its right to demand FHE o REBE B IRE AR
entity are depreciable and held within a business model TEWARRIEGIEE 2 FEmE repayment of these loans within the next twelve months RERL21E B A 1T H AR 5k (8
of the jointly controlled entity whose business objective BRXFE MEBREXNZEBHBEDN from the end of the reporting period. The directors believe BZEEFR -EFMHE RALR
is to consume substantively all of the economic benefits RERZEEMENES 2B A the settlement of these loans is not likely to occur in the AR E Ath R I B RE R K A] pE(E
embodied in the investment properties over time, rather DECERz - MIFEBEHEEFR - foreseeable future. Accordingly, the amount is classified BZEER At shéra Bk
than through sale. as non-current asset and included in the Group's MEZE2VME ERSEDIIE
interests in jointly controlled entities for the purpose of IEREBEE  Wat AAEERER
The capital commitments of Dazhongli at 31 March 2012 were AR BR201243 31 H 2 B AREEM presentation in the consolidated statement of financial PRI E RS 2 s o
as follows: e position.
Hng’llﬁ Hfgll\z The summarised financial information in respect of other jointly Hfh HE G F 2201293 A31 8 2 8F
BEET FEET controlled entities as at 31 March 2012 is set out below: FERBZENT
Contracted but not provided for BERLABREE 2,785.2 1,279.1 20’12 20}1
Authorised but not contracted for BHLEBRREL 6,162.5 7,292.5 a%‘%:—g EF:J%;%
8,947.7 85716 Current assets mEhE E
Property under development for sale ERPTEME 1,026.6 665.3
The capital commitments of Dazhongli, of which the amounts AR B2 BEARGFEE (REBERAREZ# Bank balances and cash RITHEBRER S 20.8 7.7
attributable to the Group’s interest in Dazhongli represents 50% HeREN ENESEEZ50%) HFHIREE Other current assets HAth)m B & &= 0.1 2.6
of the amounts stated above, will be financed by shareholders’ HIAFECEEEERNES- 1,047.5 675.6
loan or direct borrowings of Dazhongli.
Current liabilities mBEE
(b)  Other jointly controlled entities (b) HAbHEFENEH S Loans from shareholders R E (1,020.8) (662.1)
Other current liabilities Hime & & (0.9) (0.6)
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M (1,021.7) (662.7)
BEERT BEBT
Net assets BESE 25.8 12.9
Cost of unlisted shares FE ETRAR (D 2 A AR 12.6 6.3
Share of reserve S 0.2) B Group’s share of net assets REBENHEEFE 12.7 6.3
Share of post-acquisition profits DA R 12 7 0.3 - Net profit after taxation for the year NEERTL BT m A) 0.6 =
12.7 =) Group’s share of results for the year AEBOEARFEFEE 0.3 =
Loans to other jointly controlled entities B 2k T £ (i H [F 122 41 & 62
(note) (PHEE) 497.1 328.4
Details of the principal jointly controlled entities of the Group as AREER2012F3 8318 & B R HEH
509.8 334.7 at 31 March 2012 are set out in Note 41. BR 2 BE N M41 -
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20. Investments in Debt and Equity

Securities

20. B KA E I 2 B E

Fair value measurement
at 31.3.2012 using:

®201243A31H
HEATE:
Level 1 Level 3
2012 E—EH EZBR
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BESET BEETT
Held-to-maturity investments REIHRE
Unlisted debt securities (note a) FELETEBES
(KisEa)
Current nE 158.8
Non-current FERED 83.9
242.7
Available-for-sale financial assets At ESRMEE
Equity securities: BRAES
Listed, at fair value (note b) W BmAYE
(Pg5ED) 50.2 50.2 -
Unlisted, at fair value (note c) ¥ET RATE
(PFifzEe) 2.9 - 2.9
53.1 50.2 2.9
Analysed for reporting purposes as: RERENZOMWAT:
Non-current FERE 53.1
Market value of listed equity securities: ~ FHRAE S 2 HE
Listed in Hong Kong REB LT 37.9 37.9 -
Listed overseas 2] sl 12.3 12.3 -
50.2 50.2 -

185
Fair value measurement
at 31.3.2011 using:
M201163A31H
SHEATEE:
Level 1 Level 3
2011 FE—ER E=ZER
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEBT BEBT BEBTT
Held-to-maturity investments BFEIHRE
Unlisted debt securities (note a) FEMEBES
(FfzFa)
Current ik 62.6
Non-current FETRED 84.2
146.8
Available-for-sale financial assets AftHEERERE
Equity securities: BAFES
Listed, at fair value (note b) W BAYE
(KizEb) 58.9 58.9 -
Unlisted, at fair value (note c) ¥ LT RAFE
(Ft3Ec) 1.7 — 1.7
60.6 58.9 1.7
Analysed for reporting purposes as: BEBREMZAMET
Non-current FERED 60.6
Financial assets at FVTPL (held for trading) & A Bz A2 4 @
BE (BEEE)
Equity securities: BAE S
Listed equity securities (note b) EFHRAES
(BfzED) 0.2 0.2 =
Market value of listed equity securities: M IRARE Rz A :
Listed in Hong Kong REB LT 49.6 49.6 =
Listed overseas S i 9.5 95 =
59.1 59.1 -
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The fair values hierarchy are classified into the following levels:

Level 1 — quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities; and

Level 3 — using valuation technigues that include inputs
for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Notes:

Held-to-maturity debt securities are measured at amortised
cost less any impairment losses. The fair value of the held-
to-maturity debt securities as at 31 March 2012 is HK$245.0
million (2011: HK$148.8 million). The weighted average
effective interest rate is 3.1% (2011: 3.0%) per annum.

The fair values of all listed securities are determined by
reference to the quoted market bid price available on the
relevant exchanges.

Unlisted equity securities include an investment in a venture
capital fund at HK$2.9 million (2011: HK$1.7 million) which are
measured using valuation techniques based on inputs that can
be observed in the market in addition to unobservable inputs
such as company specific financial information.

The movement in the unlisted equity securities is as follows:

NFERBRD BA TR

(b)

% B R - AFAER A AR
B2 BE (RHRE) R

FoER-—AHEERRBE BAR
WIRBRBR 2 TSR GEA &
HEE) °

5 5 B BIE S 5 55 T DA 65 AR AR (]
RMEBEME R EEEFFRN
201243 A318 2 A F{E 524508 &8
7T (20114 : 148 8B E B TT) ° MEFH
FERFFERA31E (20114 :3.0F) °

A EhESs 2 A FE2ERERS M
BZEANBRMETE -

FETEABHFEE-ANIREAES
ZIRE29EEBTT (011F: 1788
7T)  THERSERMEE - AR 2
BAZBARBEUEETSEEIIFTE
RPBENRAREFEVBERMETE

I EmmRAE S BB
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21. Other Assets 21. H A &
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEET
Mortgage instalment receivables FEWUIE e 7 BRE 3R (M aka)

(note a) 5.6 8.1
Option fee refundable (note b) REREEE (ko) 7.9 7.8
Loans to an investee (note c) AR IR EHRE R

(Mt3Ece) 106.6 106.6

Unlisted membership debentures FLEmeEEsFs RAMEE
and other assets 5.5 6.9
125.6 129.4

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEBTT

Balance at beginning of the year F R 1.7 10.7
Total gains in other comprehensive REMEE WG 2 W858

income 1.2 0.2

Proceeds from disposal & TS 58 - 9.2)

Balance at end of the year FREH 2.9 1.7

Included in other comprehensive income is a gain of HK$1.2
million (2011: HK$0.2 million) related to unlisted equity
securities held at the end of the reporting period and has been
credited to investment revaluation reserve.

SFAEMEERE 2128 S8 Tikes
(20114F : 2B BAB L) 1B @RS BR
RHAEZELETMRAZS WEFARESE
i & o

Notes:

(a)  The mortgage instalment receivables represent the financing

provided to buyers of development properties of the Group.
The amounts bear interest at prime rate minus 1% and are
receivable by instalments over a period of not more than 20
years from the sale of the relevant flats. The receivables are
secured by a second mortgage over the properties. The portion
of mortgage instalment receivables due within one year of
HK$0.5 million (2011: HK$0.7 million) is included as trade
receivables in current assets.

(b)  This represents an option fee of HK$14.0 million paid by the

Group to a related party, Castro Valley Properties, Inc. (“CVPI")
in 1996 pursuant to a proposed property project which was
subsequently not proceeded with.

Under the terms of the termination agreement entered into

in 1997, the amount is repayable by CVPI to the Group in
instalments, the amount of each instalment being based on the
gross income of CVPI each year with interest accruing at 1%
per annum on the outstanding balance. Based on information
provided by CVPI, the amount is expected to be fully repaid by
2031.

B & :

A IRIBY MHARTDRE T AEEYE
HREFRZBE o WKL ZEERNER
1B YeEABEEEMELRAL
HRB20F A B - e KRR TY A
BYMEESE _RIBEA - N—FATHZ
FENIZIE 5 BRI /0.6 B BB 7T (20114
0.7EEATL) Bt AERBEEZEIE

LIRS AR ER1996F R IE—HEZEY
78 B ify [7) — 44 B8 A L Castro Valley
Properties, Inc. ([CVPI]) X 14.0 B &
B REREE  Z[EEE EAWEER
HLTo

RIBN19974F 7] 3 2 4R 1E hh ik 2 153K -

CVPIZAD HiR AN BEEIR ST
RIZFCVPIFF R AFTEL R AEERE 2
FRRREFEFEFNE - RIBECVPHEH
ZEF - BHZERIARR2031FEHRE

o

pi
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The balance outstanding at 31 March 2012 and 31 March
2011 represents (a) the fair value of the amount receivable
determined using the discount rate applicable at the date of
inception of 4.51% per annum (“the adjusted outstanding
principal”) and (b) less repayments received attributable to the
settlement of the adjusted outstanding principal since that date.

Amounts received from CVPI are recognised as interest income
based on the discount rate of 4.51% per annum on the
adjusted outstanding principal and the balance is attributable to
settlement of the adjusted outstanding principal.

CVPI is a related party of a trust, the discretionary objects of
which include the issue of Dr CHA Chi Ming, the late Chairman
of the Company and some of them are directors of the
Company.

(c)  The Group owns a 15% interest in an unlisted company
incorporated in Singapore which holds a commercial complex
comprising a retail mall, 2 office towers and a hotel in the
city of Tianjin, the PRC. As at 31 March 2010, the Group had
outstanding loans to that company with carrying amounts of
HK$21.3 million, net of provision of HK$85.3 million. In view
of the completion of the commercial complex owned by that
company and the state of the property market in Tianjin, the
PRC, the Group reassessed during the year ended 31 March
2011 the recoverability of the loans and during the year ended
31 March 2011, reversed the provision for the loans of HK$85.3
million made in prior years to reinstate the carrying amount of
the loans to HK$106.6 million as at 31 March 2011 and 31
March 2012. The loan is unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. The directors determined that the Group might not
demand for repayment within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and hence classified the loan as a non-current
asset.

The directors consider the carrying amounts of the Group’s
mortgage instalment receivables, option fee refundable
and loans to an investee at the end of the reporting period
approximate their corresponding fair values.

5=
5

7201243 A31H k201143 A31 H ik

BiE 2 Eer A ) E AR B HEA 28R
REFASI%ETEZBRSEATE ([4
ARKERERS ) R)BREEZBHRE
KRABRREERNS 2 EWBUER

HECVPIKER ? SR BEHBREESNS
BEFASI %M T TR BN EWA M
RERRRAEREERE -

CVPIR—RERZHEAL  EBBHR
BREARFCHEIFEERELNEMN
BER D /ARAESE-

REBMN— BN AR L ZIEETA
BIEA15% 2 i %A AR B KR
B-EEEGRAE BE—EBDPL
W BRI A KR 2 — DB JE - )R20104F3
A31H AEEMBZARIZAEEER
BRMEEA21.3 B&ATT  BINRE#ESS.3
BHEBL -ENZARMEZEERAR
PRI ERSE K - N E AR BIK R 2 M E TS K
M AEEDREE201143A318 (L4
[E BT EZE R Z A B2 & # [l

BAEFEELBZREFESS3 BEETL N
201143 A31H K201243A31H B

BREERMES]A106.6 8887t 2 &K
BEEF SERIEERKERE -BEFRTE
REBERFEHRI2ER AT ERKE

2 BAUBZERSERERBEE-

RE AEERH@EHR 2 BKIZE
HfH - AIRERBRERAEBRE

HRERZREAEREAEAFERS -
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22. Inventories 22. &
2012 2011
HK$’'M HK$'M
BHEBTT BEABTT
Consumables S5 m 56.6 58.1
Raw materials R4 8.0 8.8
Work in progress F 8K i 4.0 3.2
Finished goods 2K i 77.2 90.6
145.8 160.7

23. Trade Receivables

The credit period allowed by the Group to its customers is
dependent on the general practice in the industry concerned.
For property sales, sales terms vary for each property project
and are determined with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. Sale of properties are normally completed upon
the execution of legally binding, unconditional and irrevocable
contracts and the sale amounts are usually fully paid when the
properties are assigned to the purchasers. Deferred payment
terms are sometimes offered to purchasers at a premium.
Property rentals are receivable in advance. Payments for
healthcare, clubs and hotel services are receivable on
demand. The general credit terms allowed for customers of
manufactured goods range from 30 to 90 days.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented on the payment due date at the end of the reporting
period:

23. ME W BT 5 ik

AEBEGTEEPZEERRTERA—K
BHEE -AYEHEM S - HEKRKIIEE
YMEREBME  UREERTRET - Wx
HE—RNBELLZRORD  BIRH R
TAHEE REEK  HESRABER
MEEZTENR2HEN -ERAEL
R EBEE - WEES BN £
Hio BERE 2 BEREZERAR
EXRERHM RREARBTEFH
—RIEEHHIOEIORTE -

AT REWE RN B®ERIRE B
KEHE D ZREDH

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEAET BEET

Not yet due EEEEE 17.8 39.5
Overdue: wHR

0 - 60 days 0 - 60X 55.9 59.3

61 — 90 days 61 - 90K 4.4 5.2

Over 90 days B 3B90K 4.0 6.8

82.1 110.8
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Included in the Group's trade receivables balances are
receivables with aggregate carrying amount of HK$64.3 million
(2011: HK$71.3 million) which are past due at the end of

the reporting period for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

The Group has provided allowance for receivables overdue
beyond 120 days because historical experience is such that
receivables that are past due beyond 120 days are generally
not recoverable. Management closely monitors the credit
quality of trade receivables and considers the trade receivables
that are neither past due nor impaired to be of a good credit
quality.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful
debts

AEBZREREEZERBRENBEHR
B 218 A 5= B 30 K 500 (5 5 48 1 33
B2 BWARRA KIREERCAIAEET
(201145 : 71.3B & L) - ARE XL EHL
RS A A E R -

AEBEHAMEBI20K 2 U FRIARE
HEE HIHNREEERLR %Fal
BB 120K 2z FE W R IA — ARt AN Al e [m] - &
EETYERBRESIRAZEEER"
W R RS BB R SOREZ EWE 5
REBRFZEREER-

o Hi 485 e < 58 Bl

24. Properties Held for/under
Development for Sale

BEBEEXBBEEERAR 2011/2012 F5H
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24. e B2 B BT

CUES

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEBT

Balance at beginning of the year FUEH 11.1 20.1
Impairment loss recognised on receivables f& Ut X IEHE R 27 Sl (B B9 18 3.8 5.7
Amounts recovered during the year FAWE ZFKIEB (0.1) (1.7)
Amounts written off as uncollectible s = AW E 2 BIE (1.0) (13.4)
Currency realignment Bk 0.3 0.4
Balance at end of the year FRER 14.1 11.1

The fair values of the Group’s trade receivables at 31 March
2012 approximate the corresponding carrying amounts due to
relatively short-term maturity.

AR AEERWE ZERERZEHABY
B B ERIAR201263A31H 2 AF
EHEEEREREERS -

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Properties held for/under development EBEBENEBELEE 2ERE
for sale in Hong Kong KRR
Discovery Bay development project e EERIER 1,006.8 1,409.3
Other projects HiiEE 55.0 =
Properties held for/under development EBEBINSIELE R
for sale outside Hong Kong KRB Y 1,484.2 1,318.1
2,546.0 2,727.4
The carrying value of properties EXV Rz EEREERE:
shown above comprises:
Freehold KA SERE 1,484.2 1,318.1
Medium-term leases FRHAE 4 1,061.8 1,409.3
2,546.0 2,727.4

At the end of the reporting period, total borrowing costs
capitalised in the properties held for/under development for
sale were HK$74.0 million (2011: HK$126.6 million). The
properties held for/under development for sale amounting to
HK$1,156.1 million (2011: HK$871.6 million) is expected to
be recovered after twelve months from the end of the reporting
period.

25. Other Financial Assets

(1) Amounts due from associates

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-
trade nature, non-interest bearing and have no fixed
repayment terms. Except for an amount of HK$122.5
million (2011: HK$104.2 million) included in non-current
assets, the directors expected the remaining amount

will be settled within twelve months from the end of the
reporting period and the carrying values approximate
their fair values due to relatively short-term maturity.

RIEEAR - 7408 8B (20114 :
126 6E BB L) 2 BIBERANE BIERFE
HEZER FHEFMWEIRAR1,156.1
BEBIT (2011 :871.6B&BL) 2
EHEZ R B EPMEEHR TS H
R121E A & 4 = -

25. Hifth 4 Bl & &
(1) WE I 25 o W) k0

JE U Bt 8 N B R IE T R IR EE 5
M - B UA R 3 4 [ E B AR AR o B
STAERBEEZ©EI22EEE
JL (20114 : 104 2E8#EL) &S

TERRE AR R RS AR T 1213
AREE mMBRZERIEBEZLEAE
RS WERAERE A TEE
%o
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(11) Other financial assets

The directors consider the carrying amount of the
Group’s deposits, other financial assets and pledged
bank deposits to secure short-term bank loans at the end
of the reporting period approximate their corresponding
fair value due to relatively short-term maturity.

The amount due from jointly controlled entities are
unsecured, non-trade nature, non-interest bearing and
repayable on demand.

The bank deposits, both pledged and non-pledged, carry
interest at market rates.

26. Trade Payables, Provision and
Accrued Charges

Included in trade payables, provision and accrued charges are
trade payables of HK$191.1 million (2011: HK$226.7 million),
an aged analysis of which is as follows:

(ii)

26.

Hfth <5 7l B

HREAEEEEE  REERR/AN
SEzRe AterEENRANE
REMRTERZEEBERARTERR
HEPRZREEREAREQFER

4+
o

JE U L [R) #22 ) B B SROR T SR AK A - 3F
BHHE RRUARBREREE-

B R EER 2 RITEREEM 5

JEEHY

WEAH B2 5 Mok ~ 48 M M
Wt % H

ENESER BELEABRAPBIERE
NESERFHK191.18& 87T (20114 : 226.7
BEBIL)  HERE&EOWWT :

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEETT BEET

Not yet due w7 EI| 5f 132.8 174.6
Overdue: %0 H -

0 - 60 days 0 - 60X 34.0 39.7

61 — 90 days 61 - 90K 5.8 52

Over 90 days R AEI0K 18.5 7.2

191.1 226.7

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 days.

The directors consider the carrying amount of trade
payables at the end of the reporting period approximate their
corresponding fair value due to relatively short-term maturity.

BHREHMAEEEE REERR/ENE

BEmZ FHEEHAWNX -

ZRFNHER R REEEEERERF

4+
o

(EREE=

The trade payables, provision and accrued charges include
provisions for certain construction obligations of HK$261.0
million (2011: HK$234.1 million). In the course of the property
development activities, the Group is obliged to construct
certain common or public facilities within the development
projects in accordance with the development plans approved
by the relevant authorities. Provision for such construction
costs has been made when a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of this obligation and the details of the movement
of the provision are set out below:

BBMERBEBARAR 2011/2012 F5R
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ENESER BEMEFEREERSE
TS AP ERE261.0B B8 7T (2011
F:2341ABETL) ARBEETHEER
mB BT ARBERERILEZE
REE RNERBEBERNEZETAKIR
TRER N o EIE - AR B B2 1A AT I TR AT AR A
B2 BIFHAI SR RAFREK
AEL B - WIRBE 2 BB F I A0
T

HK$'M

BEATT

Balance at 1 April 2010 R2010F4 A1 8 2 & & 280.0
Utilised during the year FREA (45.9)
Balance at 31 March 2011 MR2011F3A31 8 2 &8k 234.1
Provided during the year FAERE 46.5
Utilised during the year FREA (19.6)
Balance at 31 March 2012 201253 A31A 2 &8 261.0
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27. Deferred Taxation

The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets

recognised and movements thereon during the current and

prior reporting years:

27 #% JE A5 JE

AT ADBR EBETEHE (a) 4R
PRERBTRBEREFE 228

Fair value Distributable
Accelerated change of profits of
tax investment Tax a PRC
depreciation properties losses subsidiary Others Total
—B
il A
MEHE REME A #5ik
HE ANFEEY HIEBE i Hits Bt
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEAT BEBT
(note)
{iE=3)
At 1 April 2010 R2010F4A1H8 (198.3) (41.4) 52.6 (27.6) 119 (202.8)
Currency realignment EHRR (4.2) (1.6) 4.0 - 0.1 (1.7)
(Charge) credit to profit or loss (0B ) F A Bz (0.5) 45 32 - 0.2 74
Charge to investment revaluation 0B E B &
reserve - - - - 0.4) (0.4)
Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 15)  (H&—RIHI B2 &)
(HizE15) 434 - - - 17.0 60.4
At 31 March 2011 R201143A31H (159.6) (38.5) 59.8 (27.6) 28.8 (137.1)
Currency realignment EHAR - (1.4) - - - (1.4)
Credit (charge) to profit or loss A (IR Ex 14.1 19 (30.7) - 2.4 (12.3)
Charge to investment revaluation ~ BRI E E A E
reserve - - - - (0.2) (0.2)
At 31 March 2012 W201243A31H (145.5) (38.0) 29.1 (27.6) 31.0 (151.0)

Note: These mainly represent net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

recognised in relation to unrealised profit of certain property

development projects.

Mist: WHEBRTETYEERBBARER
N TR REHIREE (AE)F
B

For the purposes of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances
(after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

BBMERBEBARAR 2011/2012 F5R
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REREAPBHRARME - B TREHIA
BERABERASE Z S BREH-
AT RANRMBE2EE &2 RIEHRIBAER
(HEHR) D #fr -

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEET BEBTT

Deferred tax liabilities BEETIEAE (156.5) (144.7)
Deferred tax assets EIERTEE B 5.5 7.6
(151.0) (137.1)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of HK$854.5 million (2011: HK$936.9 million) available
for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of approximately HK$176.4 million
(2011: HK$362.4 million) of such losses. No deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of the remaining HK$678.1
million (2011: HK$574.5 million) due to the unpredictability of
future profit streams.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of HK$178.7 million (2011: HK$169.0
million) arising from impairment losses recognised in respect
of property, plant and equipment. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
difference as it is not probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

RBEHR AEERFEATEEEAS
854 5A BB T (20114 :936.9A &8
JL) A AREE R R ER P A1764
BEBIT (2011536248588 T)EE
ERERIEERIEE E - AR EETERIR K
wARA - B L R ERFE678. 1A B AT
(20114 : 574 5B &H 7 ) RIBELEFIBE
%o

RBEMR AEEEYE  BE MR
ZERERRERESI B Al R E R E8
=178 788 BT (20114 : 169.0B8 8%
TT) ° IR A B AR B A AT A RO 3K A]
FOORUES B 2 B - R b 36 B ot % 5 AT AR
RERERRELEHIAEE



HKR International Limited Annual Report 2011/2012
196

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MRS IR R M
For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

28. Bank and Other Loans

28. SRAT B HoAth Bk

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BAESTT
Bank loans (note 1) IRITER (MIFEL) 4,196.6 3,203.5
Bonds (note 2) &5 (fizE2) 216.2 319.6
4,412.8 3,523.1
Less: Amount included under current BETAREBABEZSE (B
liabilities (including bank loans with FE A BE R ZR(E R R
a repayable on demand clause) ZIRITER) (3,704.9) (1,521.1)
Amount included under non-current FFAERBEBECERE
liabilities 707.9 2,002.0
Bank and other loans are repayable: RITREMERBER T
HAPR EE
On demand or within one year BERKe—F RN 3,704.9 1,521.1
Between one to two years —FEMFR 216.2 1,682.4
Between two to five years MEERFA 491.7 319.6
4,412.8 3,523.1
Secured BHEH 640.0 571.9
Unsecured i 3,772.8 2,951.2
4,412.8 3,623.1

Notes:

(1) At 31 March 2012, the Group’s bank borrowings carry interest
at an average margin of 0.75% (2011: 0.51%) plus Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) or other relevant interbank
offered rates.

(2)  During the year, a bond amounting to Japanese Yen 1.1 billion
(equivalent to HK$111.1 million) was fully repaid. At 31 March
2012, the bond carried interest at a margin of 2.0% (2011:
1.6%) plus the relevant interbank offered rates.

The directors consider the carrying amount of the Group'’s
bank and other loans at the end of the reporting period
approximates their corresponding fair value.

GEE

(1

M201243 8310 AEERTEER
0.75% (20114 : 0.51% ) 2 FH BB B =R
INEBRITRIZER S Lk LRI TR
EFRBRFE -

RER  E5AZKIEBE (BER111.1
AEBIT) DERBHEE - R201293 A
318 EFH1&2.0% (20114 : 1.6% ) 2i&
BERINABIRITRERE R L

EER5 RREHR NEBERTREM
ERREEREARATERS-
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29. Other Liabilities 29. HAth £1 %
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEERT BEET
Advances from non-controlling FEFERR AR R 2 B (K 5E)
shareholders (note) 462.9 320.0
Club debentures SIES 866.5 863.8
Obligations under finance leases BERERE 1.2 0.4
1,330.6 1,184.2
Less: Amount due within one year included & : st ARBI B &2 —F RN E|
under current liabilities HBAFKIE (14.9) (6.3)
Amount due after one year — 1% B HiFRIE 1,315.7 1,177.9

Note: The amount represents advances from non-controlling B

shareholders of certain subsidiaries to finance operations of
those subsidiaries. As at 31 March 2012, included in advances
from non-controlling shareholders are amounts of HK$422.9
million (2011: HK$285.0 million) and HK$28.9 million (2011:
HK$28.9 million) which bear interest at 3-month HIBOR plus
2.5% and fixed rate of 7.0% per annum respectively. The
amounts are unsecured and are not repayable within one year.
The remaining balance is non-interest bearing, unsecured and
has no fixed term of repayment.

Club debentures are redeemable on their maturity dates,

ZEFBAE THB QR 2 IEERR
RETIRM AR AR ZEH B AR
BB - 201243 A31 8 » JRIEARAR
RETRMHEARBEREHI29BES T
(20114 : 285.08 @& B7T) k28 9B &EH
7 (20114 : 28 9B BT ) + » Aliz3(#
AEABRBIRITRIZER S X MN2.5E KR EE
FRERTOEF B -ZEREREERR
BEAR—FANERE - RBBAIARE - EIE
R E R R A

SESAIREEZIMAEE  ZF2H

which are as follows: Bk :
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEER BEATT
Within 1 year —F A 14.5 6.0
Over 1 year but within 5 years —FAEBERFUR 28.0 453
Over 5 years and before 2047 FF A _E KR 20474 2 Al 18.5 13.7
In 2047 R2047 45 805.5 798.8
866.5 863.8
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These debentures are non-interest bearing, unsecured and
are issued to members of the following clubs operated by the
Group:

HEEHFGBRE ~4HTEHEI3&§"G%T§|J
HASEMEECSEMNES

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
HEER BEET
Discovery Bay Golf Club BRESRRIKE 662.6 658.9
Discovery Bay Marina Club =B S 60.3 61.4
Discovery Bay Recreation Club R ERES
(formerly known as “Discovery Bay
Residents Club”) 143.6 143.5
866.5 863.8
Obligations under finance leases: BEMHERE
Minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payments
RIEAEMH BERAERNZHE
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M

BBERL BEET BEB#ER BEAETL

Amounts payable under finance BERETZENEE
leases:

Within one year —FR 0.5 0.3 0.4 0.3
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~F_-ZHRF
(BEEEME) 0.9 0.1 0.8 0.1
1.4 0.4 1.2 0.4
Less: Future finance charges B BEMKER (0.2) -
Present value of lease obligations ~ FEREZBE 1.2 0.4
Less: Amount due for settlement B —FRIBERZHE
within one year (shown under (FERBBE)
current liabilities) (0.4) (0.3)
Amount due for settlement —FRIBEE B
after one year 0.8 0.1

The Group leases certain of its equipment under finance
leases. The average lease term is five to seven years. For the
year ended 31 March 2012, the average effective borrowing
rate was 9.6% (2011: 4% to 7%) per annum. Interest rates are
fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments.

The directors consider the carrying amount of the Group’s
other liabilities at the end of the reporting period approximates
their corresponding fair values.

30. Other Financial Liabilities

The directors consider that the carrying amount of the Group's
deposits received and other financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period approximates their corresponding fair value
due to the relatively short-term maturity.

The amount due to an associate is unsecured, non-interest
bearing and has no fixed repayment terms.

Included in deposits received and other financial liabilities are
property sales deposits of HK$493.0 million (2011: HK$491.4
million) expected to be recognised in profit or loss within 12
months.

BBMERBEBARAR 2011/2012 F5R
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AEERERMEBEEHRAESETRBEF
HHEEHRSETF - NEE201293A31
BIEFE FHEREESFNES.6E
(20115 4B R7E) - FIRES X B HF]
E > FTEHE AR &R AELE  WER]
YEBSIABE 2L

EER R RHOEHR AEBEMEEZ
REEREEEAFERS-

m

o Ath, <5 7l £ A

EERS BARARE zEWIRE MEM
TRAEZIHMAEEERE WX REH
R % F50A 2 R B 2 E AR A FEE
=

ENEE AR RENEER 28 KEH
TE iR R Hf o

BhzekEMERAETEEAHIR
12 A AR IBm P ER M EHER
©493.08 BT (20114 : 49148 8%
JT) e
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31. Share Capital

31. A

2012 & 2011
Number of
shares HK$'M
AR X BEAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.25 each SRR EEO0.25/8 T 2
Bk
Authorised: EERRA
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 and M2010F4H1H »
31 March 2012 201193A318 &
201243 A31H 2,000,000,000 500.0
Issued and fully paid: EETREBRRA .
At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011 and 2010F4H18
31 March 2012 20113A318 &
201243 A31H 1,350,274,367 337.5

32. Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 8

September 2011 which permits the directors of the Company

to grant options to all directors (including any executive

directors and non-executive directors), full-time employees

and consultants of the Company, its subsidiaries and/or its

associated companies to subscribe for shares in the Company.

No option has yet been granted under this scheme.

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 3

January 2002 was terminated on 8 September 2011. The

said scheme permitted the directors of the Company to

grant options to all directors (including independent non-

executive directors), full-time employees and consultants of the

Company, its subsidiaries and/or its associated companies to

subscribe for shares in the Company. No option was granted

under this scheme.

32. i JBt W w3

RN BF2011FI AR LR T ¥ B AL S
g ZETEI R AR RESFAARLRR - EM
BRAk HEBERRZAEES (R
REMATEZTRIIFNTES)  28EE
Ko BEFE X AT R RE AR 1 BB An 2 BB LA o
It &8 I R REARAE o

RN BF2002F 1 A3E 5 2 BEAR =1 &)
ER2011F9A8A K I - ZATEIBFFAR
RAEFEMARR HNBARK,SHE
BMERRZMBES (BREBIULIFNTE
) 2BESMERRLATREARAR
0 2 BERRHE - 1t 5t B30 AR ) AT B AR

33. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes long-term bank and other loans, short-term bank
loans and other borrowings as disclosed in Notes 28 and

29, net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable
to owners of the Company, comprising issued share capital,
reserves and accumulated profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on

a periodic basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group
will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

BEEZLBREEER AR 2011/2012 F#H
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33. & A Ja g 45 B

RERASEETEERAHERER

2 AEEHEEANETEE  WEBEE
BRERAERKEFEHARRIISRA
Bl AEEZEBRERBEFRER

4
\x o

AEBZERNEBERERFR(EPE
TEHTFE28 M 2OFF M BE 2 RHASRIT MM E
FRHSRTERREMIESR  HIRES M
REeFEER) RARBHEE ARG ER

(BREBTRA  FHERRFHER)

ARBIEZEHRANEANGE ESRT
Z—Hn EEEEEESUARERE
Az ERRR -REBESZ2F  AREH
BRI IS BITHA - R DA R 3
THERSELRAER  FAFEHER
BB
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34. Financial Instruments

Categories of financial instruments

34. &l TH
4Bl T H 2 Bl

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEAT
Financial assets TREE
Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) & A FEF A=
Held for trading BIEEE - 0.2
Held-to-maturity investments REIHEE 242.7 146.8
Derivative financial instruments, TESMITE-
at fair value BEATE - 0.1
Loans and receivables (including B K EWIE (B1E
cash and cash equivalents) RekFeFEER) 3,242.0 3,008.2
Available-for-sale financial assets, AtHEeREE"
at fair value BEAFE 53.1 60.6
Financial liabilities =R
Amortised cost 3K A 6,062.9 5,045.0
Obligation under finance lease EE A E A 1.2 0.4

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include held-to-
maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets,
trade receivables, other financial assets, amounts due from
associates, amounts due from jointly controlled entities,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
payables, deposits received and other financial liabilities,
amount due to an associate, bank and other loans and other
liabilities. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

< it o A B R R SR

AEETZSRMTABSREEIHKRE
AL ESREE REESEX Hue
BB E R E N RIFOR - RUCLRIFE I
BRI CEMRITER RITEHRRR
T BNEZERN Bl REAMEHE
{8 e E R AR -~ RITREME KA
REMEBE ZESH T AFBHNBEN
dezEeR T ARBARESREMSER
(E¥RERE FxERREMOERRR)
EERBIANREE & B - 10 K%
FRBZBREN N -EEEEERE
R TR ARER N KA REITEE

Rk

Currency risk

The Group does not have significant exposure to foreign
currency risk as majority of the Group’s sales and purchases
are denominated in currency which is the functional currency
of the respective group entities except for certain bank
balances, held-to-maturity investments and bank borrowings
which are denominated in foreign currency, other than the
functional currency of the respective group entities.

The carrying amounts of the group entities’ foreign currency
denominated assets and liabilities at the reporting date are as

BEEXBREEARAQAF 2011/2012 F#H
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SR

RETIRITER FEIHRE MRTE
EYFAEHEEEREEEINEIN
AEBARFLPEEYNEBERERZY
BEERIE MASEY EATERINE
BEE 3¢ LB o

SEERNREAUINEIIEZEERE
BZEREELNT:

follows:
Assets Liabilities
BE afk
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
Currency 1. BEETL BEAT HEBTL BEATL
US dollar ey 4,621.0 4,897 4 - 216.8
Singapore dollar WL - 6.0 - =
Thai baht B33 487.3 3284 - 331.9
Others Hit 2.1 5.2 - 2.6
Sensitivity analysis HRLE ST

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency risk of US dollar,
Singapore dollar and Thai baht.

AEETEARET RTMFRKRELELZ
W R o

N

\
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TRAVNAEEUNEESEER 26
EH S ERINEE R £ TIRENS5% 2 B

The following table details the Group'’s sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in the functional currency of

the respective group entities against the relevant foreign E 5% BMAEEZEEE A B RNILERINEE
currencies. 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting RRRRPTA 2 8RR AT IR EHEX
foreign currency risk internally to key management A EE s BT - BRAELSNTERE
personnels and represents management's assessment of the DONSFHEBE 2 M REEEEIRE  WHNF
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The RABEMEUARMEER 5% E8) o 5
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency AR EEER 2T EE I8
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation SNESRED% 2 & TRIEE & %@\%ﬁ’\
at the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. AN A R BB N 2 g, R e
The analysis illustrates the impact for a 5% weakening of the HESEER N EK L EBE ”ﬁgﬁiﬁ
functional currency of the respective group entities against 5% FHE - Al & $ AN F 25 F) & IE H
the relevant currency and a positive/negative number below HEKER 2 FETE-

indicates an increase/decrease in profits for the year and in
exchange reserve. For a 5% strengthening of the functional
currency of the respective group entities against the relevant
currency, there would be an equal and opposite impact on the
profits for the year and exchange reserve.

Increase/(decrease) Increase in
in profits exchange reserve
A GR) BE 7 M8 m
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
Currency {3 HE#ET BEAT HE#ET BEAT
US dollar £ 314 38.2 199.6 195.7
Singapore dollar WL - 03 - =
Thai baht 37N - (16.6) 24.4 164

EIRER S BN FRER I A e R F

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is

unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the N @ HEREPITEIREKEE 2
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the HNDE Bz o
year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to held-to-maturity investments (see Note 20), fixed-rate bank
deposits and borrowings (see Notes 28 and 35) and fixed-
rate advance from non-controlling shareholder (see Note

29). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate

risk in relation to variable-rate bank deposits and borrowings
(see Notes 28 and 35), variable-rate advance from non-
controlling shareholder (see Note 29) and mortgage instalment
receivables (see Note 21). It is the Group's policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair
value interest rate risk.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial assets and
financial liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group's cash flow interest rate risk

is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of HIBOR or other
relevant interbank offered rates arising from the Group’s
borrowings.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments

at the end of the reporting period. The variable-rate bank
deposits have been excluded from sensitivity analysis as the
management of the Group considered that the interest rate
fluctuation is not significant. For variable-rate bank borrowings,
variable-rate advance from non-controlling shareholder and
mortgage instalment receivables, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of liability and asset outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting
interest rate risk internally to key management personnels

and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates.

BBMERBEBARAR 2011/2012 F5R
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) 2= [ e
REEFAZFEINEIRE (RMFF20) &
BIRITEAREEER (RHI7E28%35) LA K IE
TR R R 2 E SR (RME29) 2~
FEMERR ANEE AT ZELRITE
FREE (BME28K35) « JFIERAL R I
ﬁizﬁf— 238 (R KIEE29) K e izis o 5
HR(RHFE21) 2 RE R F KRB - 5 15
BENFBF R B NASE ZEER  LAE
EREQAFEFERR-

AEEAXSHEERSRARIMNER
B2 BENANTREE & AR E A
DoAKRBEZRERNEEREZEFR
AEBREEMRAZBBRITREREE
HEMEBRITRAEFERZKE -

AT HRED TR BERHREHARIETE
TAZMERBRMEE BARAEEZE
BERAEMNRFEHT TBEE WHEHED

W EBIEZZ BIRITER - BLF BIRTT
B8 JEERR R M 2 Z BB K R
RIBOBETRME  ZA M ERERRE
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If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group's:

° profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 would decrease/
increase by HK$18.6 million (2011: HK$14.4 million).
This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank borrowings and
mortgage instalment receivables.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased from
prior year due to increase in bank borrowing.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to market price fluctuation through

its investments in both listed and unlisted securities. The
management manages this exposure by maintaining a
diversified portfolio. The level and volatility of the prices of
securities may be affected by general economic and market
conditions, such as interest rates, availability of credit, inflation
rates, economic uncertainty, changes in laws (including
taxation law), trade barriers, currency exchange controls, and
national and international political circumstances, if applicable.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on

the exposure to price of securities investments at the reporting
date.

If the prices of the respective securities investments had been
5% higher/lower:

° investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease
by HK$2.5 million (2011: HK$2.9 million) for the Group
as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets.

The Group’s sensitivity to available-for-sale investments and
held-for-trading investments has not changed significantly from
the prior year.

fFI%E EF, THEOERS - TiFA £
BYEFHTE AIAEE:

o  EZE2012F3A31H IEFE 2 %M
WA EIN18.6E BB T (20114 ¢
14AAE8ET) - WHEEHRASE
B 7 BRITIEE REUIRIE D H
K2 R R ATE -

AEBUNF R Z GUREBBEFEE M
EHANRITEEEZ AR -

H 0 (B 15 & k2

AEBAER EMRIFLEMESFZREM
AEMIGERNES ERERBERZ T
LR EHEE TR IR - B3 ERKF
KB P B X B B BB A B M T S AR L PR
2 fimME - FEASN BRE &
TR DEPIZ S (BREBEEN) &
ZRE - G¥ERES AR E R ER B
R1ER (aER)

]

BRRE S
ATEREDTTIRBERBEAEFRE
Z BIEE R M EE

A REEFIRE 2 B8 LT TFE5%

. BABHEBERTRLECRAEY
AFEEHT LN, B L2588
7T (20116 :29B BHTT) °

REEYATHHERERSEEEREY
REERAEFELEEARE -

Credit risk

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and
financial guarantees provided by the Group is arising from:

o the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position; and

o the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantee issued by the Group as disclosed in Note 37.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of the reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

With respect to credit risk arising from amounts due from
associates, the Group reviews the recoverable amount at
the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
exposure to credit risk is limited.

The Group's exposure to credit risk in connection with held-
to-maturity investment is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings and corporates with strong
financial position.

Other than amounts due from associates amounting to
HK$181.5 million (2011: HK$195.3 million), the Group does
not have any other significant concentration of credit risk
over trade receivables. Trade receivables consist of a large
number of customers, spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas.

BBMERBEBARAR 2011/2012 F5R
207

FEERR

R201243A318 - AEEEX BB H KA
FB1TE (E A R BT AR P A SE BB A5 R
KMAZ 2 BREEERR DEA

s REAMBIRARMTIHEHECHERS
BMEEZIREE: &

o MEIVAAEERAEASEEL 2
BEROIABESE-

AREARREEERR ~AEEEEED
KE—%Bh BaEBEEERR 8
oAz R H MBS ERAZ Fr - DAREOR 5 UL (2 780 1
ERRIBAEITE I NEEE R R
THREFHAZERERNE S ER 2 ATRE S
B ARELR BT AT W Bl 2 2R 1 FE D R E
EBiE-BUME ARBEERR AEE
ZEER RS KRR

FhIE B & R B RIR S| 2 EE AR
5 ARERHEHRR AR E S A
FEGRBL AT B £ RA1F th T R R E 1R ©
AEEAZZEERRER-

AEERFEIPREARX 2 EERRE
R-EAR/XSHFHREEREEIRLZ
RITREBEEMBEIN 2 AF] -

B FE W Bt 2 A R F IR 181.58 &8 7T (2011
F1953BEAET)IN RRESERZE
ERBOBRAERERSBTRTER
WE2EP L SAREEWE SRR
BHMEAREH ZEERR -



HKR International Limited Annual Report 2011/2012

208

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A MRS IR R M
For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source
of liquidity. As at 31 March 2012, the Group has available
unutilised overdraft and bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$5.0 million (2011: HK$5.0 million) and HK$2,202.5
million (2011: HK$3,415.3 million) respectively.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests

with the board of directors, which has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the management of
the Group’s short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms except for the bank loans with a repayable on
demand clause. For non-derivative financial liabilities, the table
has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows

of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest
and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are
floating rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest
rate at the end of the reporting period.

mBE L RAR
REERBDESERMNE  AEEERR
MEEEERRENRAREZERHEE
T RBRERSTREBTEIRE MRS E
BEAKF EREERRITEEZHA
B AR A BN -

AEBKBRITEEEARDESCEE
HOR o FA201243 A31H  AREE A A it
FREMRDAZEIRRITERRED
RIH5.0E&BIT (2011F: 50888 7T)
K2202 5B &B T (20114 : 3415308
BIT) °

EZgndEcRREBAERKR
T REEAKREZES FHERYES
EnBELEREFTREL—EEEZRY
ExREREEER-

TRFVIAEBRE 0 E EIE RN 2 Tk
BRBR 2R AIE (TR ZREREK
RZRITEFKRIN) - LIOTESRAEM
5 UL FIR TR AN S B AT B SR AN R 2 &
FRY ERABRIARAURARESRZ K
PEENERAREZRERN - WHSRE
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Liquidity risk table nBEEERKR R
Repayable
on demand Total Carrying
or within 1-2 2-5 Over undiscounted amount at
1 year years years 5 years cash flows 31 March
RERH S
—&n ¥R  3A31AZ
BE —-EWE “ELE EENLE BReRHE REE
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEET BEET BEETL BEETL BEET
2012 20124
Non-derivative financial liabilities {74 £R& &
Trade payables EHESER
and accrued charges RIEFTER 217.3 - - - 217.3 217.3
Deposits received Bliz s
and other financial liabilities LKEMERARE 80.4 - - - 80.4 80.4
Amount due to an associate FEfTH & DRI FAIE 23.0 - - - 23.0 23.0
Bank and other loans BOREMER
- variable rate %R 3,744.1 229.8 500.6 - 4,474.5 4412.8
Other liabilities HiBfE 15.1 490.3 17.1 823.9 1,346.4 1,330.6
Financial guarantee contracts B ERAN 166.5 - - - 166.5 -
4,246.4 720.1 517.7 823.9 6,308.1 6,064.1
2011 20114
Non-derivative financial liabilities 3 #74 £ 8 & &
Trade payables B SRR
and accrued charges REFER 2463 = = = 2463 2463
Deposits received Blize
and other financial liabilities KEMEHERE 86.3 - - - 86.3 86.3
Amount due to an associate &N RHIE 55 - - - 55 55
Bank and other loans FIREMER
- variable rate —%EB 1,567.3 1,692.7 3236 - 3,583.6 3,523.1
Other liabilities Hit&E 6.3 345.1 27.5 816.0 1,194.9 1,184.2
Financial guarantee contracts B ERAEN 160.4 - - - 160.4 -
2,072.1 2,037.8 351.1 816.0 5,277.0 5,045.4

As at 31 March 2012, all bank loans are classified in
respective time band based on the agreed repayment terms.
As at 31 March 2011, bank loans with a repayment on
demand clause were included in the “Repayable on demand
or within 1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis. The
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans
amounted to HK$333.9 million.

R20129F3A31 8 BERITEENRFE
Z B LAAERART 0 88 - 201143 A
318 - AIBER BREE R RITEER
AR EBEIBE DT 2 T1RBR I —FAE
B RBREDED I FRITEE ZRMAN
SHERI[BIBEHETTe
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The amounts included above for variable interest rate
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject
to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on expectations at the end of the reporting period, the
Group considers that it is more likely than not that no amount
will be payable under the arrangement. However, this estimate
is subject to change depending on the probability of the
counterparty claiming under the guarantee which is a function
of the likelihood that the financial receivables held by the
counterparty which are guaranteed suffer credit losses.

Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

° the fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;
and

° the fair values of other financial assets and financial
liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) are
determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis.

The consolidated financial statements include holdings in
unlisted shares which are measured at fair value (Note 20).
Fair value is provided by independent financial institutions or
fund managers. The valuation is generally based on the most
recent financial and market information of the underlying
investee or at cost as advised by the fund manager.

FREHAFITASRABIATAY &
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2 FIR R B2 RSB -
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RYERIEL RREVATRE M E » M1tk AJ B
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35. Analysis of the Balances of Cash
And Cash Equivalents

BEEZLBREEER AR 2011/2012 F#H
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35. B4 BB 424 E0E H 4568
43 M

2012 2011

HK$'M HKS$'M

BHEET BEABTT

Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 2,628.8 2,379.9

Included in the bank balances and cash at 31 March 2012
were bank deposits with maturity within 3 months from the
date of placement amounting to approximately HK$2,616.0
million (2011: HK$2,374.1 million).

The effective interest rate of the bank balances at 31 March
2012 were in the range of 0.01% to 3.75% (2011: 0.01%
to 2.60%) per annum. The directors consider the carrying
amount of the Group’s bank balances and cash at the end
of the reporting period approximates their corresponding fair
value.

36. Pledge of Assets
As at 31 March 2012, certain subsidiaries of the Group had

pledged property, plant and equipment with a carrying value of

HK$3.7 million (2011: HK$9.2 million) and bank deposits of
HK$3.1 million (2011: HK$2.9 million) respectively to secure
banking facilities granted to that certain subsidiaries.

R201293 A318 @ RITLEHB MRS BIEA
##4)2,616.08 85T (20114 : 2,374.18
BAT)N3IMEA RN ZRITER

RITHERRN2012F3A31B 2 BB FIR&E
FRR0.01EZE3.75E (201145 : 0.01EE
260F) 2 EBERN - BEERAANEBHIRIT
BHRRBSNRESHR ZREEEGER
FEHEE -
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In addition, a fixed and floating charge was created over the
assets and undertaking of one of the Group’s subsidiaries (total
asset value as at 31 March 2012 was HK$72.9 million (2011:
HK$82.3 million)) to secure banking facility granted to that
particular subsidiary.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group had subordinated the inter-
company debts due from two subsidiaries in the total amount
of HK$666.8 million as at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$506.7

million) to secure banking facilities granted to that particular

two subsidiaries.

37. Contingent Liabilities

N AEBEP —RMBARIZEER
I (20123318 2 B EAEHT2.9
BEBT (2011F:823HE B L) )BIE
EERZEIRIF LS B A ) ERIR

FEE-

M2012%3 318 AEEE THEB QR
MR M B R R 2 A EIBERA £666.8
BEBT (20115 :506.76 &8 L) 1E1R
BRE  AERZMKHB QR EEIEIT
EEZHEM-

37. AR A R

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEET
Guarantees given, to the extent of the VAZR £ B AR 4t 9 AR PR
Group’s proportionate share, in respect ~ FIEE N FIERIBITEEE
of banking facilities granted to an 2 R
investee company 166.5 160.4

No financial guarantee has been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as, in the opinion of

the directors, the fair value of the financial guarantee was
insignificant. No provision for financial guarantee contracts
have been made at the end of the reporting period as the
default risk is low.

EERA ARMBERIAFELTE
R BIWERERE M RR AR
ko RE QR - SR S BRI E it
MBEREOIELEE-
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38. Commitments 38. 7RI
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEERT BEATT
Contracted but not provided for in REMBHmEREEL
the consolidated financial statements 1B R B
— expenditure in respect of properties —RBIEHEZERE
held for/under development for sale LRPYFEZAE 414.3 755.3
— capital expenditure in respect of — WM BB REREZ
acquisition of property, plant and BAASE
equipment 59.4 52.7
— others —HAh 159.1 1223
632.8 930.3
Authorised but not contracted for in REMBHmERFEE
the consolidated financial statements BREL
— capital expenditure in respect of — R EME Y
acquisition of investment properties BARASE - 40.1
— expenditure in respect of properties —BEHEZER
held for/under development for sale LRTPMERZAE 149.8 137.6
— capital expenditure in respect of —WHEE R E KRR 2
acquisition of property, plant and BARESE
equipment 16.7 67.5
166.5 245.2
799.3 1,175.5

In addition, the outstanding capital commitments in respect of
the Group’s interest in Dazhongli is disclosed in Note 19.

SN AEBER AT BER 2 KR ER
AEE R EI9R R -
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39. Leasing Arrangements

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payment under non-
cancellable operating leases in respect of land and buildings
which fall due as follows:

39. HHEZHkE

SR ] 2 AR AN

RIS AR AEERBL I RETZ T
A AT R AR A TR 2
RBIEHEEMHAEMT -

2012 2011

HK$'M HK$'M

BEETT BEET

Within one year —F R 25.7 32.7
In the second to fifth year inclusive FE_EZERF

(BREEEME) 22.8 283

Over five years A& 3.5 5.6

52.0 66.6

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the
Group for its office premises and staff quarters. Leases are
negotiated for an average term of two years and rentals are
fixed for an average term of one to two years.

In addition, the Group is committed to leasing land in
Singapore where a hotel is situated for 86 years up to
February 2074. The annual lease payment is at the higher of
approximately HK$4.4 million or 5% of the total gross revenue
of the hotel.

QERERS NAEEREHATNER
BIBERAZAS - RETHEITAY
26 T EOF S T

IEESN - AN 62 B B AGE T A I D3R — 1R U
JE P Bz < 30 - 78 B /R864F - £207452 4
fEim - BFRHECH4IABERTIBE
Bz 25% (NBRSERE) -

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned from investment properties and
other properties during the year was in aggregate HK$315.0
million (2011: HK$371.1 million), of which HK$310.6 million
(2011: HK$367.6 million) was generated from investment
properties of the Group. Investment properties and other
properties with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$6,166.8
million (2011: HK$6,166.2 million) were held for rental
purposes at the end of the reporting period. Depreciation
charge for the year in respect of other properties was HK$1.3
million (2011: HK$1.3 million). The properties held have
committed tenants for a period from one to thirteen years. At
the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with
tenants for the following future minimum leases payments
under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as

BEREPBBREBERARAR 2011/2012 F3;
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AL E A A A

BEMEREMERF ANFRZ M E
HEWAA £ A315.088 BT (2011
F:371.188%m)  A$3106B88ET
(20114 : 367.6EEBL) REASEEKE
M o AR HIR - BREE S $£6,166.8F
BB (20114 : 6,166 2B 8B TT) 2K E
MEREMYEDFIERER R - ANFE
NEBEMYEZINES R AL BEST
(2011F : 1.3 B8BIL) - IFAEMENHE
AANAHHIZIZETE - RIREHAR -
AEBECDHETHPEL  MBET A
HCETHER T MR 8 2 R R &K
ERNRMT

follows:

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEST BEBTT
Within one year —F A 215.3 234.5

In the second to fifth year inclusive FEFRF
(BHEERME) 127.8 161.2
Over five years hFi& 16.6 225
359.7 418.2
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40. Retirement Benefits Schemes

A.

Hong Kong

In order to comply with Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme Ordinance, a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) with employer’s voluntary
contributions has been established on 1 December
2000.

For the members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of the relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme, which contribution is matched by the employee.

The amount charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable of HK$16.3 million (2011:
HK$15.5 million) to the MPF Scheme by the Group at
rates specified in the rules of the schemes less forfeitures
of HK$1.7 million (2011: HK$2.6 million) arising from
employees leaving the Group prior to completion of the
qualifying service period.

At the end of the reporting period, there is no forfeited

contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
retirement benefits schemes and which are available to
reduce the contributions payable in future years (2011:
nil).

40.

SR AR AE A w3
iR

AEAMEMEAREEEEN - 8
FIERTEERETE ([RFEETE ) H
BF 8FEHRT N20006E12 18 %
Io

RAESHBZKEMS  AEET
BB T AR 2 5% RS 8
(3K - TP (450 B4R B T 4 R AR
#o

REZFTAZEEAAEBIRERE
SR8 2 R EMAN 2 #3K16.38
BT (2011%F : 155888 7T) WA
Br B TIEEA A B IRISHA LART R
FAAEEMIKR s SBELIAEST
(2011 :26EEBTT) °

RBERR WRBEAETREZSE
RGBT BI TS Y 2 13 Mt E
AT AR R EUEF 2 FE S R H1BR
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41.

(a)
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PRC and Overseas B. i %A
The employees of the Group in the PRC and overseas are AEEFPEKEIMEE RBMB@AAE
members of state-managed retirement benefit schemes RSB 2 BUNERE 2 BlERK
operated by the respective local governments in relevant BT E - AEBEEIZTEK
jurisdictions. The Group is required to contribute and R ZIETE B DL B T 845K
recognise a specified percentage of payroll costs to the RIEBEBRBANFE2ES B F
schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligations of FEImME AEBEcH—BEEARED
the Group with respect to these schemes are to make FTRTE < B3k - WARIEFZ AT 8 2 1§ 3K
the specified contributions and recognise the respective RBBrAEAERE ZRERRTEZR
retirement pay in accordance with terms set out in the K o
schemes and relevant jurisdiction requirements.
The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the MR BAREER 28R ERE
above-mentioned schemes in the relevant jurisdictions Ik 2 #R AR 4910.88 B8 7t (2011
amounted to approximately HK$10.8 million (2011: F:9458HBTT) °
HK$9.4 million).
Principal Subsidiaries, Associates 41. FEM B A E - B A E
and Jointly Controlled Entities T 3 [ 428 o] B A
Details of principal subsidiaries incorporated and have (a) ERBEIMUIREEZETENBEAR
their principal place of operation in Hong Kong are as AIFFIBOT
follows:
31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable
share capital to the Group share capital to the Group
Name of company BRITRE rEEHE BEARA TEERE Principal activities
NG ZHfE A1 ZHE IR FEXH
HK$ % HK$ %
B R B BAL
Allmedco Group Limited 1,500,000 45,6 1,500,000 456 Medical and dental
equipment and supplies
BERFREEREER
AmMed Cancer Center (Central) 2 100 2 100 Cancer treatment operator

Limited

BIERRERA
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31.3.2012 31.3.2011 31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Equity Equity Equity Equity
Nominal value interest Nominal value interest Nominal value interest Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable of issued attributable of issued attributable
share capital to the Group share capital to the Group share capital to the Group share capital to the Group
Name of company BRAIRA FEAHEF BEIRA REEFEA  Principal activities Name of company BRITRA FEEHEF BEIRA KEERA  Principal activities
INSE: ZHE 2 ZEE JRE FERE IAGE ZHEE 2 ZHEE LR TEEH
HK$ % HK$ % HK$ % HK$ %
B EE A BT Bk B ER A BT Bl
AmMed Hong Kong Limited 10,000 100 10,000 100 Investment holding Discovery Bay Recreation Club 2 50* 2 50%  Provision of club facilities
EERBERERAT REER Limited (formerly known as Rfte kit
“Discovery Bay Residents
AmMed (Hong Kong Island Center) 868 92.17 863 R.17 Cancer treatment operator Club Limited"##)
Limited (ceased operation on hREREEBRARM
30 November 2011)
BERBEEHE Discovery Bay Road Tunnel 2 50% 2 50 Road tunnel operation
(R2011411 8308 Company Limited BELz
ILEE) WREBEERAR
Discovery Bay Property Limited 2 50* 2 50* Property agency services Discovery Bay Services 2 50* 2 50*  Estate management
BEENEERLA MERE R Management Limited ERER
(formerly known as hEERBEERERAR
“DbAY Service Limited"#)
(AITEA MR ENERER Discovery Bay Transit Services 2 50* 2 50%  Provision of bus services
BRAR#) Limited REBTRE
BRERBRBERAA
Discovery Bay Commercial 2 50* 2 50* Leasing agent
Services Limited MERE Discovery Bay Transportation 2 50+ 2 50*  Provision of ferry services
B EBERBEERL A Services Limited REERRE
WRENERBERAR
Discovery Bay Enterprises Limited 400,000 50* 400,000 50*  Operation of a shipyard
mafs Fame Wood Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
EIRERRAR NERE
Discovery Bay Financial Services 2 50* 2 50* Provision of financial services
Limited to first hand purchasers of Frosmate Company Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
Bz B EREERDA properties in Discovery Bay BILABERAR REER
AR E-FERREMR
s RS Gemsbok Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
REZR
Discovery Bay Golf Club Limited 2 50* 2 50* Provision of club facilities
hRERRAXReERAR REE MR Grace Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
EEREGRAA NERE
Discovery Bay Hotel Limited 2 50* 2 50* Hotel operator
BEEE Greenyield Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
AABRAT] NERE
Discovery Bay Marina Club Limited 2 50* 2 50* Provision of club facilities
WREEREERAR RAEEFRIE Hagent Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment

AR RABRAH
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31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable
share capital to the Group share capital to the Group
Name of company BRAIRA FEAHEF BEIRA REEREF  Principal activities
INSE: ZHE 2 ZEE JRE FERE
HK$ % HK$ %
B EE BT Bk
Health & Care Dental Clinic Limited 8,708,433 57.05 8,708,433 57.05 Development and operation of
ERTHEBAERAT dental clinics
TRYRERREE
Health & Care Group Limited 1,133,334 57.05 1,133,334 57.05 Investment holding and its
BREEEEERAA subsidiaries are engaged
in operation of dental clinic
chain
REZR MERBAR
EUES et PR
D
Healthway Medical Centres Limited 1 100 1 100 Provision of medical services
ReBEEROERAR B RE
Hong Kong Health Resort Limited 4 100 4 100 Property investment
NERE
Hong Kong Resort Company 212,950,000.5** 50 212,950,000.5* 50*  Investment holding and
Limited property development
EBEEER DA REABRENZER
HKR Limited 2 100 2 100 Property management
BEREXNEARAA MEER
HKR Capital Partners (HK) Limited 2 100 2 100 Advisory services
AR
Lam Island Development Company 2,000,000 99.99 2,000,000 99.99 Property development
Limited NEER
HRESERAR]
Lee Wo Company, Limited 300,000 100 300,000 100 Property investment
MABRAT NERE
Parocka Investments Limited 20 100 20 100 Property development
NEER

BEEXBREEARAQAF 2011/2012 F#H
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31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Equity Equity
Nominal value interest Nominal value interest
of issued attributable of issued attributable
share capital to the Group share capital to the Group
Name of company BRITRA FEEHEF BEIRA KEERA  Principal activities
NSRS ZHEE 2 ZHEE LR FEXH
HK$ % HK$ %
BT Bt BT Bl
Pearl Development Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
BERRERAA NERE
Qualigenics Medical Limited 3,000 80 3,000 80 Clinic operator in diabetic
EEREERLA and endocrine disorders
and provision of cardio
treatment
BERRADBRARLER
ERBMEHE
Quebostage Limited 2 100 2 100 Property investment
BEHERATA NERE
Rich Deal Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
BAERAR RERKR
Royston Investment Limited 2 100 2 100 Investment holding
WREEREBRAR RERKR
Scoot Development Limited 1 100 1 100 Investment holding
RERKR
Smaragdine Limited 2 100 2 100 Property development
NEER
TCS Project Management Limited 2 100 2 100 Property development project
management
NEZREEER
Wells Estate Services Limited 100,000 100 100,000 100 Property management and
RieMERBERAH estate manager
NEERREDER
Wells Property Management Limited 1,000 100 1,000 100 Property management and
RieMEERERAH estate manager
NEERREDER
Yintaly Construction Company 2 100 2 100 Property investment

Limited
ERRETRARAR

MERE
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* According to the shareholders’ agreement of Hong Kong *
Resort Company Limited (“HKRC"), the Group is able to
control more than half of the voting powers of the board
of directors (which makes the financial and operating
decisions) of HKRC and its subsidiaries.

o In addition to 1 ordinary share of par value of HK$0.25 **
each, 100% in the value of HK$212,950,000.0 deferred
shares are also held by the Group (see note).

Note: The deferred shares held by the Group are shares
whose shareholders are neither entitled to receive
notices, attend, vote at any general meetings nor
to receive any dividend out of operating profit and
have very limited rights on return of assets of the
companies.

W Allmedco Group Limited (“Allmedco”) is classified as
a subsidiary of the Company as it is a 80% — owned
subsidiary of Health & Care Group Limited (“H&C”) while
in turn is a 57.05% — owned subsidiary of the Company.
The Company has control over the board of directors of
H&C and Allmedco.

##

#  Renamed to Discovery Bay Property Limited 11 5 /&%) %
AR A 7] with effect from 23 February 2012.

##  Renamed to Discovery Bay Recreation Club Limited 181 5 "

EEELE @ A R A ] with effect from 21 July 2011.

REFEEERZARQA ([HEH
£ 1) ZBR % - AR A ARG
BEEXNEMBRARZESRE
(P BREEZRE)BBFEZ

wERE-

BB AESRAEE0.25%8 T2 1%
BRI - AN B IR 100% B A
212,950,000.0/8 70 2 IELE 1D (R
BisE) o

MieE: AEERAZBRLERN L
BRANERMNZ2ERR RS
RRBERAE ERE - TR
R U ER {22 & | h 0 Ik
ZEMBE . REHEAUR
FSER AR CBED I
e

i 7 Allmedco Group Limited
([Allmedco |) BlEREEEES
RATF ([MER]) HEA80%E =
ZWEBLE - mERRIRARF
HEH57.05% w2 B RR - 4§
Allmedcot D RN R 7 2 MIE 2~
A] o NR A ER K Allmedcoz E
EEAAEHE-

B201242 A 23 H & % A& Discovery
Bay Property Limited i S &5
[RAFA -

B201147 821 H ¥ % ADiscovery
Bay Recreation Club Limited 1§15 /&
A%’%‘ﬁﬁiﬁﬂ °

(b)
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Details of other principal subsidiaries are as follows: (b)y EMEZMEBRRFBUOT:
31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of Principal of issued Equity interest of issued Equity interest
incorporation/ place of share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration operation registered capital to the Group registered capital to the Group
Name of company e/ TEEE BRARE/ KEAHEZ BEIRE/ REERAL  Principal activities
NGERH B ik AMEFZEE ke dfAszEE hE FZx%
% %
ARt anl
Abraham Holdings Limited Liberia Hong Kong Nil 100 Nil 100 Securities investment
Mt B35 &% £ B FHRE
Abraham Investment British Virgin Note* Us$1 100 US$1 100 Securities investment
Holdings Limited Islands i IE3H IE EHRE
ERERRES
AmMed International Cayman Islands Note** US$179,999.96 100 1US$179,999.96 100 Investment holding and its
Corporation Lid. HEHE R 179,999.96% 7T 179,999.96% T subsidiaries are engaged
in operation of ambulatory
cancer diagnosis and
treatment centers
RERR mEARBAREE
EERDHRARTL
Bathroom & Kitchen Supplies  Australia Australia A$329,861 100 A$329,861 100 Marketing of bathroom
Pty. Ltd. ol E 329,8617 32986127 products
RERREH
Beaufort Holdings Limited Cayman Islands Note** HK$10,197,932 100 HK$10,197,932 9328 Investment holding
H8HE it 10,197,932i 1T 10,197932% ¢ RERR
Beaufort International Hotels Singapore Singapore $$1,000,000 100 $$1,000,000 100 Investment holding
(Singapore) Pte Ltd H S M JPY420,240,000 JPY420,240,000 RELER
1,000,0008 7t 1,000,000
420,240,000 420,240,0008
Beaufort Sentosa Development  Singapore Singapore $$143,011,794 100 $$143,011,794 9364  Hotel operation
Pte Ltd b FIR 143,011,794 143,011, 79485 T BEEE
CDW Building Limited Cayman Islands Hong Kong HK$5,100,002 100 HK$5,100,002 100 Property investment
HEHE Bk 5,100,002 T 5,100,002 NERE
Chinadental Investments Ltd British Virgin Note** US$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands itk IE3H IE RELER
ERERRES
Concord Management Co., Ltd.  Thailand Thailand Baht2,000,000 100 Baht2,000,000 100 Serviced apartment
% ZH 2,000,000% % 2,000,000% 4k management
RBATEER
Cosmo Glamour Limited British Virgin Note** US$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands i 1£7 %7 REER

ABARREE



HKR International Limited Annual Report 2011/2012

BEREPBBREBERARAR 2011/2012 F3;

224

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RE BT S TR R BT R

For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of Principal of issued Equity interest of issued Equity interest
incorporation/ place of share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration operation registered capital to the Group registered capital to the Group
Narme of company ek TEYE BRITRE/ FEAREL BETRA/ REEHEZ  Principal activities
NGERES Bk ik EMEAZERE BE  AfERzEE RE  FEXH
% %
Al antt
D.B. Properties Inc. British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands i 17 1%7 REER
ERERRES
GenRx Holdings Limited British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
EhERERAR Islands (i %7 %1 RARK
ERERRES
Great Wisdom Holdings Limited ~ British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands i IES IE9 REZR
ABRBARES
Hanbright Assets Limited British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Investment holding
Islands i %7 %7 REER
ERERRES
Health & Care (Macau) Dental ~ Macau Macau MOP25,000 57.05 MOP25,000 57.05  Operational of dental clinics
Group Limited it i 25,0002 1T 250002737 in Macau
B (RF) FREEERAH ERMEETNDH
Healthway Philippines Inc. Philippines Philippines PHP19,137,500 100 PHP19,137,500 100 Investment holding
EIZ54 FEE 19,137,500 2% 191375005k 2 E REER
HK Resort International Limited ~ Cayman Islands Note** HK$2 100 HK$2 100 Investment holding
REHE i 2T 2T REBR
HKR Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$5,000,000 100 $$5,000,000 100 Investment holding
R I JPY6,547,780,000 JPY5,447,780,000 REER
Baht24,700,000 Baht24,700,000
5,000,0004% T 5,000,000% T
6,547,780,000F 5,447,780,0008
24,700,000% 5% 24,700,000% 4k
HKR China Limited British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 Us$1 100 Investment holding
AAAEHEARAR Islands i IESH IES REER
ARERRES
HKR Japan Co., Ltd. Japan Japan JPY1,000,000 100 JPY1,000,000 100 Property investment
BA A& 1,000,000A 1,000,008 NERE
HKR Japan KK Japan Japan JPY10,000 100 JPY10,000 100 Investment
B AA 10,0000 8 100005 RE
HKRJ Development Co., Ltd. Japan Japan JPY10,000 100 JPY10,000 100 Investment
2N A& 10,0000 E 10,0005 & RE
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31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of Principal of issued Equity interest of issued Equity interest
incorporation/ place of share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable
registration operation registered capital to the Group registered capital to the Group
Name of company e/ IEEE BRARE/ FEAHEL BEIRE/ REEEALZ  Principal activities
NGERES B it AMEFZEE B  EMERZEE hiE TEXH
% %
EEx anl
HKR Shanghai Limited British Virgin Note** Us$1 100 Us$1 100 Investment holding
EREELBERAT Islands i IES] %7 REER
EREARES
HKRJ Akasaka TMK Japan Japan JPY2,700,100,000 100 JPY2,700,100,000 100 Property investment
BA B 2,700,100,000A 2,700,100,0000 NERE
HKRJ Roppongi TMK Japan Japan JPY3,800,200,000 100 JPY2,700,200,000 100 Property investment
BE BA 3,800,200,000R 2,700,200,0008 NERE
HMC, Inc. Philippines Philippines PHP10,250,000 100 PHP10,250,000 100 Provision of medical services
FEE FEE 10,250,003 28 10,250,000 2 REBBRE
HZ i
Hojo Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore JPY1,864,010,000 100 JPY1,325,100,000 100 Investment holding
AR MR 1,864,010,000H 1,325,100,0008 RERR
REZAERAAH PRC PRC US$22,000,000 100 1S$22,000,000 100 Manufacturing of bathroom
i i 22,000,000% 1t 22,000,000% T products
EEAZAM
Impulse Bathroom United Kingdom United £320,000 100 £320,000 100 Marketing of bathroom
Products Ltd. i3 Kingdom 320,000% % 320,000 4 products
& RERREH
Mantle Investments Limited British Virgin Note* Us$1 100 US$1 100 Securities investment
Islands (i 17 %7 EHRE
EEABREE
Maxbright Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore S$1 100 81 9364 Property holding
G AR 15 B Eo
National Asset Limited British Virgin Note*** Us$1 100 US$1 100 Marketing of bathroom
Islands R 1£% IEy products
ERERRES RERRES
Ours Sanitary Ware Ltd* United Kingdom United £3,500,001 100 - - Manufacturing of sanitary
i Kingdom 3,500,001 & ware
A ZEHE
Prinia Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$2 100 5$2 100 Investment holding
G % Wi 287 RERR
Ruthin Investments Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$2 100 S$2 100 Property investment
AR I JPY1,362,730,000 JPY1,362,730,000 NERE
Wi 287
1,362,730,000H 1,362,730,0008
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A MRS IR R M
For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

3132012 3132011 (c) Details of principal associates are as follows: () FEMZEQRFBOT:
Nominal value Nominal value
Place of Principal of issued Equity interest of issued Equity interest
incorporation/ place of share capital/ attributable share capital/ attributable 31.3.2012 31.3.2011
registration operation registered capital to the Group registered capital to the Group P ]
Name of company ek TEYE BRiTRE/ FEAREL BEARA/ REEHEZ  Principal activities .Att”bUtable .Att”bUtable
LA4E BEE it SREA2 T BE  EREsEE BE  1EEH interest held interest held
% % Place of by the Group by the Group
Bl ARt Name of company incorporation AEE AEEFHE  Principal activities
Sathorn Park Co, Lt Thailand Thailand B2ht933,600,000 100 Bahi933,600000 9647 Hotel operation and onner ACIEA A A L B FE 16 4 25 ElhErx TEEK
ZE ZE 933,600,000% % 933,600,000%k BERERRE % %
EE1’1 Bolt
Spa Botanica Pte Ltd Singapore Singapore $$2 100 5$2 100 Provision of spa botanical
GIE s 27 21 senvices Hanison Construction Cayman Islands 49 49 Construction, property
ik kES : . =
LA Holdings Limited HEHS development, property
Suki Pte. Ltd. Singapore Singapore s$1 100 S$1 100 Investment holding SRR ER A A investment and sales of
sk i 1PY508,000,000 PY367,500,000 FanR health products
17 17t o s
508,000,000A 8 3675000008 BE DRRR MERAR
REEMHE
Viva Fund Services Limited Cayman Islands Note*** Us$1 100 Us$1 100 General partner
MEES i 1£7 S —RABA 4 ,
Morpheus Real Estate Cayman Islands 20 20 Investment holding and its
Viva Investment Advisory Cayman slands Note*** us$1 100 Uss$1 100 Investment advisory Fund L.P. HEHE subsidiaries are engaged
- = - é‘ e = T 5% il i [ .
Limited Hens (i3 1£5% X7 BARA in property investment in
B8 (LF)¥RERAA®  PRC PRC US$14,000,000 100 US$14,000,000 100 Property investment Japan
i H 14,000,000 72 14,000,000 VESES BEEREENB AT
: / e 4n >
BE(L8)EREN PRC PRC US$1,500,000 100 US$1,500,000 100 Property management and RERESMREE
BRARH # ks 1,500,000% 7t 1,500,000% 7T consultancy services
h=ERRERRR Polyoung Limited Hong Kong 31 31 Provision of financial services
BRARAA B to first hand purchasers of
*  These companies are engaged in securities investment * OHERRREAREE I EBLEREE COﬁST?' Skyline
business of the Group and have no specific principal % AMEBRELEEEEMI - MEXEE—FEX
place of operation. TRk B 75 AR 7
** These companies act as investment holding companies o WERAAREBEERAR AMME Tung Chung Station Hong Kong 31 31  Property development
and have no specific principal place of operation. AREZEREENM - Development Company % MERR
B Limited
***  These companies have no specific principal place of o WERNBNNDRBEREL FEEEM
business. Bho
& The company was incorporated during the year ended 31 # AR TR EE2012F3 A31H 1E
March 2012. FEERKI ©

#  These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises. o ERARBINERE-
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For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

(d) Details of principal jointly controlled entities are as (d) HEWESIERBFBOT
follows:
31.3.2012 31.3.2011
Attributable Attributable
interest held interest held
Place of by the Group by the Group
Name of company incorporation K& AEBMEF  Principal activities
NGIEY ] BRITAvE R FEih# i EihEs IEEH
% %
Atk Bt
Dazhongli Properties Limited  British Virgin 50 50  Property investment
AP ENEERAT Islands MERE
KEABRES
BE (L8 EiE PRC 50 50  Property development
BERBRAR" HE MERE
WE(LE)FiE PRC 50 50  Property development
ERBERAA HE NRER
RE (L ﬁ)%iﬂl? PRC 50 50  Property development
ERAERD i MERRE
City Grace Co., Ltd. Thailand 49¢ 49*  Property investment
RE NERE
City Virtue Co., Ltd.** Thailand 49¢ - Property investment
ZE MERE

*  These companies are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

** The jointly controlled entity was incorporated during the year
ended 31 March 2012.

# Pursuant to the joint-venture agreements of the jointly
controlled entities, the respective board of directors of
the jointly controlled entities decides on key financial and
operating matters on simple majority. The Group and the
joint venture partner each holds 50% of the voting right and
hence the directors of the Company consider the Group and
the joint venture partner exercise joint control over the jointly
controlled entities.

All of the above principal subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, other than Abraham Holdings
Limited, Beaufort Holdings Limited, Chinadental
Investments Ltd., D.B. Properties Inc., Great Wisdom
Holdings Limited, Hanbright Assets Limited, HKR China
Limited, HK Resort International Limited and HKR Asia-
Pacific Pte Ltd, are held indirectly by the Company.

The above tables list the subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

Other than club debentures as set out in Note 29,
no other loan capital has been issued by any of the
subsidiaries.

BBMERBEBARAR 2011/2012 F5R
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© BWEATARNECE-

ARSI E N B E201293 A31
HIFFERL

# REBUSHEZEGHERZAEHH
HEARZEHER EETSABES
BRETBMBREESTHE -AEHE
HAERHERFAORRRE A
ARRBEERR AEERZEER
PRI S KRS B BT A
i

& Abraham Holdings Limited *
Beaufort Holdings Limited *
Chinadental Investments Ltd.

D.B. Properties Inc. * Great Wisdom
Holdings Limited * Hanbright Assets
Limited - & B BEHR A A

HK Resort International Limited &2 HKR
Asia-Pacific Pte Ltd?l\ iR EEE
MR AR B A R R RIZEGIE 88
i@mK&aﬁaﬁ&%ﬁ .

%%Eﬁ%'i%ﬁﬁﬂ$$l25ﬁ%@
CIRY: 2 WNCIVS SR N DEERN
%lZ%%ﬁﬁkfééﬂﬁig%é £
%*’J%'ﬁﬂﬁtﬁﬁﬂwg B
HFE %lJfﬁfE'Jﬂﬁ/\Aﬁo

BB FE29PT 51 2 & PR E S A& E
Z B R RS EETEMEERE -
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A M RR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

42. Related Party Transactions

During the year, other than balances with related parties as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial position,
the Group had significant transactions with related parties as

follows:

(A) Transactions with entities controlled by certain
discretionary trusts of which five directors of the
Company are among the discretionary beneficiaries.
Such trusts have controlling beneficial interests in these

entities and the Company:

42. B A 5

BRaR B MBIV RN BREA T 2 &8
Sh REEFREMEATETZERR
ZH

(A) BEFBRBET(AQFRESA
HBES %A ) Frinsl s BTy
R ZEEANZZEERAA

A RS

2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEATT
Transaction with the entities: Bz %E

Rental income received by the Group 7% B Y ER 2 & WA 2.8 2.2

Management service fee received by A& EIWE Z EIRRH &
the Group 1.4 1.3
Other services provided by the Group 7% EI42 (i 2 £ 1th AR 5 0.1 =

(B) Transactions with associates and jointly controlled entities

of the Group

During the year, the Group had significant transactions with
associates, jointly controlled entities and non-controlling
shareholder of a subsidiary of the Group as follows:

BEEXBREEARAQAF 2011/2012 F#H
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(B) saAsEmanm R LR EE

R

FR AEEEEEA
BERAKEE—HEAT 2 L

A AEH

BRRZERZXZWT :
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEEBER BEAET

Aggregate transaction value
in respect of the following
transactions entered into by the
Group with an associate, Hanison
Construction Holdings Limited,
and its subsidiaries:
— construction service fees
— renovation service fees

Provision of services to an associate

Management fee and other
operating service fees received
from associates

Management fee and other
operating service fees received
from a jointly controlled entity

Interest income received from an
associate

Interest income received from jointly
controlled entities

Interest expense paid to a
non-controlling shareholder
of a subsidiary

Carpark rental paid to an associate

BRAAEE SR —fEHE QT
(EEsaI AR AR &
HBRRETUA TR Z
RPHIE

—BERKE
—RERKE

[ B & N AR AR TS

[ Bt 2 2 R UER 2
EEENMHEMEEREE

[7) 4 7] 122 5l B A8 W X 2
EEEREBELREE

[ Bt 2 2 R UCER 2 A B A

7] K 45 ) B B W ER 2
FMEWA

AE—ERRZ
FFERBRR N2
MBI

REA-PNCIFE NP
FESEE

242.0 192.3
- 0.1

0.1 0.1
7.8 5.0
23.5 21.4
0.3 0.5
14.4 5.5
12.8 4.8
- 0.4




HKR International Limited Annual Report 2011/2012
232

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M RR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2012 # Z201243A31H ItEE

(C) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key

(C) xz=z=m AEHS

EENEMEIREEKENFRNZH

management during the year is as follows: oy NE
2012 2011
HK$'M HK$'M
BEET BEBT
Short term employee benefits EHES A
Fees ik 2.1 2.1
Salaries and other benefits Fe kHEMER 21.2 20.9
Performance related incentive 1R R
payments 7.8 24.3
31.1 47.3
Post-employment benefit BB 12 12 A1
Retirement benefits schemes RIREFIFT B
contributions 0.8 0.9
31.9 48.2

The remuneration of directors and key executives is

determined by the remuneration committee having

regard to the performance of individuals and market

trends.

EENTIBTHRABZHMERHFME
Eg2Z@ERETIRRETHBERE

it
fil D

o

43. Information of Financial Position

of the Company

Information of the Company’s condensed statement of

financial position is as follows:

BEREPBBREBERARAR 2011/2012 F3;
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43. A Z B R DL E R

RRB AP BEARRARERT :

2012 2011
HK$'M HKS$'M
BEET BEETT
Non-current assets ERBEE 4,792.1 3,731.3
Current assets MEEE 6,424.3 6,800.4
Current liabilities mBaE (7,824.3) (6,970.6)
Net current liabilities ME)AEFEE (1,400.0) (170.2)
3,392.1 3,561.1

Capital and reserves IR R e
Share capital @ 337.5 3375
Reserves L] 3,054.6 3,2236
3,392.1 3,561.1

Loss for the year ended 31 March 2012 of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$20.5 million (2011: HK$10.9
million).

Under the Company Law (Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders subject to

the provisions of its memorandum and articles of association
and provided that immediately following the distribution of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance with
the Company’s articles of association, dividends can only be
distributed out of the accumulated profits of the Company of
HK$1,513.6 million as at 31 March 2012 (2011: HK$1,682.6
million).

KAREHE201263A31H IEFE 2 EE
#)B20.5B8 &8 T (20114 : 109E &8
JT) °

BEFSHEF2FRNANE (KIBET)
ARB 2D aE A D IR T IRES MK
RIREMR S - WA AN QR AHERRE
N E R AMESCRT IR - M R IR S 1% -
AARBRENEENBEFERKDBZE
B REBEARBCERAR EJEAR
AlR201243A31H A&1,513.6E B AT
(20114 : 1,682.6 B BB L) Z R5hm H
DIRAR B o
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Particulars of Major Properties
==
=]

Five-year Financial Summary
LFEHHFHME

T EY R

Results e A. Properties held for/under A FfEER BRbhZWE
development
Year ended 31 March
BE3A3IHILEE
Gross floor Expected
20}2 20,11 20,10 2099 2098 area (sq. ft.)  Stage of completion  Nature
HK.$ M HKM_A ﬂK$'\_A HK$M EK$M Descriptions BREEE  completion date  of property
HE#ET BEBT BEAT BEBT HEAT R (EFR)  =HEE BHERE  MERE
Turnover L] 1,664.1 1,800.7 1,839.8 2,593.7 3,429.7 1. The remaining phases, NE L wsE
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island 8 T & &
Profit (loss) from ZiER T (B8)
f i =R
operations 819.4 1,660.6 1,3737 (253.7) 1,576.7 (@) YiPak, Discovery Bay, AW E
: Bi 7k 5 Lantau Island —RE&
Finance costs HKER (63.2) 42.2) (82.2) (171.2) (193.2) _ Residential =
Share of results of PMEBE AR EE Remaining BTSN 187,697 Superstructure in 2012 Residential
associates 90.8 150.1 1168 1730 3094 Phases . £z
Share of results of MMEEREHEE mEE
jointly controlled entities ~ Z£4& 69.9 79.3 780.2 (0.3) (34.0) - Commercial ¥ 22715 Construction 2012 Commercial
s _ under progress EES
Profit (loss) before taxation BRBiATE R (&518) 916.9 18478 2,1885 (252.2) 16589 Tioigfyh
Taxation HIE (61.2) (63.9) (236.1) (61.6) (334.4)
— Hotel —BE 269,100 Interior fitting 2012  Hotel
Profit (loss) for the year ~ AFE &R (EB18) 855.7 1,783.9 1,952.4 (313.8) 1,324.5 out works in iy
progress
Attributable to: TRl : WERE
Owners of the Company AR FEE A 747.2 1,647.9 1,890.8 (292.4) 9785 TR
Non-controlling interests 32 = 108.5 136.0 616 (214) 3460 (b)  Others (note) Hib (i) 511,216  Not yet No definite plan ~ Retained for future
. | (e commenced EEERE development
Profit (loss) for the year ~ RNEERFI (E51E) 855.7 1,783.9 1,952.4 (313.8) 1,324.5 WAREHT DR REE
2. Plot nos. 34, 174 and 257 ZEEA 871,954 Construction 2012 Residential
Statement of Financial Position ,Hj%ﬂk{ﬂ‘ig ﬁ ﬂ Soi Attakarnprasit 10.120 Sathorn, , ugfjetiprogress F=x
) Thungmahamek, Sathorn ~ Soi Attakarnprasit TiETH
Information Bangkok 10120 Thungmahamek,
Thailand 34~ 17422575 £ H
At 31 March X
#3A31A 3. Lotno. 1613in DD MATR T2 3731 Notyet No definite plan ~ Residential
' EH9220%: EETEAE s
me o owe  am o Ayt e i
HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M HK$'M '
BEER BEBT BEAT BEBTT BEBT . » . N
Note: The Discovery Bay Project has a total site area of approximately MizE: M= E2EEAHMERERNA70BET
Total assets BEME 23,180.5 21,333.9 18,1215 17,858.0 18,4272 70 million sq. ft.. The remaining development area comprises a TR INERITHEIEREERMBELN
Total liabilities GERE (7,364.1) (6,457.1) (5,179.7) (6,964.9) (6,985.4) total of about 153,905 sq. ft. of gross building area of residential 153,905F F R 2 (FE R 3R At
NOﬂ-COﬂ’[rOHIng interests 3'5*? J‘LEE'SE (1,320.6) (13051) (1’1575) (1,0946) (1,1185) and commercial deVeIOpment and about 357,311 §10), ft. of L/\&%/@E%ﬁ%ﬁ%@357,311 IFEWZL%
gross building area for recreational development. LAEL IR FR b o
Equity attributable to AREEEA
owners of the Company ~ JE{A#% 14,495.8 13,571.7 11,784.3 9,798.5 10,323.3
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T BRI

B. Investment properties under

B. fEgB#LEWE

BEREBBREBRARAR 2011/2012 F;

construction
Gross floor Expected
area (sq. ft.)  Stage of completion  Nature

Descriptions BEmEE  completion date  of property
BR (EAR) ZREER BHTHE WFEREE
4, 2-6 Fui Yiu Kok Street, HRAZERZEAS 93,623  Foundation in 2014 Industrial

Tsuen Wan, New Territories 26 5% progress I%

WETIRETH

C. Investment properties held for

rental purposes

C. A BREWRME AW

AR &

Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of the Group  Category

Descriptions BEMEBE  property AEE  of lease

R (FAR) WMERE Bz HEEER

5. 2houses located at Bijou Hamlet, AEREENS 5,392  Residential 100%  Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island ETEREE F= i

6. 5houses located at Headland Village, A |1 14 = & B 5 12,836  Residential 100%  Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island hiETEE*R F=E i

7. 13 units comprising highrise, lowrise AU 1118 & &% 1& 20,887  Residential 100%  Medium
and duplex apartments located at 13(EE (heEE FE F
Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay, i EEEER RER
Lantau Island BAARK)

8. 1 highrise apartment located at RNE L =B 1,068  Residential 100%  Medium
Greenvale Village, Discovery Bay, 1{8 = B B F=E i
Lantau Island

9. 33 highrise apartments located at RNELB=ERRA 21,150  Residential 100%  Medium
Parkridge Village, Discovery Bay, 33 = B B s F=E i

Lantau Island

237
Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of the Group  Category

Descriptions BEEEE  property A& of lease

R (FFER) WMEHE E#Ez HEEER

10. 6 midrise apartments located at R = & 4522 Residential 100%  Medium
DB Plaza, Discovery Bay, 5 EZ6ME EEN FE i
Lantau Island

11. 2 lowrise apartments located at R =& 2,483  Residential 100%  Medium
Siena One, Discovery Bay, R —E FE H
Lantau Island 2B B i

12. 1 lowrise apartment located at RIE L a5 E 1,315  Residential 100%  Medium
Siena Two, Discovery Bay, R B e H
Lantau Island HEEEEN

13. 1 lowrise apartment located at AE LR EeER 976  Residential 100%  Medium
La Vista, Discovery Bay, 1{ER BB E FE R
Lantau Island

14. 3 highrise apartments located at N R Epededisd 3 2,197  Residential 100%  Medium
Neo Horizon, Discovery Bay, A S R E L FE ]
Lantau Island

15, 14/F of Century Tower Il and BBWLTEHFIREE 3,663  Residential 100%  Long
Car Parking Space No. 12 on 15 RIGATE AR T R H
Level 1, Century Tower, Nos. 1 and U BRttEAE
1A Tregunter Path, The Peak, FIEBERERIREN
Hong Kong

16.  Flat 2 on Ist Floor and Car Parking ~ BB ZEEiE7C5 3,200  Residential 100%  Long
Space No. 19 and One Roof Space ~ BEAE1E2ZH FE <
Marked “5”, Bowen Mansion, 195 Bz
7C Bowen Road, Hong Kong & [5]5ka

17. 6 highrise apartments located at ANELRREXREGRE 6,652  Residential 100%  Medium
Coastal Skyline, Tung Chung, 618 = B B AL ez ]

Lantau Island
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Particulars of Major Properties
T BRI

HEREEPBREBERARAR 2011/2012 F3;

Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of the Group  Category
Descriptions BREER  property KEE  of lease
R (FAR) WMEHE Bz HEEER
18. 4 highrise apartments located at NI 4,082  Residential 100%  Medium
Tung Chung Crescent, Tung Chung,  BIRJER F=E 5
Lantau Island MASEES
19. 10 highrise apartments located at ANE SR ER 7419  Residential 100%  Medium
Seaview Crescent, Tung Chung, 1018 = B Efi F=E F
Lantau Island
20. 7 residential units and F 16,407  Residential 100% Long
9 car parking spaces of LEMRER F=E =8
Chelsea Residence, %1 }% 1038 1695+
No. 169 of Lane 1038, FEER-K
Huashan Road, Changning District, ~ 7fAEE &%
Shanghai, the PRC OfEE L
21. 2 highrise apartments located at AU a5 R B e 1,438 Residential 50%  Medium
Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay, 2ME = B AL F=E i
Lantau Island
22.  DIA Palace Sapporo Higashi Actio, B AALIEDIA Palace 44593 Residential 100%  Freehold
Sapporo, Japan Sapporo Higashi Actio F=E KAERE
23.  Horizon Place Akasaka, Tokyo, BARER 81,624  Residential 100% Freehold
Japan Horizon Place Akasaka fFx KA
24, Homat Sun, Tokyo, Japan ARRR 57,521  Residential 100%  Freehold
Homat Sun FE KAERE
25.  Commercial Centre, Discovery Bay, RNEL & 180910  Commercial 50%  Medium
Lantau Island EELIN GRS i
26.  Shop 401, Coastline Villa, RNIE L= EEE 7417 Commercial 50%  Medium
Peninsula Village, Discovery Bay, ERHM T401E S i

Lantau Island

239
Attributable
Gross floor interest to
area (sq. ft.)  Nature of the Group  Category
Descriptions MEEMER  property x& of lease
R (FFER) WMEHE E#Ez HEEER
27.  Commercial Centre, Yi Pak, RNE L= E=—RE 147,445  Commercial 50%  Medium
Discovery Bay, Lantau Island EELIN GES i
28.  22nd Floor, China Merchants Tower,  &j& T4 ™ 10800  Commercial 100%  Llong
Shun Tak Centre, 168-2005% = 1&H iL» S 58
168 - 200 Connaught Road Central, B B AE22E
Hong Kong
29.  West Gate Tower, No. 7 NEERID B K RE T 146,531  Industrial 100%  Medium
Wing Hong Street and RIEMEI8HR Ix ]
8 King Lam Street, FaEEE R L
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon
30, CDW Building, 382-392 R EER7 375 982777 Industrial 100%  Medium
Castle Peak Road, & 11138382-3925% I% H
27-37 Mei Wan Street, hEABAE
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
D. Properties held for sale D. ffEHi B
Attributable
Gross floor interest to
o area (sq. ft.)  Nature of the Group  Category
Descriptions BREEE  property K& of lease
R (FHER) WEHE E#Ez HEEER
31, Neo Horizon, Discovery Bay, AE L 2 e & 791  Residential 50%  Medium
Lantau Island =2 ]
32.  Chianti, Discovery Bay, KU L 8= h 37 6,344 Residential 50%  Medium
Lantau Island =2 ]
33.  Amalfi, Discovery Bay, NE a5 E2R 169,337  Residential 50%  Medium
Lantau Island =2 ]
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Particulars of Major Properties
FEMERFE

E. Other properties

E. Hfb¥ysE

Attributable
Site area interest to
(sq.ft.) Nature of the Group
Descriptions wREE property X£E
R (FAR) MEME FE 16 1 55
34. Lot nos. 373RP and 374 in D.D. 352 R TS 4935258 23,400 Residential 100%
Lantau Island 3 B 3735 BR R ]2 374%% — retained for future
development
FE
~-BERRERE
35. Lot nos. 1735, 1737, 1979 and FRWELENFENR 154,106 Agricultural lots 100%
portions of Lot nos. 1978 and 0 B 173555 * 173757 (no definite plan)
2012 in Demarcation District no. 91, 197955 LA % 197855 & RHHER
Fanling, New Territories 2012% 2 B B (RETEE)
36.  Various Lots in Demarcation District AL =5 147,669 Agricultural lots 50%
no. 363, Sam Pak, Lantau Island L EHFE3635H % @R (no definite plan)
B
(EEEEE)
37.  Section B and the remaining portion M E 05 BEY R ER » 57,935 Agricultural lots 100%
of Lot no. 5, Section A and the B55AR RERER A K (no definite plan)
remaining portion of Lot no. 65 and 615  66%% - 673% K695 B ER
Lot nos. 61, 66, 67 and 69, Peng Chau (EEE:E)
38.  Section C and the remaining M 3 R 535457 35,266 Agricultural lots 100%
portions of Lot nos. 354 and 346, R 3465 CEY R #r Bk (no definite plan)
Peng Chau B
(EEE:E)
39.  Various Lots in Demarcation District AU 14T 7K Diana Farm 222,593 Golf course 50%
no. 354, Diana Farm, Hang Sui, K ENEDBIF L AR (completed)
Lantau Island BRAKS
(#T)
40.  The remaining portion of Lot no. 317 MREPILEBAF 1325 1,394 Agricultural lots 50%
in Demarcation District no. 132, L3175 2 B EX (no definite plan)

Tuen Mun, New Territories

B
(EEER )
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